VISCOSITY STUDIES OF SOLUTION INTERACTIONS IN FORMAMIDE

Joseph McCartney McDowall

A Thesis Submitted for the Degree of PhD at the University of St Andrews



1973

Full metadata for this item is available in St Andrews Research Repository at: <u>http://research-repository.st-andrews.ac.uk/</u>

Please use this identifier to cite or link to this item: <u>http://hdl.handle.net/10023/15495</u>

This item is protected by original copyright

"Viscosity Studies of Solution Interactions in Formamide"

A Thesis

presented for the degree of

DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

in the Faculty of Science of the

University of St. Andrews

by

Joseph McCartney McDowall



United College of St.Salvator and St.Leonard

1

St. Andrews

December 1973

and the second of the second states of the states of the states of the second second

ProQuest Number: 10167398

All rights reserved

INFORMATION TO ALL USERS

The quality of this reproduction is dependent upon the quality of the copy submitted.

In the unlikely event that the author did not send a complete manuscript and there are missing pages, these will be noted. Also, if material had to be removed, a note will indicate the deletion.



ProQuest 10167398

Published by ProQuest LLC (2017). Copyright of the Dissertation is held by the Author.

All rights reserved.

This work is protected against unauthorized copying under Title 17, United States Code Microform Edition © ProQuest LLC.

ProQuest LLC. 789 East Eisenhower Parkway P.O. Box 1346 Ann Arbor, MI 48106 – 1346 Th 8061

DECLARATION

I declare that this thesis is my own composition, that the work of which it is a record has been carried out by me, and that it has not been submitted in any previous application for a Higher Degree.

This thesis describes results of research carried out at the Department of Chemistry, United College of St. Salvator and St. Leonard, University of St. Andrews, under the supervision of Dr. C.A. Vincent since 1st October 1970.

Joseph M. McDowall

41.17.14

the product of the second star share with

(iii)

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that Joseph M. McDowall has spent eleven terms of research work under my supervision, has fulfilled the conditions of ordinance no. 12 (St. Andrews), and is qualified to submit the accompanying thesis in application for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy.

> C.A. Vincent Director of Research

an the second second second states and the second second second second second second states and the second second

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank Dr. C.A. Vincent for his unceasing enthusiasm and encouragement.

My thanks are also due to Mr. N.F. Jackson of The Plessey Company Limited, for the many useful discussions which we have had, and also to Mr. E. Hollands for looking after me during the time I spent working with the Company at Bathgate. I am also indebted to Professor D.S. Campbell of Loughborough University.

I would also thank Mr. C.D. Sinclair of the Department of Statistics for his advice and assistance in connection with regression analysis computer programmes.

My gratitude goes to Wilma Pogorzelec for patiently typing this thesis.

Finally I thank my wife Maeve for all the help and encouragement she has given me.

(iv)

CONTENTS

	Page
Declaration	(ii)
Certificate	(iii)
Acknowledgements	(iv)
Contents	(v)
Summary	(vii)
CHAPTER 1 : INTRODUCTION	1
CHAPTER 2 : EXPERIMENTAL TECHNIQUES	
2.1 Introduction	6
2.2 Poiseuille's Law	7
2.3 Theoretical Derivation of Poiseuille's Law	8
2.4 Correction Factors	12
2.5 Viscometer Design	1.6
2.6 Apparatus	18
2.7 Thermostat Bath	20
2.8 Density Measurements	22
2.9 Auto-Viscomoter	23
2.10 The Programmer/Printer	24
2.11 Viscosity Measurements	24
2.12 Calibration of the Viscometers	26
2.13 Purification of Formamide	33
2.14 Karl Fischer Method of Determining Water Content	35
2.15 Preparation of Salts	40
2.16 Preparation of Methanol	40
2.17 Preparation of Dimethylformamide	41
CHAPTER 3 : JONES-DOLE VISCOSITY B COEFFICIENTS	
3.1 Jones-Dole Formula	42
3.2 The Jones-Dole B coefficient	46
3.3 Ionic B coefficients	46
3.4 Temperature dependence of the Jones-Dole B coefficient	50
3.5 Results and Discussion (I)	59

1

ावद्वात् की अपने वर्षे र

1.77 6

p	8	σ	-
4	~	8	~

3.6	Viscosity as a Rate Process	87
3.7	Results and Discussion (II)	92
3.8	The Falkenhagen-Vernon A Coefficient	96
3.9	Conclusions	98

.

CHAPTER 4 : BINARY MIXTURES

C.K.

4.1	Introduction	99
4.2	Tamura-Kurata Equation	100
4.3	Mato-Hernandez Equation	101
4.4	The McAllister Equation	102
4.5	The Three Parameter Equation	103
4.6	Results and Discussion	104
, 4.7	Activation Parameters	123
4.8	System II, formamide/methanol	127
4.9	System III, formamide/dimethylformamide	128
4.10	System I, formamide/water	129
4.11	The Three Parameter Equation	130
4.12	Activation Parameters as a Function of Concentration	135
4.13	Conclusions	142
CHAPTER 5	: JONES -DOLE IN BINARY MIXTURES	
		1 4 4

5.1	Introduction	,	144
5.2	Experimental and Result	3	146
5.3	Discussion		159
5.4	Conclusions		162

APPENDI X	I	Viscosity and Density of Calibration Liquids	163
APPENDIX	II	Computer Programme for Calibrating Viscometers	164
APPENDIX	III	Calibration of Viscometers	166

References

175

(vii)

SUMMARY

The effect of some simple salts on the viscosity of formamide has been studied at a number of temperatures and interpreted in terms of ion-solvent interactions using the equation suggested by Jones and Dole. Further evidence to support the various conclusions drawn has been provided by application of Eyring's reaction rate theory to the viscosity processes in solution.

The viscosities of binary mixtures of formamide and water, methanol or dimethylformamide have been investigated over the whole composition range and the ability of three semi-empirical models to describe these systems has been discussed. A new three parameter equation has been proposed.

Finally the effect of sodium chloride on the binary mixture formamide/water has been considered. It has been shown that, in general, for viscosity measurements to be a useful tool for investigating ion-solvent and solvent-solvent interactions, it is important that the measurements be made at more than one temperature. CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

그 그 동안 수 있는 것 같아요. 그는 아이에 가지 않는 것 같아요. 이 사람이 있는 것 같아요. 아이지 아이지 않는 것 같아요. 이 가지 않는 것 같아요. 이 가지 않는 것 같아요. 이 가지 않는

1.1 A quantitative understanding of the interactions of species in solution is one of the problems still facing modern science. As early as the sixteenth century, at the time of Galileo, there was a common axion "ignorato motu, ignoratur natura". The experimental and theoretical study of transport phenomena in liquids has received a great deal of attention since the sixteenth century. Today the theoretical approach is dominated by physicists and mathematicians¹⁻¹¹ whose investigations are limited to simple systems.

Chemists, on the other hand, when dealing with solutions, are normally concerned with systems which even in their simplest form, e.g. a monovalent salt dissolved in a pure solvent, may be very complex. Rigorous mathematical models for such systems have not yet proved possible and physical chemists dealing with electrolytic solutions are left with semi-empirical models such as those of Frank and Evans¹², Frank and Wen¹³, Gurney¹⁴ and Samoilov¹⁵. These models have been constructed from data obtained from aqueous systems. The investigation of ion-ion, ion-solvent, and solvent-solvent interactions in other solvents provides further experimental data which may be used to extend the validity of such models and lead to a better understanding of the micro environment of the individual ions in solution.

1.2 The study of the effect of solution composition and change in temperature on viscosity provides a useful means of investigating solution interactions.

The theory of liquid viscosity was developed from the concepts of hydrodynamics, the study of fluids in motion. The early development of this subject took place in the eighteenth

week and a set to be

century and workers of this period (Bernoulli, d'Alembert, Euler and Legrange) were mainly concerned with so called "perfect fluids", which were considered to be characterised by the fact that they had no tangential component of stress. This led to the d'Alembert paradox which suggested that a solid sphere immersed in a stream would not be carried along by it. Previously in the seventeenth century, Newton had formulated a hypothesis regarding the magnitude of the force required to overcome viscous resistance. Newton's fundamental hypothesis was that if two laminae having an area of contact A, move with constant velocities, v_1 and v_2 , the force F required to maintain the constant difference of velocity is

$$F = \eta A \frac{(v_1 - v_2)}{(s_1 - s_2)}$$
(1.1)

Here S_1 and S_2 are distances measured in the direction perpendicular to the laminae and η is a constant. Since the velocity in the liquid changes continuously this can be rewritten

$$F = \eta A \frac{dv}{dS} \qquad (1.2)$$

where γ is called the coefficient of viscosity and is a characteristic constant for each liquid. Liquids for which γ is independent of the velocity of the shearing motion (i.e., the rate of shear) are called Newtonian liquids. The main development of the theory of viscous fluids was made in the nineteenth century chiefly by Navier and Stokes. Navier¹⁶ attempted to find a solution to the problem of motion in viscous liquids corresponding to the hydrodynamic equations already mentioned for "perfect fluids". Stokes^{17,18} deduced the same equations as Navier by a different method.

For an incompressible fluid of viscosity γ and density ρ , the motion of the fluid at the point P (x,y,z) was considered to be characterised by a velocity vector q having components u, v, w, in the direction of x, y, and z respectively. At the point P, the fluid was considered to be subject to an external force F per unit

and the second second solution of the second sec

The state of the second and

- 2 -

a na serie de la companya de la comp

mass, with components, X, Y, and Z. It was assumed that γ was constant, i.e. the viscosity was independent of the direction and rate of shear as is the case for Newtonian liquids. The pressure at any point in the liquid is p.

Incompressible liquids satisfy the equation

div
$$q \equiv \nabla \cdot q \equiv \frac{\partial^x}{\partial u} + \frac{\partial^y}{\partial v} + \frac{\partial^w}{\partial w} = 0$$
 (1.3)

From this relationship equations for the flow of an incompressible liquid at sufficiently low velocities were deduced to be

$$\rho X = \frac{\partial p}{\partial x} - \gamma \nabla^2 u \tag{1.4}$$

$$\rho \mathbf{Y} = \frac{\partial p}{\partial \mathbf{y}} - \gamma \nabla^2 \mathbf{v} \tag{1.5}$$

$$\rho^{Z} = \frac{\partial p}{\partial y} - \gamma \nabla^{2} w \qquad (1.6)$$

and in the absence of the external force

$$\frac{\partial p}{\partial x} = \gamma \nabla^2 u \tag{1.7}$$

$$\frac{\partial p}{\partial y} = \gamma \nabla^2 v \tag{1.8}$$

$$\frac{\partial p}{\partial y} = \gamma \nabla^2 w \tag{1.9}$$

The usual boundary condition employed to allow solutions to the above equations was that at any solid surface there would be no "slip", i.e. that the velocity of the liquid would vanish at a solid surface. In all cases where this has been experimentally checked it has been found to be correct.

The solution of these equations of importance in this study is that due to Hagenbach¹⁹ (Chapter 2). For laminar flow of an incompressible liquid of viscosity γ through a capillary tube of length **l**, and radius R where the pressure difference across the length of the tube is $p_0 - p_1$, the volume V, flowing through the tube in unit time t, is given by

$$\frac{V}{t} = \frac{\pi (p_0 - p_1)_R 4}{8 \eta l}$$
(1.10)

- 3 -

<u>A në shqina tak dhe san në Mari ya shqina dana kashkara da kashkara da kashkara kashkara kashkara kashkara ka</u>

1.3 The viscosity of a liquid can be considered to be due to the interactions of the various solution species. In 1929 Jones and Dole²⁰ reported an empirical relationship between the concentration of solute and the viscosity of aqueous electrolytic solutions. From this relationship it was shown²¹ that the first term corresponded to the "stiffening" of the solution due to ion-ion interactions. The second term was considered to be a measure of the solute-solvent interactions (see Chapter 3).

Modern theories of solution²² stress the importance of evaluating not only the effects of the ions on the structure of the particular solvent but also the specific ion-solvent interactions involved. It is no longer acceptable to consider that a solvated ion is one which moves through the solution with a certain number of solvent molecules firmly bound to it and that an unsolvated ion is "bare" of solvent molecules. Instead we must now visualise a dynamic situation in which solvent molecules spend a certain average period of time as nearest neighbours to the solute particles.

The viscosities or fluidities of non-electrolyte binary mixtures are as a rule not linear with composition and can be theoretically predicted only in homologous non-associating mixtures where the components have about equal molar volumes²³. It is therefore not to be expected that a clear molecular interaction mechanism could be inferred from the hydrodynamic properties as measured by viscosity. It is frequently possible however to discuss solution viscosities qualitatively in terms of solvation or of the formation of associated molecular species²⁴⁻³⁰.

1.4 The problem therefore is to obtain information which can be interpreted in terms of the interactions of the solvent molecules with each other and the effect of ions on these

and the a guilt of

- 4 -

interactions. The greatest advances in the theory of solvation have taken place for aqueous solutions. The models of Frank and Evans¹², and Samoilov¹⁵ were based on their understanding of the structure of water. The "structure breaking" or "negative hydration" effects mentioned by these authors have been reported in water, and a few other highly associated solvents such as ethylene glycol³¹, glycerol³², sulphuric acid³³ and the effect has been studied in mixed solvents such as water-alcohol mixtures³⁴⁻³⁶.

The electrochemistry of the simple amides has been reviewed comprehensively by Vincent³⁷, where it was suggested that in order to understand the fundamentals of electrochemical transport processes it would be necessary to appreciate the nature of the ion-solvent interactions involved.

The simplest of these amides, formamide, is considered to be, like water, an associated solvent. It is a reasonably good solvent³⁸ and has a dielectric constant (approx. 109)³⁹ which is greater than that of water at room temperature. In this study the effect of simple electrolytes on the viscosity of formamide, the viscosity of binary mixtures containing formamide and methanol, dimethylformamide and water and the effect of a single electrolyte (sodium chloride) on the viscosity of the binary mixture formamide/water over the complete concentration range has been investigated.

- 5 -

CONTRACTOR REPORT AND AND AND

CHAPTER TWO

EXPERIMENTAL TECHNIQUES

and the manual for subsets as the for

2.1 INTRODUCTION

The study of the flow of liquids through capillary tubes is still the most popular method employed by physical chemists to measure viscosity. Although this method is in principle that adopted by Poiseuille⁴⁰ in his classical researches of the mid-nineteenth century, modern technique has advanced a great deal with improved experimental design and the use of electronic data retrieval and analysis.

As well as capillary flow methods, other methods of measuring viscosity are available, such as the concentric cylinder system, the falling body system, and the torsional pendulum, see fig (2.1) but the first two of these have been shown by MacKenzie⁴¹ to be accurate only to viscosities over 0.001 J m⁻³s.





- 6 -

The torsional pendulum, or oscillating body method as it is generally called, is an accurate method of determining the absolute viscosities of molten salts where high temperatures and the use of furnaces make capillary flow techniques unsuitable. The maintenance of long zone constant temperatures and the change in diameter of capillaries due to slight etching and recrystallisation together with the difficulty of detecting capillary flow are further drawbacks associated with these measurements.

a la ferra la comercia a la compactana a la compactana de la compactana de compactana de compactana de compact

as in Surger part is indeed

al - ana and a al

The problem of the oscillating sphere was studied by Verschaffelt⁴² who set up a differential equation for the motion of the rigid spherical shells and derived an equation which gave the viscosity as a function of measurable quantities and although an exact mathematical solution is not possible, the problems lends itself to numerical solution by computer.

The viscometers used in the present work were of the capillary type because of the accuracy attainable and the ease with which they lend themselves to automation. Ease of cleaning and refilling was also very important because of the number of solutions required to be examined. Capillary viscometers are easily mounted in a water bath so that accurate temperature control (\pm 0.01 K) is possible and equilibriation to a new temperature is reasonably fast.

2.2 POISEUILLE'S LAW

Measurements with capillary viscometers depend for their interpretion on a relationship between the rate of flow of liquids under an applied pressure and the dimensions of the capillary tube through which the liquids are forced.

Poiseuille, who was interested in the flow of blood through the capillaries of the body, approached the problem by investigating

- 7 -

the flow of water through small bore glass capillaries and thus in contrast to his predecessors he had to deal with the problem of laminar flow. He proved that capillary flow in such tubes is a fundamentally simpler process than in the wide tubes which had previously been employed.

A long series of measurements was carried out, which showed that

(i) The quantity of liquid discharged in unit time is proportional to the pressure, provided the length of the tube exceeds a certain minimum, which increases with the radius.

(ii) The quantity of liquid discharged in unit time is inversely proportional to the length of the tube.

(iii) The quantity of liquid discharged in unit time is directly proportional to the fourth power of the radius.

This led in 1846 to the empirical expression:

$$Q = K \frac{PR^4}{l}$$
(2.1)

where Q is the flux, P the applied pressure, R the radius of the tube, and \ the length of the tube and K is the constant of proportionality.

2.3 THEORETICAL DERIVATION OF POISEUILLE'S LAW

An important advantage of capillary viscometers is that the mathematical theory can be developed with perfect strictness and without approximations. Hagenbach¹⁹ (1860) appears to have been the first to give the derivation in the present form.

Consider a portion AB of a horizontal cylindrical tube having a circular cross section of radius R fig. (2.2). The distance AB = $\$, and a difference of pressure = ΔP is maintained

- 8 -

the second state of the se

- 9 - ·



Fig. 2.2

between A and B, which causes the fluid to flow through the tube from left to right. The total effective pressure differential $\triangle P$ is used up in doing various forms of work.

(i) Near the entrance to the capillary, the particles of the fluid undergo a rapid acceleration; the associated absorption of kinetic energy causes a fall in pressure amounting to $p_{\rm K}$.

(ii) Within the capillary, there may be a finite movement of the fluid at the walls of the tube, due to slipping. Unless the external friction is zero or infinite, work will be done and there will be a fall of pressure p_{e} .

(iii) Unless the internal friction is zero, the layers of fluid nearer the walls of the tube will move more slowly than the layers nearer the axis of the tube, and an absorption of energy resulting in a pressure drop due to this internal friction will result. Let this pressure drop be p.

(iv) If the path of the particles through the capillary is not perfectly linear, the additional distance travelled in the eddies will give rise to a further drop in the pressure amounting to p_e . This "turbulent flow" is certain to occur when the velocity of flow becomes sufficiently high.

(v) Even before the velocity becomes turbulent, it is possible that the stream lines at the extremities of the tube may be somewhat

distorted, in which case there must be a drop in pressure pd.

(vi) Heat is produced due to the above energy dissipation processes as the fluid passes through the tube and therefore the temperature may be different at different points of the liquid, and since the temperature greatly affects the viscosity of most substances, this may affect the amount of work done in the passage through the If the fluid is incompressible it will have the same mean tube. velocity through each cross section of the capillary and the pressure must fall in a linear manner at least so long as the flow is linear. If, on the other hand, the substance is compressible, the velocity must increase as the fluid passes through the tube, because of the expansion which results from the decrease in pressure. With the expansion there is a decrease in temperature. Let the resultant effect of these changes in temperature upon the effective pressure be p_{m} . This can be either negative or positive.

The sum of these possible losses of effective pressure is then;

 $\Delta P = p_{K} + p_{S} + p_{v} + p_{e} + p_{d} + p_{T}$ (2.2)

Consider in fig.(2.2) that the fluid is incompressible. This is a good approximation for most liquids where $P = p_v$. Further, assume that every particle of fluid moves parallel to the axis of the cylinder with a constant velocity v. For reasons of symmetry this velocity will be the same for all points lying on the same circle centred on the axis of the tube so that the liquid may be considered to be composed of cylindrical laminae moving with velocities which are functions of their radii.

The force exerted by the pressure P on a cylinder of radius

r is

$$F_{p} = \pi r^{2} p \qquad (2.3)$$

its a that is a second that we are wrote

while the resistance round the surface of the cylinder, caused by the viscosity of the liquid, will, according to the assumptions

- 10 -

and the second second

above, be given by the product of area x viscosity coefficient x velocity gradient, i.e.

$$F_{V} = 2\pi r \eta \frac{dv}{dr} \qquad (2.4)$$

ascred well a better

If the velocity of the particles is to remain constant, the forces acting on the cylinder must be equal and opposite, and therefore

$$rP = -2 \ln \frac{dv}{dr}$$
 (2.5)

$$\frac{dv}{dr} = -\frac{rp}{2l\eta}$$
(2.6)

$$v = -\frac{r^2 p}{4 \sqrt{\gamma}} + C \qquad (2.7)$$

If it is now assumed that no slipping occurs at the wall of the cylinder, i.e. when v = 0, r = R, the constant of integration can be determined

$$C = \frac{R^2 P}{4 \eta}$$
(2.8)

so that the velocity is given by

$$v = \frac{P}{4 \eta} (R^2 r^2)$$
 (2.9)

Equation (2.9) shows that the velocity profile is parabolic, the velocity being zero at the walls of the tube and a maximum in the centre. Since v is the distance travelled in unit time, the particles of liquid which were on the plane AA at zero time will be on the surface of the parabola, after unit time; in other words the volume of this parabaloid is the volume of liquid Q which passes in unit time. The volume of this solid of revolution is

$$Q = 2\pi \int_{0}^{K} vrdr \qquad (2.10)$$

$$Q = \frac{\pi P}{2 \eta} \int_{0}^{R} (R^2 - r^2) r dt \qquad (2.11)$$

 $= \frac{\hbar P R^4}{8 \eta}$ (2.12)

From (2.9)

This formula corresponds to the Law of Poiseuille, equation (2.1). If Q is the total volume of efflux in the time t, the formula becomes:

$$Q = \frac{\pi P R^{2} t}{8 \sqrt{\eta}}$$
(2.13)

2.4 CORRECTION FACTORS

It is important to restate here the conditions which must be adhered to if the above equation,(2.13), is to hold.

(i) The flow everywhere must be parallel to the axis of the tube.
(ii) The flow must be steady, initial disturbances due to accelerations from rest having been damped out.

(iii) There must be no slip at the walls of the tube.

(iv) The fluid must be incompressible.

(v) The fluid must flow when subjected to the smallest shearing force, the viscous resistance being proportional to the velocity gradient.

These requirements influence the design of capillary viscometers and departures from them necessitate the introduction of correction factors.

Both Hagen⁴³ and Poiseuille⁴⁰ reported deviations from the linear relationship between discharge and pressure when the pressure was raised beyond a certain limit or the length of the tube reduced below a certain limit. Condition (i), the condition of laminar flow, was not being adhered to in these cases. It was soon shown by Reynolds⁴⁴ that with a given tube and liquid, there existed a critical velocity at which the flow changed abruptly from the laminar type, in which each particle moves with constant velocity parallel to the axis of the tube, to the turbulent type, in which the particles move in irregular paths. All things being equal, the critical velocity is proportional, not to the viscosity, but to the viscosity divided by the density: <u>ie</u>. to the kinematic viscosity. Reynolds further showed that the conditions of flow for any tube and liquid could be characterised by a non-dimensional quantity now known as the "Reynolds Number". The variables affecting the flow in a cylindrical tube can be combined to give the following non-dimensional expression:

$$R_{\rm N} = \frac{\sqrt{D}p}{\eta}$$
 (2.14)

where:

 $R_N = Reynolds Number$ $v/ms^{-1} = mean velocity of the liquid$ D/m = The diameter of the tube $p/Kgm^{-3} = the density of the liquid$ $\gamma/Jm^{-3}s = viscosity of the liquid$

Flow behaviour in different tubes with different liquids will be the same when the Reynolds Numbers are the same. More particularly there will be a change from laminar to turbulent flow when R_N reaches a certain value, which experiment has shown to be generally about 1400 to 2000 for capillaries.

THE KINETIC ENERGY CORRECTION

Viscometers for which condition (ii) is fulfilled are characterised by very long efflux times and usually inconveniently small capillary bores. Long efflux times (in some of Poiseuille's work one run lasting several hours) are obviously tedious and small bores inevitably result in difficulties due to dust particles lodging in the capillary and altering the characteristics of the viscometer. For most capillary viscometers therefore account must be taken of the work done in accelerating the liquid from rest, i.e. imparting

1.44.1 (89 × 214.05)

- 13 -

వివిధిన వైద్య సౌకర్యం స్థియాలు విషయానికి సినిమి సినిమానికి సినిమానికి సినిమానికి సరిగా విషయానికి సినిమా సినిమాన

kinetic energy. Hagenbach (1860) was the first to attempt to make this correction. However in 1891 Wilberforce⁴⁵ showed that Hagenbach had made an error and that he should have arrived at the same result as that obtained by Couette⁴⁶ (1890) which also agreed with a result obtained independently by Neumann and Finkener⁴⁷. The correction was deduced as follows:

From equation (2.10) the mass of fluid passing any cross section of the cylindrical tube per unit of time is given by

$$\int_{0}^{R} 2\pi \operatorname{vrdt} \mathbf{p} \qquad (2.15)$$

The kinetic energy of this fluid is therefore

$$\int_{0}^{R} 2\pi \operatorname{vrdt} \mathbf{p} \, \frac{\mathbf{v}^{2}}{2} \tag{2.16}$$

From equation (2.9)

$$v = \frac{\mathbf{P}}{4 \mathbf{l} \eta} \quad (\mathbf{R}^2 - \mathbf{r}^2)$$

Substituting for v in (2.16)

KINETIC ENERGY =
$$\frac{\pi p^3}{64\sqrt[3]{\eta^3}} \int_{0}^{\infty} rdt (r^2 - r^2)^3$$
 (2.17)

From Poiseuille's formula (2.13) the total efflux volume in time t, is given by 4

$$Q = \frac{\Pi P_R^4 t}{8 \eta}$$
(2.18)

Therefore the mean velocity of the fluid (U) is given by

$$U = \frac{Q}{TT R^2 t} = \frac{PR^2}{81 \eta} \qquad (2.19)$$

Substituting for U in equation (2.17) we get after integration

$$\pi \rho R^2 u^3$$
 (2.20)

This is the kinetic energy of the fluid passing any cross section of the tube in unit time. The volume of fluid passing any cross section in unit time is, from equation (2.19)

 $\pi r^2 u$

and the second second second and the second se

$$\pi R^2 UP \qquad (2.21)$$

الكان معهد المحمد ا

therefore the energy converted into heat within the tube is

$$\mathbf{\pi} \mathbf{R}^2 \mathbf{U} (\mathbf{P} - \mathbf{p} \mathbf{U}^2) \tag{2.22}$$

From equations (2.2) and (2.19)

$$P_{K} = P U^{2} = \frac{P Q^{2}}{\pi^{2} R^{4} t^{2}}$$
 (2.23)

Allowing for this in Poiseuille's equation (2.13) we have

$$\gamma = \frac{\Pi P R^4 t}{8 Q t} - \frac{m Q P}{8 M t} \qquad (2.24)$$

where m is a constant, in this case equal to unity. Boussinesq⁴⁸ proposed a value of m = 1.2 and this has been used in a number of investigations.

A second correction factor arises from condition (i). Couette⁴⁶ suggested that the non-laminar flow at the ends of the capillary had to be considered. This takes the form of a nominal lengthening of the capillary whereby equation (2.24) becomes

$$\gamma = \frac{\pi P R^4 t}{8Q(1+\lambda)} - \frac{m P Q}{8\pi (1+\lambda)t}$$
(2.25)

The value of λ cannot be deduced theoretically, but must be found by experiment and is usually of the order of a few diameters.

For viscosity measurements in kinematic instruments the pressure term P is replaced by the term $h_m g \mathbf{p}$ called the hydrostatic pressure head

$$\therefore \qquad \gamma = \frac{\tau r R^4 h_{mgpt}}{8Q (l+\lambda)} - \frac{m P Q}{8\pi (l+\lambda)t} \qquad (2.26)$$

where h_m is the mean height of the liquid column and g is the acceleration due to gravity. Measurements with kinematic viscometers therefore are usually associated with accurate determinations of density.

- 15 -

2.5 VISCOMETER DESIGN

For many of the original kinematic viscometers, which were often basically glass U-tubes, some difficulties arose in the determination of the exact mean hydrostatic pressure head $(h_m gp)$. As flow progresses, the pressure changes continuously due to the drop in the height of the liquid column on one side and the increase in the column on the other. The Ostwald viscometer used for the determination of relative viscosity simplifies matters by using a fixed volume of liquid (delivered by means of a pipette) so that the mean height of the liquid column, h_m , is constant for each determination and can therefore be incorporated in a general viscometer constant.

Surface tension effects arising from the adhesion of liquid to the walls of the bulbs immediately above the capillary and in the exit reservoir can also alter the hydrostatic pressure head and create uncertainties in measurements, particularly when the surface tensions of the calibration liquid and the liquid under investigation are very different.

The Ubbelohde suspended level viscometer, as used in this investigation, is reputed to eliminate these effects by the provision of the 'suspended level' at the exit of the capillary. This 'suspended level', which is simply a bulb maintained at the same external pressure as that exerted on the liquid and of similar shape to the liquid reservoir, ensures that changes of the mean hydrostatic pressure head for different solutions are determined only by the density of the solution since the pressure is maintained constant. The total volume of liquid introduced into the viscometer does not need to be known accurately since that which falls to, or remains in, the lower reservoir contributes nothing to the mean hydrostatic pressure head. This is of particular advantage when measurements

- 16 -

And Bar & Be & law a many shi



at more than one temperature are required since the actual volume under investigation is fixed by the marks on the upper reservoir and expansion of the liquid in the viscometer need not be taken into account. Surface tension effects were also minimised by the use of the Ubbelohde suspended level viscometers. At the curved surface of the bulb at the exit of the capillary a certain traction is developed which acts in the opposite direction to the surface tension of the liquid in the upper bulb of the viscometer.

It is important that the viscometer be mounted firmly in a level position to maintain a constant hydrostatic pressure head. For a change of angle A to A+dA in the alignment of the vertical capillary axis, the change in the liquid head is given by

 $1 - \cos(A + dA)/\cos A$

A deviation of 0.0436 radians will therefore produce an inaccuracy of 0.1% in the measured viscosity. Jones and Dole²⁰ noted that, despite their efforts to maintain a rigid reproduceable mounting for their viscometer, the efflux time changed by approximately 0.1%. The cause of this was attributed to the fact that their laboratory building was jacked up at one end to allow some repairs to be carried out on the foundations!

Accurate temperature control is necessary for accurate viscosity measurements. This is especially true for associated solvents which often have large temperature coefficients of viscosity.

2.6 APPARATUS

The viscometers used in the present work were Ubbelohde suspended level models conforming to British Standard BS.IP.SL(S)71 fig..(2.3).. The capillary sections were approximately 80 mm long and 1.00 mm in diameter and the quantity of solution required for each determination was about 10 to 15 ml. These were equipped

- 18 -

istration of the static state of the state of

The second se



-19-

with ground glass sockets so that they could be stoppered firmly to the air.

1997 (N. 1997) - 1997 (N. 1997) (N. 1997)

In the early work size 4 of the viscometers were used. These had efflux times of about 30 s with water at 298K. Most of the later work was carried out with size 2 models which had efflux times of about 250 s, although a few measurements were made with a size 3 viscometer which had an efflux time of about 90 s.

The efflux times were measured by means of photo-cell lamp assemblies coupled to a Hewlett Packard auto-viscometer 5901 B in conjunction with a Hewlett Packard 5903 A Programmer. These instruments were designed to handle four separate viscometers at any one time.

The viscometers were mounted in a thermostatted water bath by means of special rigid metal clamps which could be individually levelled by means of a spirit level.

Density was measured by means of glass pycnometers of approximately 30 ml capacity, fig. (2.4).

2.7 THERMOSTAT BATH

This was a water filled bath supplied by Townson and Mercer Ltd, (model E.270 series III) of about 45 l capacity. The temperature was controlled by means of a thyristor and thermistor bridge arrangement and was considered to be accurate to at least <u>+</u>0.01K, throughout the range. The water in the bath was circulated over a weir to which was attached a serpentine cooling coil through which water could be passed from an external cooling system. The cooling system consisted of a coiled copper tube encased in a subsidiary bath which could be packed with ice. The flow of the water through this cooling coil was controlled by means of a flow gauge (Rotameter series 1100).

- 20 -

- an internation of the second state of the state of the state of the second second second second second second

· · · · ·

1,52.4 -

3, 3

......

÷

1,

1

1 12 14

a strategy

- 21 -







1 2. . . .

1

Two mercury filled, glass, precision thermometers were used to measure the temperature. These were total immersion thermometers supplied by Zeal Ltd. One covered the range 273.00 to 298.00K and the other from 298.00 to 323.00K with graduations every 0.05K and both were standardised at 273.00K at the ice point.

- ಇತ್ರಿ ಸಂಪರ್ಧಿಕರ್ ಪ್ರಮುಖ ಮತ್ತು ಮೇಲೆ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದಾರೆ. ಇದು ಮಾಡಿದ್ದಾರೆ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದಾರೆ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದಾರೆ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದಾ

2.8 DENSITY MEASUREMENTS

The density of the solutions was measured with Lipkin type bicapillary pycnometers. These were constructed from 1.0 ml pipettes (Pyrex catalogue no. 3240/20) with graduations every 0.01 ml and had a capacity of about 30.00 ml fig, (2.4). The pycnometers were calibrated with distilled water at various temperatures at 2.5K intervals from 288.0K to 323.0K by filling with a known weight of water and noting the limb readings at the various temperatures. From the known density of water at these temperatures, a calibration graph of volume (abscissa) against limb readings (the sum of both the left and right limb readings) was constructed 'fig. (2.5). The densities of water used for this calibration are given in Appendix I. The left hand limb of each pycnometer was bent over to allow it to be filled by capillary action. The limb readings were observed by using a magnifying glass which permitted an accuracy of 4.0.10⁶ 1 in 30.0.10³ 1. Since the weighing procedure was more accurate than this, the accuracy of the density measurements was therefore just better than 0.02%.

The procedure adopted for the measurement of densities was to wash the pycnometer out three times with distilled water and then three times with dry distilled acetone. The pycnometer was then flushed with a stream of dust free dry nitrogen and weighed. Care was taken when weighing the pycnometers to avoid contact with the skin so that errors due to the deposition of finger prints were eliminated.

Business and the

Longreich betreine auferen Litte wer un getre Rain

Refer T. T. Maria and Save and a sub-

- 22 -

This was done mainly by handling with paper tissues. The pycnometer was then filled with the test solution by capillary action and any liquid which lodged in the top of the left hand limb was removed and the pycnometer reweighed. It was then clamped firmly in position in the water bath with the limbs vertical so that the latter could be observed through the glass front of the bath. Care was taken to ensure that the observer's eye was level with the level of the meniscus in the limbs since an error of about 0.05% could occur if the operator was too high or too low. In all cases where the temperature was changed the level of the meniscus was found to be steady after five minutes equilibration.

2.9 THE AUTO-VISCOMETER

The Hewlett Packard auto-viscometer model 5901 B measures efflux times in glass capillary viscometers and provides automaticinfluxing in preparation for the efflux measurement. Very accurate timing is realised, because the efflux time is measured with a transistorised electronic counter using a quartz-crystal oscillator as a time base reference. A neon display provides a digital readout that can be held for observation until released by the operator.

Automatic influxing and timing eliminates errors between operators due to differences in technique and human fatigue. The accuracy of the timer is considered to be at least \pm 0.001 s. The electronic counter measures efflux times automatically through the use of photocell detectors mounted above and below the upper bulb on the glass viscometer, fig. (2.6). The photocells actuate electronic circuits during liquid efflux. Time measurement for the meniscus to travel between the two detectors is displayed on the instrument register. The photocell detectors also control the limits of liquid transport during influx and the release of the

- 23 -

კლიკორი ს ს ს ა. ა. დ. კა კატნე მანტიტა ის ოკრაცი არც ცისის ზოგანტიკანი ისის ა. ა.



The auto-viscometer
liquid for the efflux measurement. Each detector consists of a miniature light-source and photocell moulded into a water-tight case. A constant pressure pneumatic pump provides the pressure required to force the liquid back into the upper bulb and is automatically shut off by a signal from the upper detector when the meniscus passes on the way up. When the meniscus again passes this detector on the way down, a signal is sent to start the timer which is only shut off when the liquid meniscus passes the lower detector. When incorporated with the programmer printer a permanent record of the efflux times is obtained.

The auto-viscometer is equipped with four sets of detectors and can therefore accommodate four viscometers.

2.10 THE PROGRAMMER/PRINTER

The Hewlett Packard model 5903 A programmer/printer is a transistorised electromechanical device which programs the output of the 5901 B auto-viscometer and provides a printed record of the efflux time measurements. It can program the operation of the auto-viscometer so that the measurement at any channel is repeated. between 0 and 10 times with 25 second intervals between measurements. This sequence can be repeated indefinitely. The printer records the efflux time for each run to 0.001 or 0.01 seconds as selected on the auto-viscometer along with a coded identification of the programmed channel and the run number.

「「なんちち」のないに、ある、「ないないのいない」、 しょうちょう ちょうぼうし

2.11 VISCOSITY MEASUREMENTS

For accurate measurements of viscosity in capillary viscometers there are three practical areas of importance:

- (i) efflux time measurement;
- (ii) accurate temperature control;

(iii) efficient cleaning of the viscometer and protection against

I man town

- 24 -

solid particles lodging in the capillary.

As has been mentioned, the human error in the measurement of efflux times with manually operated chronometers can now be eliminated by using electronic triggers. As early at 1933, Jones and Talley⁵⁰ used photo-electric cells to measure the efflux time automatically. One of the problems was found to be the difficulty of cleaning the viscometer without altering the position of the recording apparatus and thus changing the viscometer characteristics. An important advantage of the Hewlett Packard auto-viscometer is that the photocells are firmly attached to the viscometer, fig. (2.6), and need not be altered in order to remove the viscometer for cleaning. Eicher and Zwolinski⁵¹ reported that they noted some heating effect leading to a change in efflux time due to the lamps in the detector unit and consequently they adapted their apparatus so that the lamps could be turned down when not in use. This effect was not observed in this investigation. Fig. (2.7) shows two sections of the print out from the programmer/printer. The section on the left shows the efflux times for three of the viscometers used in the earlier work, and the one on the right is for one of the later viscometers. The efflux times are for water at 298.15K. One covers a time span of about 15 minutes and the other about 150 minutes. It can be seen by inspection of these that there is no trend, and, apart from the spurious times caused by false triggering due to bubbles, the efflux times do not vary by more than 0.02%. After a viscometer had been cleaned and dried it was sometimes found that the first run would have a slightly longer efflux time than any of the subsequent runs. This was considered to be due to the initial wetting effect of the liquid on the walls of the capillary.

Bad triggering was usually associated with faulty mounting of the photocell lamp unit. The units were mounted firmly by their

- 25 -

and the first of the state of the state of the state of the state of

2

and the set a subscription of a set

ちちょう しょうちん ちゃ ちょうちょう

the set of a low with

Fig.(2.7)

S	ample	es of	prin	t-o	ut 1	froi	n t]	ne	progr	cammer	-pr:	int	er.	.EI	III	ax
t	imes	for v	vater	at	298	3.1	5K.									
••	4 4 4	9 8 7	222	8. 8. 8.	9 9 9	9 0 9	7 7 6		4 4 4	2 1	2 2 3	554	000	:	2000	000
	୮	- 654321 98765432 1	ม ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง ง		ง ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛ ๛)	56546784534-32478			9 8 7 5 4 3 2 4 3 2 4 3 8 7 6 5 5 4 3 7 6 5 4 3 7 8 7 6 5 4 3 7 8 7 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8		054-5545005555555	005000000000000	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	କାର ଅନ୍ୟର୍ଭ ପ୍ରକାର ସେହାର ଅନ୍ତ୍ର 10 I ର	๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛
	1	9	3 3	з. з.	1	2	8 9	ľ	4	2	2	5	0		10.01	1
	 	8 7 6 5 4 3 2 ())	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	333333	1 1 1 1	00000000	1 1 0 9 0 0 1	•	4444444444	9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2	0~~~0~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	0,	00000000000	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	500000000000	CIT- 20 10-533
	()	(-)							4 4	1	2 2	5 5	00	•	53	0 61

(I)

(II)

(a) Viscometer number.

(b) Run number.

(c) Efflux time in seconds.

Those times which are underlined in (II) are considered to be spurious because they were caused by false triggering. securing screws, fig. (2.6), and sealed against interference from air bubbles in the water bath with a silicon sealant (supplied by Dow Corning). As an extra protection the whole unit was then painted with polyurethane varnish. Another cause of bad triggering was due to insufficient filling of the viscometer. If the quantity of liquid was too small air bubbles were forced into the top bulb of the viscometer, and the timer was activated prematurely.

In practice, the minor fluctuations in efflux time for the same solution in the same viscometer were due to variations in the bath temperature. Because it was general practice to measure viscosities at more than one temperature each day, the water bath rarely had a chance to settle itself completely. It was therefore necessary for the operator to maintain a steady temperature by careful manipulation of the coarse and fine temperature adjusters, careful control of the cooling water of the thermostatted bath, and a vigilant watch on the thermometer (with the aid of a telescope). This was sometimes a very demanding procedure.

The viscometers were cleaned by flushing three times with distilled water and then three times with analytical grade acetone (about 15 ml each time) and finally with a stream of dust free nitrogen, all of which were firstly passed through a number 2 glass filter in order to trap any solid particles. This procedure was followed before each viscometer was filled with a new solution. At convenient intervals (of about three months) the viscometers were completely filled with freshly prepared and filtered chromic acid and left to soak for a few days after which they were washed out with, and then filled with, distilled water and soaked for about a week to ensure that no traces of chromic acid remained.

2.12 CALIBRATION OF THE VISCOMETERS

The early viscometers (size 4) were initially calibrated

- 26 -

ექმელისი მოევი. მელი მექვებე კიტა მეთვი ისისკვი, ც ლტაქტიმტიქვენები, დადიდადადებები, კაცხია.

「ないない」のないので、「ないない」で、「ないない」では、「いい」、「ないない」をないていていたいでは、「ない」ない」

Low the way when

the rate of the a state of the said

「ことをない」

and and of the base incorrected to

with water at various temperatures, by measuring the efflux times at these temperatures. Assuming that the dimensions of the viscometer capillary do not change by much over the temperature range under investigation, it can be seen that equation (2.26) can be rewritten

$$\gamma = \rho (At-B/t) \qquad (2.27)$$

or

$$7/pt = A - B/t^2$$
 (2.28)

A plot of $1/t^2$ against $\gamma/\rho t$ should therefore give a straight line of gradient $1/t^2$ and intercept $\gamma/\rho t$. The second term represents the kinetic energy correction (section 2.4). The known values for the viscosity and the density of water and the measured values for the efflux times were therefore substituted into equation (2.28) and the values of the constants found for each viscometer. The values which were used for the viscosity and the density of water are given in Appendix I. Equation (2.28) was solved by a computer program incorporating a least squares calculation (see Appendix II).

The kinetic energy correction term for these early viscometers amounted to more than 15% of the total value when the viscosities were of the same magnitude as water. For more viscous liquids, of viscosity similar to formamide, this term still amounted to more than 1%. A check on the viscosity of aqueous potassium iodide solutions, and 30% by weight aqueous sucrose solution showed that these calibration constants gave a value which was respectively 1% high and 0.1% too low. ないいいのであること、「「ない」

It was therefore decided to use viscometers with smaller bore capillaries in order to increase the efflux time and reduce the kinetic energy correction. The calibration results for these new viscometers can be seen in Appendix III. Water at four temperatures, and 30% aqueous sucrose solutions each at three temperatures were used for this calibration. The calibration graphs are shown in

- 27 -

figs. (2.8 - 2.11). For water at 323.15K the kinetic energy correction amounted to just over 1% and for formamide at the same temperature less than 0.1%. As can be seen from the calibration graphs a slight curvature is noticeable. Table (2.1) reflects the effect of this on the viscosity calculations. Columns one and two give the calibration constants (a) for calibration with only water (see Appendix III) and (b) for calibration with water, and 30% aqueous sugar solution.

			Calculated	d Viscosity *
	A	В	Water	Formamide
(a)	$\cdot 3682 \times 10^{-4}$	-0.2305 x 10 ⁻¹ .	$\cdot 8906 \times 10^{-3}$	3.334×10^{-3}
(b)	•3666 x 10 ⁴	-0.18177 x 10 ⁻¹	$.8886 \times 10^{-3}$	3.3098×10^{-3}

TABLE 2.1 VALUES FOR VISCOMETER 2

The fail of share the part of the A of the take of the take

Vnits expressed in J m⁻³s

As is to be expected (a) gives a good value for the viscosity of water (better than 0.04% accurate). On the other hand, (b) gives a value which is 0.23% lower for water. However in view of the fact that the calibration graphs do show a definite curvature the calibration "constants" would both be expected to be lower and (b) therefore probably represents more accurately the viscosity of formamide. The scatter which appears for the 30% sucrose solution is to some extent false. The viscosities of the sucrose solution used for the calibration were accurate to less than 0.1% (see Appendix I) and therefore the 30% aqueous sucrose solution points on the calibration constants used were therefore those calculated from the 30% aqueous sucrose solutions at 288.15K, 293.15K and 298.15K and water at 298.15K, 308.15K, 318.15K, and 323.15K [see Appendix III and (b) in table (2.1)]. --29--



1 -30-



• *

and the second and the second and a second second

-31-



.



and the second second for the second second second states with the second second second second second second se

Stort markers . ou

Table (2.2) gives the precision with which the efflux times used for the calibration were measured.

医黄疸 医白色 化合金试验试验试验试验 法不可保留的现在分词 网络加拿大加拿大加拿大加拿大加

あるとう ちんない ちょうちょう ないない ちょうちん

のうない、日本ないとうというないないないで、日本のの

おことをというな となるをかけ とないて たいかんな たいとうかん

TABLE 2.2

Standard Deviation of Efflux Times (t) Used for Viscometer Calibration

t s	$(t-\bar{t})^2$		$- \underline{\xi}_t$ soc so a
826.77	0.04		$t = \frac{1}{n} = 020.50$ s
826.78	0.05		$(t - \bar{t})^2$
826,61	0.00		$\sigma = \frac{Q(1-1)}{n-1} = 0.17 \text{ s}$
826,40	0.03		
826.50	0.01	Note	the efflux times quoted here
826,44	0.02	Note	are for viscometer one containing
826.88	0.10		a liquid of viscosity approximately
826.39	0.03		0.003 Jm^{-3}
826.60	0.00		0.000 0 m a
826.61	0.00		
826.38	0.03		$\boldsymbol{\delta}$ = standard deviation
826.40	0.03		

2.13 PURIFICATION OF FORMAMIDE

The most common method used for the purification of formamide is by fractional crystallisation⁵². This method however is very wasteful and not convenient for large quantities.

The most important impurities in commercial formamide are water and dissolved ions. Notley and Spiro⁵³ proposed a method of purification involving ion exchange resins and molecular sieves. This purification technique was tried but was not found to be practicable. The main problem was due to the use of molecular sieves as drying agent. It was found to be impossible to exclude the dust from these pellets even although care was taken not to disturb the sieve bed (the sieves were placed in a vertical column through which the formamide was eluted). Solvent treated in this way was then

- 33 -

filtered through a number 3 glass filter. Despite this the efflux times were continually found to be spurious and excessively long corresponding to impedance of flow in the capillary due to dust particles.

1. こうこうないのできたから至していたない、「おおおか」、そうできた。「おうたい」、こうになったが、「おお子のを使われておかい」、こうに、こうとも、こうと、

The method of purification adoped was to distil the formamide under reduced pressure. The still employed was equipped with ground glass joints throughout (it was necessary to wet these joints with formamide to ensure a good vacuum), and had a vertical fractionating column, 25 mm, broad and packed with glass helices (Fenske rings) to a height of 0.5 m. A pressure of less than 100 Nm⁻² was obtained by using a rotary oil pump and a liquid nitrogen trap. In each case the first 100 ml of distillate was discarded. Crude formamide from the suppliers (Fisons) was found to be neutral and was therefore used directly for distillation, however if a bottle once opened was left without being properly sealed the formamide soon became acidic and smelled of ammonia. This was assumed to be due to the hydrolysis of the formamide by water

 $\text{HCONH}_2 + \text{H}_2^0 \longrightarrow \text{HCOOH} + \text{NH}_3 \longrightarrow \text{NH}_4^+ + \text{HCOO}^-$

In this case the formamide was neutralised with dilute aqueous sodium hydroxide solution (bromothymol blue as indicator) and heated to 313K under reduced pressure. The neutralisation was repeated until the formamide remained neutral for more than five minutes when heated under reduced pressure. The formamide was then distilled in the usual way.

The formamide prepared in this way had a water content of 0.023%, that is 0.013 M. This water content could be further reduced to 0.0083 M by using molecular sieves, not however without the accompanying problems due to dust. The water content was estimated by the Karl Fischer method.

AND BALL AND A L

- 34 -

2.14 KARL FISCHER METHOD OF DETERMINING WATER CONTENT

The method employed for determining the water content of solutions was a direct titration with "Modified Karl Fischer Reagent"⁵⁴, based on the method suggested by BDH Ltd⁵⁵. The end point was determined electrometrically using a biamperometric or "dead stop" technique. In this method two small platinum wire electrodes are placed close together in the titration vessel and a potential of about 20 mV is impressed across them. With excess reagent present a current passes due to the reaction

With excess water there is no current. In the present study the current was detected on a microammeter placed between the electrodes as in fig. (2.12).

Fig. (2.12) CIRCUIT DIAGRAM FOR KARL FISCHER APPARATUS



The system was calibrated using known quantities of water delivered from a micro-syringe (Agla Ltd).

- 35 -



.3 .5 WATER CONCENTRATION/MOLALITY

- 36 -

The effect of water on the viscosity of formamide was studied by preparing solutions of traces of water in formamide and measuring the viscosity. The solutions were prepared by weight and then checked by means of a Karl Fischer titration. It can be seen from fig. (2.13) that even small traces of water lower the viscosity of formamide appreciably. Since in this work small changes in viscosity were sometimes under investigation (for the measurement of Jones-Dole B coefficients) it was desirable to protect the solutions as far as possible from the atmosphere. This was attempted by fixing calcium chloride tubes to the open ends of the viscometers, but was not successful due to a partial blocking of the drying-tubes which caused a partial back pressure which affected the hydrostatic head. The technique which was finally adopted was simply to stopper all three viscometer limbs when not in use. In this way the viscosity of formamide changes by less than 0.02% on standing overnight. Figs. (2.12-2.20) show sections of print-out which represent the efflux times (t) for formamide at 298.15 K. Fig. (2.14) represents the efflux times for freshly prepared formamide. Fig. (2.15) represents the situation after the viscometer has been left standing overnight unstoppered. It can be seen that the viscosity has fallen by approximately 0.125%. On leaving the solution overnight the viscosity again fell by about 0.125%, fig. (2.16). The viscometer was then allowed to run automatically for 48 hours continuously during which time the viscosity steadily decreased so that at the end of two days it had fallen by more than 0.5% fig. (2.16).

Another sample of this same formamide which had been sealed in the stock bottle for the duration of the above run was transferred to the same viscometer after cleaning and drying the latter, as

- 37 -

			-							101.2		. <i>c</i> h					
	Fig	(2.14)								Fi	g (2.	16)					
	Free	sh for	mami	de	•						•			1.24			
•	4 4 4 4 4	87654	8 8 8 8	 	000000		1 1 2 2	37647	28		4444444	ଚଚ୍ଚ ଦ୍ ତ୍ର ଦ୍ ତ୍ର	58858888888888888888888888888888888888	2002023	•••••	0921111	007-00
	Fig	(2.15)	1								4	1	8 1	000	•	1	7
	The	same	form	na n	nid	e					4	9 8	8 I 8 I	33	·	220	85
	the	next	day.								4	7 6	8 I 8 I	33	·	43	1 6
	444444444	21 98765432 1	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		555555555555555555555555555555555555555		32-3423-4 4	94740869311 2			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	5432-09876543	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	33330000044444		41301040690-000	1597207290272
2	•	•	0	1	Ų		7				4	2	8	14		0	I
	Fig	(2.17)									444	1 9	888	444	•	00	0000
	Ori	ginal	form	nar	uid	e	fro	m			4	. 7	8		•		7
	sea	led co	onta	ine	er.					•	4	65	8		:	2	S
•	44444	765432	8 8 8 8 8 8 8	 	055655		000000	005636	`	٠	4444444	3 2 1 9 8	8888888	444443	• • • • •		4064.96-1
=	4	1	. 8	1	6		1	0			44	6	8	14	:	220	047
	Fig	(2.18	١							•	4 4 4	5 4 3	88	4	•	3 2	0 7
	The	next	day	a	fte	er					4	2	8	4	•	2	4
	sta	nding	in	a	sea	ale	d			,	ъ <u>р</u> ,	. •	8	1 4	а м. а	2	ອ
•	vis	comet	er.														
	4 4	34 3 Q	8 8 8	1 1 1	5 5 5		3 7 7	0 2 7	1985								
-	4 For	! an ex	8 plan	1 1a.t	5 :io:	n (7 5	΄G the	e v	ari	ous	columns	see	Fig	5.2	.7.	

-38-

a francosta - an alterativa an anno sono

ම වේද දේශ ක්ෂිතු පානුණා මෙම පුණක පිහිනතාව දිනුම

\$	10
0-02-24-034	C
$ 0 - 0 \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	ont
	in
99070-059-02-232-32625445534444687766687666777786792	uec
45-0-2-4604573423600673600045284-0-0384403420845664735	
***************************************	0.
987654721 98765432-01 98765432-0-05432-065472-0987654321 9876543	
,	8
00000000-00-0	Ω
@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@	9
	3.7
00000-000000000545485077800000000-4888005665465565565565565565565565565565565565	9
7060407870004960046076657977708-50-695-549727-4-0694779858528	7

Fig(2.16) Continued.

•

-39-

previously described, and the efflux time measured, fig. (2.17). As can be seen from figs. (2.14 and 2.17) this formamide had only changed by 0.03%. The viscometer was then stoppered and left overnight and then run the following morning. The viscosity of the formamide had again only decreased marginally (less than 0.02%) as can be seen from fig. (2.18).

Protection from the atmosphere was therefore very important and viscometers were kept tightly stoppered unless in use. All solutions were kept in flasks with ground glass stoppers and joints and sealed with paraffin film.

As a further precaution, for each series of measurements, the stock solvent was run in each viscometer at each temperature before any measurements on the solutions under investigation were carried out. This solvent was again run in one viscometer at one temperature after the series of measurements was complete to check that no change had taken place.

2.15 PREPARATION OF SALTS

Lithium chloride was recrystallised from anhydrous methanol and vacuum dried in a desiccator over phosphorus pentoxide. Analytical grade sucrose was used for the calibration solutions after drying for three days over phosphorus pentoxide.

All other salts which were also of analytical grade were used without further purification after drying at 393 K for three days.

2.16 PREPARATION OF METHANOL

Analytical grade solvent was distilled under reduced

- 40 -

TTA TTAP (E-MEMAZINA) A A A MET TO TA TA A MET TO TA TA MET TA A MET TA A

and a take the

pressure (less than 100 N m^{-2}) in a still, similar to that used for the formamide. The middle fraction which came over at 337.6K was collected.

an reprint the set faire and

2.17 PREPARATION OF DIMETHYLFORMAMIDE

Laboratory reagent grade solvent (ex. Fisons) was left standing over anhydrous barium oxide for 48 hours and then distilled at 305.1-310.1K at 500-800 N m⁻² in a still, similar to the above. The first 100 ml of the distillate was rejected.

CHAPTER THREE

Max Sec.

a the device of the second state above the

3.1 Jones-Dole Formula

It has long been established that the viscosity of aqueous solutions of electrolytes is approximately a linear function of the concentration. This was pointed out by Sprung⁵⁶ who published measurements as early as 1876 on many salts over a range of temperatures. At high concentrations, however, this limiting law does not hold. Thus Arrhenius⁵⁷ showed that at concentrations higher than molal, the viscosity rose faster than the concentration. He proposed the relationship:

$$\gamma = A^{c} \qquad (3.1)$$

where \mathcal{N} is the relative viscosity ($\frac{\gamma \text{ SOLUTION}}{\gamma \text{ SOLVENT}}$), and A is a constant for a given salt and temperature. This relationship was tested by Reher⁵⁸ and Wagner⁵⁹ and found to hold within a few tenths of a percent between 0.125 and 0.5 molal and within approximately 1% up to one molal.

While most salts give solutions with viscosity greater than that of water at all concentrations, many can effect a marked decrease in the viscosity of water at certain concentrations. The latter effect cannot be described by the Arrhenius equation given above. It was suggested by Sutherland⁶⁰ that the depolymerisation of "triple water molecules" by the dissolved salts might cause this diminution in viscosity.

In 1906 Einstein⁶¹ deduced from the principles of hydrodynamics that if the solute could be regarded as being made up of spherical incompressible uncharged particles which were large in comparison with the molecules of the solvent, the viscosity of the solution would be given by

$$\gamma = 1 + 2.5 \phi$$
 (3.2)

where ϕ is the total volume of the solute particles per unit volume of solution. This treatment was extended by Finkelstein⁶² to

- 42 -

solutions of binary electrolytes in polar solvents. He investigated mathematically the effect on the viscosity of the relaxation times of the solvent dipoles and concluded that the charge effect of the ions on the polar solvent would increase the viscosity proportionally to the concentration. Neither of these theories could account for the fact that some solutes diminish the viscosity of water.

Using an improved experimental technique, Grüneisen⁶³ extended viscosity measurements to greater dilution than those of his predecessors. Although he found that for sucrose the linear relationship was valid, he noted that for electrolytes, deviation from the linear law became more pronounced at low concentrations. Instead of remaining linear at low concentration the curve exhibited a negative curvature which he demonstrated by plotting $\frac{7-1}{2}$ against c to give a curve rather than the expected straight line, The viscosity always increased initially with concentration. This "Grüneisen effect" was found to hold for all the salts investigated, whether they increased or decreased the viscosity of water, and was confirmed by later workers, especially Schneider, Appelby and Merton⁶⁴. The idea that deviations from Stokes' Law for the conductance of any salt was due to incomplete dissociation was still widely held at this time and Grüneisen proposed the following equation to explain his viscosity results

$$\gamma = 1 + Aic + B(1-i)c + Cc^2$$
 (3.3)

where i is the degree of dissociation as computed from the conductivity and A, B and C are constants for any given salt and temperature. A was taken to represent the effect of the "friction" of theions on the water, B that of the unionised molecules on the water and C that of the ions and molecules on each other.

In 1929 Grinnell Jones and Malcolm Dole²⁰, who were interested in accurate viscosity data at low concentrations in connection with studies of electrolytic conductance, found that the Grüneisen effect

And a second second second second second second second second second

- 43 -

was magnified at even greater dilution, and at the same time demonstrated that the fluidity ($\frac{1}{\gamma}$)/concentration curve has a simpler form than the viscosity/concentration curve. Although the principal effect of the dissolved salts on the viscosity was proportional to the concentration of the electrolyte, they suggested that another effect, relatively more important at low concentrations, would have to be present to account for the negative curvature. By considering the Debye-Hückel theory of interionic attraction which suggests that the electrical interactions between ions in solution tend to establish and maintain a preferred arrangement of the ions which resists distortion and therefore "stiffens" the solution with a consequent increase in the viscosity, they attempted to derive an equation which would account for the Grüneisen effect. Although they did not succeed, they inferred that the effect would be proportional to the square root of the concentration and suggested an empirical equation of the form

$$\emptyset = 1 + A\sqrt{c} + Bc$$
 (3.4)
where \emptyset is the relative fluidity $\frac{1}{\eta \text{ SOLUTION}/\eta \text{ SOLVENT}}$ and A was
expected to be negative for all electrolytes and zero for non-
electrolytes. Falkenhagen and Dole²¹ then attacked the problem
deductively and by considering a binary salt for which the anion and
cation have the same mobility in solution, they obtained a partial
solution which they regarded as a limiting law; this was

$$\eta = 1 + A \sqrt{c} \qquad (3.5)$$

หรือแก่สุดแหน่ การแหว่า การจะกำแก่ 15 กระที่น่าวไห้นี้จัดแบบแบบกลไม่มีการก็ (No. 15 หังเองซิสัตรส์ไ

The A in this relationship is the same as the A in the Jones-Dole equation (3.4) with reversed sign and is considered to be a measure of the ion-ion interaction.

Falkenhagen⁶⁵ later derived an equation of the same form but with a more explicit evaluation of the constant A, applicable to any salt with ions of any valence and any mobility. In 1932

Sec. Barrellons. Sec.

- 44 -

and the second of the second of the second second

Onsager and Fuoss⁶⁶ published a comprehensive paper on the theory of irreversible processes in electrolyte solutions in which they developed a general equation to describe viscosity for a system containing more than two species of ions.

to a sec

Jones and Talley⁵⁰ (1933) suggested that for salts which diminish the viscosity of water it was best to use the relationship

$$\eta = 1 + A \sqrt{c} \pm Bc \qquad (3.7)$$

where A and B have the same value as in the fluidity equation except for reversed signs. This only holds for concentrations much less than molar and where the B coefficient is small and where the experimental error in B is relatively large. In the present measurements the minimum experimental error in B is about 1% and even although the B coefficients are much larger than those in water equation (3.7) is still considered to be valid. This can be seen by taking the reciprocal of both sides of equation (3.4) and considering the magnitude of the terms.

$$1/\emptyset = 1/(1+A\sqrt{c} + Bc)$$
 (3.8)

also

$$= \frac{1 - A\sqrt{c} - Bc}{(1 + A\sqrt{c} + Bc)(1 - A\sqrt{c} - Bc)}$$

 $= 1/\emptyset$

$$= \frac{1 - A\sqrt{c} - Bc}{1 - A^2c - 2ABc^{3/2} - B^2c^2}$$
(3.10)

(3.9)

For sodium chloride at 298 K in formamide A = 0.0064, (by calculation) and B = 0.594 (by experiment).

Consider the terms in the denominator of equation (3.10) for a maximum value of 0.1 molal concentration,

(i)
$$A^{2}c = 0.0064^{2} \times 0.1$$

= 4.0 x 10⁻⁶
(ii) $2ABc^{3/2} = 2 \times 0.0064 \times 0.594 \times 0.1^{3/2}$

- 45 -

(iii)
$$B^2 c^2 = 0.594^2 \times 0.1^2$$

= 3.5 x 10⁻³

<u>ie</u> the denominator is 0.42% too large in equation (3.7), but since the value of B is accurate to less than 1% the equation is quite valid.

3.2 THE JONES -DOLE B COEFFICIENT

Whereas the A coefficient of the Jones-Dole equation adequately describes the change in the viscosity of solutions of electrolytes up to concentrations of about 0.002 molal by considering only the ion-ion electrostatic interactions, this effect is rapidly swamped at high concentrations by the linear term which extends the fit of the Jones-Dole equation to concentrations greater than 0.1 molal for aqueous solutions and somewhat less than 0.1 molal in non-aqueous solutions.

Gurney¹⁴ coined the term "ionic co-sphere" to refer to the spherical region of solvent which encloses the ion and which is somewhat modified by the presence of the ion. Each ion is enclosed in its own co-sphere while the remainder of the solvent between the ion does not differ in any way from ordinary pure solvent. He considered that the viscosity B coefficient represents the contributions of the co-spheres of the ions to the viscosity, and that in dilute solution the contributions from the positive and negative ions would be independent and therefore additive. The problem was therefore to determine the individual contributions of the ions (which he called the ionic B coefficients), from the values of the B coefficients obtained for each salt.

3.3 IONIC B COEFFICIENTS

In 1934 these B coefficients were assigned individual ionic values. Cox and Wolfenden⁶⁷ argued that if the solvated ions

- 46 -

in solution behaved as rigid spheres (the radius being that of the ion plus its molecules of solvation) then the kinetic entities would be large enough to obey Stokes' Law even when the solute particle itself was as small as the lithium ion, Li⁺. The ionic mobility of this ion in water is less than 3% smaller than the ionic mobility of the iodate ion, IO_3^- , and hence in accordance with Stokes' Law the radius of the hydrated Li⁺ ion must be less than 3% larger. If the hydrated ions are considered to be spherical then the volume of the hydrated Li⁺ ion would be nearly 10% greater than the volume of the hydrated IO_3^- ion. In support of this they cited the fact that the temperature coefficient of the mobilities of these two ions is not far from the value demanded by Stokes' Law, which, it was concluded, they therefore obeyed satisfactorily. Since the Einstein expression,

$$\eta = \eta_0 (1 + 2.5 \emptyset)$$
 (3.11)

where \emptyset is the volume increase due to the dissolution of the solute particles in unit volume of solvent, is derived from Stokes' Law (and since it was assumed that these two ions obey Stokes' Law) the argument leads directly to the prediction that the B coefficient of Li⁺ must be nearly 10% greater than the B coefficient of 10_3^- . From these postulates Cox and Wolfenden assigned the values of 0.14₆ and 0.13₆ to Li⁺ and 10_3^- respectively for aqueous solutions at 291 K. The values for the other ions followed from this choice assuming the ionic B coefficients were additive.

Gurney¹⁴ approached the problem of assigning different ionic B coefficient values from a slightly more fundamental point of view. The mobility of an ion and its temperature coefficient are almost the only quantities for which experimental values can be obtained separately for anions and cations. Gurney plotted the temperature coefficient of ionic mobility which he defined as $C_{T_1}^{T_2} = \frac{u_2 \gamma_2}{u_1 \gamma_1}$

- 47 -





Equivalent conductivity at 291 K

Fig. (3.2)



(On scale of 0.0 for H⁺)

and the second section as

against the equivalent conductivity of the ions at T_2 . His argument was that for any ions obeying Stokes' Law this ratio would be equal to unity. He obtained a graph of the form in fig. (3.1). For most species it was found that $C_{T_2}^{T_1}$ was appreciably less than unity; with a rise in temperature the mobility increased somewhat less rapidly than expected from Stokes' Law. It can be seen that ions with an abnormally high mobility, have at the same time an abnormally low temperature coefficient of mobility, and that the atomic ions have values lying near to a straight line. This he explained in terms of the ions having a region, or co-sphere of water in which the local structure has been loosened, to increase the random motion of the ion due to the Brownian effect. This would also lead to an increase in its mobility under an applied electric field and would mean that with the rise in temperature the freedom of movement of the ion would be affected less than otherwise.

The important point to note from fig. (3.1), however, is that the points for K⁺ and Cl⁻ were found to lie very close together. This tended to rule out the possibility of the small value of B for KCl in water being due to K⁺ and Cl⁻ having large values but of opposite sign. Gurney therefore considered that the value of the B coefficient for KCl (-0.0140) could be split into two equal contributions of ~0.007. The value obtained for the lithium ion (Li+) in water by this method is 0.147 which is in very close agreement with that obtained by Cox and Wolfenden, namely 0.146. Gurney explained negative B coefficients in terms of an increase in the fluidity in the co-spheres around the ion; conversely a positive B coefficient would indicate a decrease in the fluidity of the solvent in the co-sphere of the ion. He further considered the entropy changes which occur in the co-spheres of several ions in water and methanol to see if a relationship existed between the B coefficient and the degree of order or disorder about the ion.

hana shuk bi sinka kara ti ji karta na kasanga képési

- 49 -

1997—1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年

Such a relationship is illustrated in fig. (3.2) and in both cases it is seen that the ions with the greatest ionic entropies are those with the most negative viscosity B coefficients.

On comparing the results obtained with those shown in fig. (3.1), Gurney concluded that the striking resemblance was due to the fact that all four of the ionic properties which are involved in these diagrams are largely dependent on the same factor, namely the degree of order or disorder in the ionic co-spheres.

Kaminsky⁶⁸ writing in 1957 commented that since the B coefficients used by Cox and Wolfenden were in some cases subject to an uncertainty of about 15% the exact additivity could not be regarded as having been established. In a similar way to Gurney he considered that since the ionic mobilities of the K⁺ and Cl⁻ ions differed by only 3% over the temperature range investigated (288% to 315.5 K) then the ions might be considered to have the same effect on the viscosity and therefore the ionic B coefficient for K⁺ would equal that for Cl⁻.

3.4 TEMPERATURE DEPENDENCE OF THE JONES-DOLE B COEFFICIENT

Kaminsky found that the temperature coefficient of the viscosity B coefficient could be either positive or negative <u>ie</u>, $\frac{dB}{dT} \gtrsim 0$. This was contrary to the general opinion^{69,70} that $\frac{dB}{dT}$ is always positive.

From his experimental evidence he proposed three rules to govern the behaviour of ionic B coefficients.

I. Within a group of the periodic table (alkali metals, alkaline earths, halogens) the ionic B coefficients would decrease as the crystal ionic radius increases.

II. Within a group of the periodic table the temperature coefficient of the ionic B coefficient should increase (from negative

and share for the second second state and second as a second second state of the state of the state of the second s

- 50 -

الله الذي المحمد المحمد التي المركز المركز المحمد المحمد المحمد المحمد المحمد المحمد المحمد المحمد ا

or slightly positive values) as the crystal ionic radius increases.

for the platestic states as shown with the platest states and the second states of the platest states and the s

III. Only cations exhibit negative temperature coefficients.

Kaminsky further suggested that for cations the influence of hydration on the ionic B coefficient is dominant (apart from certain effects due to structure disruption). The hydration effect increases as the ionic radius decreases and the surface charge density goes up and results in an increase in the viscosity because of the increased 'particle' size. At very high intensities of the ionic fields a long range ordering effect of the ion on the solvent molecules becomes noticeable. This effect again causes an increase in viscosity and applies the ions Li⁺, Be²⁺, and Mg²⁺.

The anions are considered to cause chiefly structure breaking of the solvent, an effect which gains in importance as the crystal ionic radius goes up, and this effect lowers the viscosity.

As the temperature of water is increased Kaminsky considered that the ice-like structure of the water breaks down and consequently the contribution which certain solute ions make to the disruption of the solvent structure decreases. The viscosity changes which are due to this effect of the ions diminish therefore in importance relative to those caused solely by the rise in temperature; the ionic B coefficients become less negative and $\frac{dB}{dT}$ is therefore positive. He also suggested that the hydration effect may increase the viscosity more strongly at higher temperatures because the concentration of single water molecules is greater so that the condition of attachment of water molecules to the ion may be more favourable.

On the other hand, the long range ordering of the solvent which is important for strongly hydrated ions (eg Li⁺, Be²⁺, Mg²⁺) diminishes at higher temperatures because of increasing thermal agitation. For these ions $\frac{dB}{dT}$ would be expected to be negative. It should be noted that over the temperature range which he examined

and a second of the second

1 Strathat ton

- 51 -

the so-called first hydration shell is largely temperature independent⁷¹.

For predominantly structure breaking ions (eg Cl, Br, I) a rise in temperature is accompanied by a less rapid decrease of the solution viscosity ($\frac{\gamma}{s}$) than that of the solvent viscosity ($\frac{\gamma}{c}$). This is because the introduction of the ions into the solution is considered to have already brought about a certain amount of structure disruption. The largest, positive, temperature coefficient of the ionic B coefficient which he found was therefore for the ions with the strongest structure breaking influence because the numerator in the ratio $\frac{\gamma_s}{\gamma_0}$ can not decrease much further as the temperature increases but the denominator can.

If the structure breaking effect decreases and the hydration of the ions increases (eg for the alkali metals in the sequence Cs^+ , Rb^+ , K^+ , Na^+ , Li^+) then a stage is reached when the numerator and denominator (in $\frac{\gamma s}{\gamma_0}$) decrease in a comparable fashion (eg Na⁺), so that the large positive temperature coefficient at the beginning of the series grows smaller and ultimately approaches zero.

As already discussed for strongly hydrated ions $\frac{dB}{dT}$ was expected to be negative because of the destruction of the long range ordering of the solvent due to the ionic field, by thermal motion.

Kaminsky then plotted B ion against temperature for certain ions and compared it with plots of apparent molal heat capacities and apparent molal volumes of the same ions against temperature. The three quantities showed a very similar temperature dependence. Eigen and Wicks⁷² had already interpreted the temperature coefficient of the heat capacity and apparent molal volumes by a similar argument.

Negative B coefficients have only been found with solutes dissolved in solvents capable of associating in three dimensional

- and the office of the second

- 52 -

and the second secon

units.

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Frank and Wen ¹³ (1957) proposed a simple model for small ions in water which can explain negative B coefficients. The first effect which a small ion can have is the immobilisation of the dipolar solvent molecules which are nearest neighbours to the ions themselves. The field strength about a spherical ion of radius 0.2-0.3 nm in a medium of dielectric constant 80, is in the order of 10⁸ V m⁻¹ and it seems to be generally agreed that in aqueous solutions of ions not larger than Cs⁺ and I⁻ the nearest neighbour water molecules are always essentially immobilised by direct ion-dipole interaction. This region, Frank and Wen called A, and considered that the increase in the viscosity of water caused by dissolved LiCl could be taken as experimental justification of the above effect.

However as discussed above, negative B coefficients mean that the viscosity of water will be decreased. To explain this and some "anomalous" entropy data¹² a second region, B, was proposed in which the water structure was suggested to be "loosened" or rather less ice-like.

Lastly a third region, C, was considered in which the water structure was undisturbed by the ion (Fig. 3.3).

The cause of the structure breaking effect observed in region B was said to be due to the approximate balance between the two orientating influences which act on any given water molecule. One of these is the "normal" structure orientating influence of neighbouring water molecules; the other is the orientating influence upon the dipoles of the spherically symmetrical ionic field. The latter influence predominates in region A and the former in region C in which significantly more orientational disorder should be present than in either A or C.

Frank and Evans imagined that the region A composed of nearest

- 53 -

ulling a the second first the susceptible second second second second second second second second second second

Fig. (3.3)

Frank and Wen's model for the structure modifications produced by a small ion in solution



A = region of immobilisation of solvent molecules

B = region of structure breaking

C = region of "normal" solvent structure

- 54 -

neighbour water molecules always existed, and that an ion which was small, or multiply charged, or both (eg Li⁺, F⁻, Mg²⁺) might induce additional structure (entropy loss) of some sort beyond the first water layer. It was considered that such an encroachment on region B might almost extinguish that region and would certainly tend towards a net structure making influence as is observed for these ions. They remarked that the outward orientation of like dipoles in all of region A should always produce at least some disorder in a region B but that large singly charged ions (I⁻, Cs⁺) exhibit more net structure breaking than this alone could account for.

An additional type of solute-water interaction was then considered. This was equivalent to the structure making influence of non polar solutes, or of non polar groups in solute molecules, inferred by Frank and Evans¹² from entropies of hydration and confirmed by various later workers 73-76 by various experimental means. Consider fig. (3.3) as the radius of the ion is gradually increased. As the radius is increased the surface charge density will decrease and eventually when this falls below a certain figure the region A will cease to exist. The next region to disappear will be B when the surface charge density becomes too small for it to compete with the "natural" structure of the water. But now a new effect is considered to become important which is observed when krypton¹² or ethane¹² or the hydrocarbon tail of amyl alcohol¹² is dissolved in water. The effect of these is that the water adjacent to the nonpolar groups becomes more "ice-like" than normal, and the effect is roughly proportional to the volume of the non polar region.

Frank and Wen¹³ explained this by postulating that the formation of hydrogen bonds in water is a co-operative phenomenon so that in most cases when one bond forms, several (perhaps many) will form and when one bond breaks, then, typically a whole cluster will "dissolve". This gave the now famous picture of "flickering

The Pressence Samerry

- 55 -

and the second second

1. 2. 64

5. 14 West

2 38 8 1 - 1 A.A.

clusters" of various sizes and shapes" jumping to attention and then "relaxing at ease.

In this picture the statistical degree of "ice-likeness" of the sample is proportional to the average size and to the average half life of the clusters. A cluster will come into existance when a volume element of suitable size and shape suffers an energy fluctuation of such magnitude as to outweigh the disruptive influences at the boundaries of the element, and will dissolve when these disruptive influences - torques and displacements - succeed in transmitting into the cluster the necessary energy of 'melting'. A nonpolar solute particle or group is considered to be relatively incapable of producing or of transmitting such disruptive influences on account of the relative feebleness of the electrostatic interactions into which it can enter. An ice-like patch should therefore be able to form more readily in a volume element bounded by a non-polar solute particle, and once formed should have a longer half-life than "normal" by reason of having half its boundary protected from attack. This would consequently produce extra "ice-likeness" in solution, A word of caution has been mentioned by Emerson and Holzer 77 against too literal interpretation of the above theory. These authors have successfully pointed out that qualitative arguments based on the flickering cluster concept are not unambiguous even in the simple, well established case of the reported increase in structure of D_oO compared with H₀O,

Stokes and Mills⁷⁸ (1965) reviewed the ionic B coefficients obtained by Kaminsky and others in both water and non-aqueous solvents. They considered that the important qualitative explanations which had been advanced in terms of ion-solvent interaction were more significant if considered for individual ionic coefficients. They restated the trends noted by Kaminsky,

Carl Sale & Carl

- 56 -

ى ئىسىدىدىكى ئىشتۇرىكى ئىشلارىدىنىڭ ئىڭ بىڭ بىلەر يايا ئارىكى بىلەر ئىكىدىدى بىلار بىلىك بىلەر بىلەر بىلەر بىر

adding that molecular ions such as tetraalkylammonium ions and the picrate ion had large positive B ion values and emphasising that observed viscosity changes take place as a result of competition between various effects occurring in the neighbourhood of the ion.

The viscosity of a dilute electrolyte solution was equated to that of the solvent plus contributions from four other sources in the following manner: -

$$\gamma = \gamma^{\circ} + \gamma^{*} + \gamma^{E} + \gamma^{A} + \gamma^{D} \qquad (3.12)$$

where γ° represented the viscosity of the pure solvent, γ^{*} represented the effect on the viscosity of the coulombic attraction between the ions, γ^{E} represented the viscosity increment arising from shape and size effects (of the solute), γ^{A} was the effect due to the alignment of polar molecules by the ionic field and γ^{D} the viscosity change due to the disruption of the solvent structure.

Substitution into the Jones-Dole equation (3.7) gave

 $\gamma^* + \gamma^E + \gamma^A + \gamma^D = \gamma^o (A \sqrt{c} + Bc)$ (3.13) and elimination of the ionic interaction from both sides led to

$$\gamma^{\rm E} + \gamma^{\rm A} + \gamma^{\rm D} = \gamma^{\rm o}_{\rm Bc} \qquad (3.14)$$

At a given concentration the B coefficient could therefore be interpreted in terms of a competition between these specialised viscosity effects. Small and highly charged cations such as Li⁺ and Mg²⁺ were considered to strongly orientate water molecules to the extent that they are regarded as having a primary sheath of firmly attached molecules which move with them as a kinetic entity (see Nightingale⁷⁹) and $\gamma^{\rm E}$ was therefore considered to be large because the ion and its solvation sheathcould be considered as a single particle. At room temperature for these ions it is possible that water molecules beyond the first layer would be orientated to some extent to give a positive $\gamma^{\rm A}$. It was suggested that the

- 57 -

in straffinging interface the strain for the strain strain state and strain strain strain strain strain strain
sum of γ^{A} and γ^{E} would far outweigh the decrease due to γ^{D} which for these ions was considered to be small because the fixed outward pointing hydrogen atoms which were considered to fit reasonably well into the tetrahedral water structure. For this class of ions therefore $\gamma^{E} + \gamma^{A} \gg \gamma^{D}$ and B would be fairly large and positive.

By a similar argument Stokes and Mills concluded that ionic B coefficients for the large ions in any group of the periodic table would be negative because for them both $\gamma^{\rm E}$ (because of the relatively weak surface charge density these ions were considered to be "bare") and $\gamma^{\rm A}$ would be smaller than for small highly charged ions while $\gamma^{\rm D}$ would be great. For this class therefore it was probable that $\gamma^{\rm E} + \gamma^{\rm A} < \gamma^{\rm D}$.

Ions of intermediate size were considered to have small ionic B coefficients because $\eta^{E} + \eta^{A} \simeq \eta^{D}$ (eg K⁺) while large molecular ions such as tetraalkylammonium ions were expected to have large η^{E} because of their size. η^{A} and η^{D} were considered small and therefore $\eta^{E} + \eta^{A} > \eta^{D}$ and again the ionic B coefficients would be positive and large.

These terms were then used to explain the temperature dependence of the ionic B coefficients. As discussed before, negative ionic B coefficients have, associated with them, fairly large η^{D} . As the temperature is raised η^{D} becomes smaller although η^{E} would remain constant and η^{A} might also fall. Eventually $\eta^{A} + \eta^{E}$ might exceed η^{D} and B would become positive (as was found for K⁺ by Kaminsky⁶⁸).

The negative temperature coefficient of B for small, highly charged ions, was also explained by associating a large γ^A with orientation of solvent beyond the first layer. With increased thermal motion γ^A was considered to decrease and therefore result in an ionic B coefficient still positive, but smaller.

- 58 -

医帕耳马克氏白细胞炎 化苯氨基乙酸

3.5 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

B coefficients have been measured in many non-aqueous solvents. With the exception of the highly associated solvents, glycerol, some dihydric alcohols, and sulphuric acid they have all been found to be positive. In other associated solvents such as the alcohols and N-methylamides the fact that only positive B coefficients have been detected has been attributed to the linear nature of the association of these molecules. In other words negative B coefficients have only been found in solvents which are capable of forming three dimensional aggregates by hydrogen bonding.

Formamide, which is known to be an associated solvent, has the ability to form three hydrogen bonds per molecule. It is a good electrolytic solvent (with a dielectric constant greater than water) and is thus a very interesting medium for the study of electrochemical processes³⁷. Because of the possibility of association in three dimensions it would seem possible that important structure breaking effects might be present when salts are dissolved in formamide, and that these could lead to small or even negative values of the B coefficient.

The relative viscosities of solutions of LiCl, LiBr, NaCl, NaBr, KCl and KBr in formamide were measured at 298.15 K over the concentration range 0.005 to 0.1 molal. The relative viscosities of the latter four salts were also measured at 308.16, 318.15 and 323.15 K. From the Jones-Dole equation

$$m = 1 + A\sqrt{c} + Bc$$

 $\frac{\gamma-1}{\sqrt{c}}$ was plotted against \sqrt{c} to give the B coefficient. The B \sqrt{c} coefficients were calculated by computer using the method of least squares. γ -1 is called the specific viscosity ["EETA SP." in figures (3.4-3.12)]. Fig. (3.4) shows the Jones-Dole plot for

- 59 -

el esté fuit de la comparte de la comparte en la comparte de la comparte de la comparte de la comparte de la c

LiCl and LiBr at 298.15 K, figs. (3.5-3.8) show similar plots for the other four salts at the temperatures 298.15, 308.15, 318.15 and 323.15 K respectively. In all the graphs and tables the temperature was Kelvin and the concentration in molality. The next set of graphs, figs. (3.9-3.12) shows the Jones-Dole plots for each salt at all temperatures.

بداؤه مرزرين ويتأفي والابراني والجريب والتعالية وترزر ويصيبنا معمانا وترزي والاربان والكافليكي

Tables (3.1-3.10) list the data used to plot the above graphs where $X = \frac{\gamma-1}{\sqrt{c}}$, $Y = \sqrt{c}$, Y CALC is the value of Y recalculated for the best straight line determined by the method of least squares and the DEVIATION is defined as (Y-Y CALC).

The first set of tables (3.1-3.6) combines all earlier measurements which were made at 298.15 K for each system. The second set tables (3.7-3.10), shows the values used in figs. (3.5-3.12). Table (3.12) gives the calculated slopes and intercepts from figs. (3.4-3.8) and hence the Jones-Dole B coefficients. The B coefficients for 298.15 K were calculated by considering all the measurements made at this temperature, see table (3.13).

TABLE 3.13

	298.15 К	308.15 к	318.15 K	323.15 K
LiCl	0.54			
LiBr	0.604			
NaC1	0.594	0.539	0.497	0.487
NaBr	0.560	0.534	0.488	0,468
KC1	0.404	0.389	0.376	0.359
KBr	0.378	0.340	0.341	0.345

Calculated B coefficients in formamide

Table (3.11) brings together the gradients and intercepts calculated for all the salts from the data in tables (3.1-3.6).

- 60 -

Key to Figs. (3.4) to (3.12)

Fig. (3.4)		Represents lithium chloride.
	Ř	Represents lithium bromide,
Figs. (3,5-3,8)	略	Represents sodium chloride.
	0	Represents sodium bromide .
	۵	Represents potassium chloride
	8	Represents potassium bromide.
Figs. (3.9-3.12)	密	Represents 298,15 K,
	4	Represents 308.15 K.
ę.	ତ୍ର	Represents 318.15 K.
	153	Represents 323.15 K -

Table	3.1	Early da	ta LiCl	at	298.15	К.
Table	3.2	Early da	ta LiBr	at	298.15	K,
Table	3.3	Early da	ta NaCl	at	298.15	K.
Table	3.4	Early da	ta NaBr	at	298.15	ĸ.
Table	3.5	Early da	ta KCl	at 2	298.15	K.
Table	3.6	Early da	ta KBr	at :	298.15	К,

DATA used for figs. (3.9) to (3.12)

Table	3.7	NaC1	, at	: four	• temperatures	•
Table	3.8	NaBı	r at	four	• temperatures	
Table	3.9	KCI	at	four	temperatures	•
Table	3.10	KBr	at	four	temperatures	

- 61 -

20 DJe -46 DY 22 +

*





and the a strand a water for any water the second









.

· · · · · · · · ·



to the second second



<u>, in the Constant of Constants</u> and Standard and the

这一边不在这些这种情况的基本和中的意义上是



•



Table 3.1

X	Y	YCALC	DEVIATION
.342100E 00 .297100E 00 .242800E 00 .172670E 00 .1071002 00	.179420E 00 .168100E 00 .138200E 00 .949500E-01 .548900E-01	.1871585 00 .162537E 00 .132828E 00 .944572E-01 .585818E-01	-0.7738 = -02 0.5563 = -02 0.5372 = -02 0.4928 = -03 -0.3692 = -02
Table 3.2		•	3-
.320070E 00 .276100E 00 .225900E 00 .160400E 00 .113930E 00 .803000E-01	.156400E 00 .132440E 00 .103850E 00 .554800E-01 .351800E-01 .133400E-01	.157712E 00 .131132E 00 .100786E 00 .611908E-01 .330994E-01 .127699E-01	-0.1312E-02 0.1308E-02 0.3064E-02 -0.5711E-02 0.2081E-02 0.5701E-03
Table 3.3			
295700E 00 245000E 00 199400E 00 149000E 00 141400E 00 911000E-01 705000E-01 986500E-01 876999E-01 318800E-01 209030E-01 153000E-01 102000E-01 274030E-01 315000E-01	<pre>.183340E 00 .147C4 JE J0 .11802 JE J0 .90570 JE J1 .87160 JE J1 .65210 JE J1 .65210 JE J1 .55780 JE J1 .59510 JE J1 .5130 JE J1 .5130 JE J1 .15610 JE J1 .17140 JE J1 .1225 J0 JE J1 .1750 JD JE J1 .195C J0 JE J1</pre>	.177880E 00 .147780E 00 .120707E 00 .907840E-01 .862718E-01 .700043E-01 .564085E-01 .441782E-01 .608910E-01 .5438992-01 .147304E-01 .114057E-01 .837779E-02 .185895E-01 .210237E-01	0.5459E-02 -0.7397E-03 -0.2687E-02 -0.2140E-03 0.8882E-03 -0.4794E-02 -0.6285E-03 -0.6682E-03 -0.1381E-02 -0.3090E-02 -0.1932E-04 0.8796E-03 0.5734E-02 0.3872E-02 -0.1090E-02 -0.1524E-02
Table 3.4	•	- 4	
.335900E 00 .287700E 00 .235500E 00 .173100E 00 .102400E 00 .301200E 00 .245200E 00 .191000E 00 .146000E 00 .911000E-01 .739999E-01 .306500E 00 .264400E 00 .231400E 00 .164200E 00 .969400E-01 .516700E-01	. 192100 E 00 . 163600E 00 . 135800 E 00 . 102000E 00 . 649300 E-01 . 174400E 00 . 138210 E 00 . 138210 E 00 . 138000 E-01 . 590900 E-01 . 462700 E-01 . 174900 E 00 . 152260 E 00 . 135670 E 00 . 951200 E-01 . 536000 E-01 . 305300 E-01	- 192048E 00 1650792 00 - 135871E 00 - 135871E 00 - 10956E 00 - 613969E-01 - 172632E 00 - 141298E 00 - 141298E 00 - 141298E 00 - 141298E 00 - 141298E 00 - 141298E 00 - 1550742E-01 - 455061E-01 - 15598E 00 - 152041E 00 - 133577E 00 - 959761E-01 - 583418E-01 - 330117E-01	$\begin{array}{c} 0.5180 \pm -04 \\ -0.1479 \pm -02 \\ -0.7099 \pm -04 \\ 0.1044 \pm -02 \\ 0.3533 \pm -02 \\ 0.1768 \pm -02 \\ 0.1768 \pm -02 \\ 0.2128 \pm -02 \\ 0.2128 \pm -02 \\ 0.2193 \pm -02 \\ 0.2193 \pm -02 \\ 0.7639 \pm -03 \\ 0.7639 \pm -03 \\ 0.2185 \pm -03 \\ 0.2185 \pm -03 \\ 0.2093 \pm -02 \\ -0.8562 \pm -03 \\ -0.4742 \pm -02 \\ -0.2482 \pm -02 \\ \end{array}$

-71-

Table 3.5

х	Y	YCALC	DEVIATION
X .316000E 00 .273400E 00 .228100E 00 .154240E 00 .101180E 00 .309780E 00 .269070E 00 .219750E 00 .219750E 00 .152640E 00 .968300E-01 .720000E-01 .481500E-01 .299000E 00 .261800E 00 .214400E 00 .128100E 00 .993000E-01 .709000E-01 .709000E-01	Y 136800E 00 117410E 00 100780E 00 709700E-01 470600E-01 132350E 00 111970E 00 902600E-01 669600E-01 493200E-01 132660E 00 115340E 00 944500E-01 825100E-01 825100E-01 399100E-01	YCALC 135583E 00 118229E 00 997738E-01 696841E-01 480681E-01 133049E 00 116465E 00 963721E-01 690323E-01 462960E-01 361805E-01 128658E 00 113503E 00 941926E-01 781415E-01 590350E-01 473022E-01	DEVIATION 0.1217E-02 -0.8186E-03 0.1006E-02 0.1286E-02 -0.1008E-02 -0.6994E-03 -0.4495E-02 -0.6112E-02 -0.6112E-02 -0.2072E-02 0.3024E-02 0.4761E-02 0.1426E-02 0.4002E-02 0.4002E-02 0.4837E-02 0.2574E-03 0.4368E-02 0.4332E-02 0.4178E-02
.331000E 00 .290000E 00 .235800E 00 .166800E 00 .119900E 00 .804999E-01 .312600E 00 .271700E 00 .228100E 00 .159700E 00 .134300E 00 .97900CE-01 .73230QE-01	.131810E 00 .1141102 00 .976599E-01 .682400E-01 .517300E-01 .365800E-01 .124740E 00 .109310E 00 .921600E-01 .650400E-01 .578500E-01 .450600E-01 .334400E-01	.131385E 00 .115902E 00 .954352E-01 .693794E-01 .516692E-01 .367910E-01 .124436E 00 .108992E 00 .925276E-01 .666984E-01 .571069E-01 .433616E-01 .340457E-01	0.4253E-03 -0.1792E-02 0.2225E-02 -0.1139E-02 0.6082E-04 -0.2110E-03 0.3036E-03 0.3182E-03 -0.3676E-03 -0.1658E-02 .0.7431E-03 0.1698E-02 -0.6057E-03_

-72-

Table 3.7	298.15K		
x	Y	YCALC	DEVIATION
.2957005 00 .245000E 00 .199400E 00 .149000E 00 .141400E 00 .114000E 00 .911000E-01 .705000E-01	.183340E 00 .147040E 00 .118020E 00 .905700E-01 .871600E-01 .652100E-01 .557800E-01 .435100E-01	.180242E 00 .149075D 00 .121044E 00 .900611E-01 .853891E-01 .685455E-01 .544681E-01 .418046E-01	0.3098E-02 -0.2035E-02 -0.3024E-02 0.5089E-03 0.1771E-02 -0.3335E-02 0.1312E-02 0.1705E-02
	308.15K		i
.295700E 00 .245000E 00 .199400E 00 .149000E 00 .141400E 00 .141400E 00 .114C00E 00 .911000E-01 .705000E-01	.168280 E 00 .136940 E 00 .111130 E 00 .843900 E - 01 .870799 E - 01 .649000 E - 01 .556000 E - 01 .461500 E - 01	. 165750E 00 .138401E 00 .113802E 00 .866147E-01 .825150E-01 .677344E-01 .553812E-01 .442688E-01	0.2530E-02 -0.1461E-02 -0.2672E-02 -0.22253-02 0.4565E-02 -0.2834E-02 0.2188E-03 0.1881E-02
	518.15K		
.295700E 00 .245000E 00 .199400E 00 .149000E 00 .141400E 00 .114000E 00 .911000E-01 .705000E-01	.155550E 00 .125080E 00 .101170E 00 .7591C0E-01 .771300E-01 .584000E-01 .563000E-01 .394800E-01	.151989E 00 .126776E 00 .104099E 00 .790342E-01 .752547E-01 .616285E-01 .502401E-01 .399955E-01	0.3560E-02 -0.1696E-02 -0.2929E-02 -0.3124E-02 0.1875E-02 -0.3228E-02 0.6060E-02 -0.5155E-03
240	323.15K		
.295700E 00 .245000E 00	.1501002 00 .1190702 00	.146829E 00 .122118E 00	0.3271E-02 -0.3048E-02

.998923E-01

.753273E-01

.7162302-01

.582683E-01

.4710682-01

.370663E-01

-0.1102E-02

-0.40873-02

-0.1768E-02

-0.46293-04

Withour make from the

0.3887E-02

0.28935-02

		-		
Table	3.	.7	298.	15K

.199400E CO

.149000E 00

.141400E 00

.114000E 00

.911000E-01

.705000E-01

.987900E-01

.712399E-01

.755100E-01

.565000E-01

.500000E-01

.3702002-01

-73-

Al Manual and the standard

a set hereiter. Her preserves the set of a set of the

X

.3012002 00 .245200E 00 .191000E 00 .14600CE 00

.911000E-01

.

.739999E-01

Y	YCALC	DEVIATIO
.1744005 00	.17 21995 00	0.2200E-02
.138210E 00	.141308E 00	-0.30983-02
.113100E 00	.111409E 00	0.16912-02
.836000E-01	.865851E-01	-0.2985E-02
-590900E-01	.563002E-01	0.2790E-02

.563002E-01

.468672E-01

308.15K

.590900E-01

.462700E-01

•	.306500E 00	.1617003 00	.162887E 00	-0.1187E-02
•	.266400E 00	.13930CE 00	.141486E 00	-0.21862-02
	.231400E 00	.125900E 00	.122807E 00	0.3093E-02
	.164200E 00	.889800E-01	.869436E-01	0.20365-02
	.969400E-01	.507600E-01	.510481E-01	-0.28812-03
Ċ.,	.5167002-01	.254200E-01	.263882E-01	-C.1468E-C2
			ala a	

318.15K

.3065002 00	.1521203 00	.152211E 00	-0.9072E-04
.2664003 00	.129650E 00	.132629E 00	-0.2979E-02
.231400E 00	.119860E 00	.115537E 00	0.4323E-02
.164200E 00	.817400E-01	.827207E-01	-0.98073-03
	.497900E-01	.498754E-01	-0.85382-04
516700E-01	.2758002-01	.277685E-01	-0.18852-03
The second s	1967 a se case co grinemento marcente		··••

323.15K

				and a familier and a familier of the
30650	OE 00	.145190E CO	.146337E 00	-0.1147E-02
.26640	00 300	.12587CE 00	.127584E 00	-0.17145-02
. 23140	00 E 00	.115380E 0C	.111216E 00	0.4164E-02
.16420	00 E 00	.790600E-01	.797885E-01	-0.7285E-03
.96940	02-01	.4820COE-01	.483334E-01	-0.1334E-03
.51670	0E-01	.267200E-01	.271623E-01	-0.44232-03
· · · ·			장님, 변화되는 경험, 중 수	

DN

-0.5972E-03

:

 Table 3.9
 298.15K

 X
 Y
 YCALC
 DEVIATION

	· 3100006	00	.130800E 00	. 136338L UU	0.46193-03
	.273400E	00	.117410E 00	.118808E 00	-0.13988-02
	·2281002	00	.100780E 00	.100166E 00	0.61395-03
ः 	.154240E	00	.709700E-01	.697718E-01	0.1198E-02
•.	.101180E	00	.470600E-01	.479371E-01	-0.87715-03
					··

308.15K

.316000E 00	.128000E 00	.129094E 00	-0.10942-02
.273400E 00	.112670E 00	.112527E 00	0.14272-03
.228100E 00	.948099E-01	.949109E-01	-0.10102-03
.154240E 00	.704899E-01	.661882E-01	0.43022-02
.101180E 00	.427700E-01	.455541E-01	-0.2784E-02
.998800E-01	.444700E-01	.450485E-01	-0.5785E-03
.489400E-01	.253500E-01	.252389E-01	0.1111E-03

318.15K

.316000E 00	.124500E 00	.125595E 00	-0.1095E-02
.273400E 00	.110410E 00	.109572E 00	0.8380E-03
.223100E 00	.9194003-01	.9253382-01	-0,5938E-03
154240E 00	.660599E-01	.647538E-01	0.1306E-02
101180E 00	.462000E-01	.4479705-01	0.1403E-02
.489400E-01	.232900 E-01	.251486E-01	-0.1859E-02
· · · ·	#*** ¥		

323.15K

.316000E 00	.121300E 00	.1205455 00	0.7550E-03
.273400E 00	.105650E 00	·1052452 00	0.4048E-03
.228100E 00	.879599E-01	.389756E-01	-0.1016E-02
.154240E 00	.623700E-01	.624487E-01	-0.7869E-04
.101180E 00	.421500E-01	.4339212-01	-0.12423-02
998800E-01	.421900E-01	.429252E-01	-0.7352E-03
.489400E-01	.265400E-01	.246300E-01	0.19102-02
🛥 saya samara		-	

Table 3.10 298.15K

X

YCALC

DEVIATION

•

.312600E 00	.124740E 00	.124433E 00	0.3074E-03
.271700E 00	.109310E 00	.109008E 00	0.30152-03
.228100E 00	.921600E-01	.925662E-01	-0.4062E-03
.159700E 00	.650400E-01	.667714E-01	-0.1731E-02
.134300E 00	.578500E-01	.571926E-01	0.6574E-03
.979000E-01	.450600E-01	.434655E-01	0.1594E-02
.732300E-01	.334400E-01	.341620E-01	-0.7220E-03

Y

308.15K

2426207 00	440000 00	1101000 00	0 00100 00
. 312600E 00	. 118200E 00	. 119102E 00	-0.90185-03
.271700E 00	.103900E 00	.103966E 00	-0.6640E-04
228100E 00	.890000E-01	.878317E-01	0.11683-02
.159700E 00	.628000E-01	.625197E-01	0.28032-03
.134300E 00	.537400E-01	.531202E-01	0.6198E-03
.9790000-01	.390900E-01	.396500E-01	-0.5600E-03
.732300E-01	.299800E-01	.305206E-01	-0.54062-03

318.15K

	.312600E	00	.112250E 00	.112860E 00	-0.6099E-03
;	.271700E	00	.990400E-01	.989156E-01	0.12442-03
•	.228100E	00	.840800E-01	.840507E-01	0.29275-04
÷	.159700E	00	.621500E-01	.607307E-01	0.1419E-02
	.134300E	00	.517600E-01	.520709E-01	-0.31092-03
	.979000E	-01	.402000E-01	.396608E-01	0.5392E-03
	.732300E-	-01	.300600E-01	.312499E-01	-0.11902-02
				*	

323.15K

	5	the second se	
.312600E 00	.109900E 00	.110511E 00	-0.6105E-03
.228100E 00	.822500E-01	.813226E-01	0.9274E-03
.159700E 00	:571700E-01	.576961E-01	-0.5261E-03
.134300E 00	.491900E-C1	.489224E-01	0.26762-03
.979000E-01	.376400E-01	.363492E-01	0.1291E-02
.732300E-01	.264800E-01	.278277E-01	-0.1348E-02
· • • • • •	·	· · · ·	

TABLE 3.11

Gradients and intercepts obtained from a least squares plot of Jones-Dole data [tables (3.1-3.6)] at 298.15 K.

SALT	GRADIENT	INTERCEPT	RMS DEVIATION
NaC1	0.594	0.0023	0.0024
KC1	0.404	0.0065	0.0025
NaBr	0.560	0.0041	0.0020
KBr	0.378	0.0064	0.0011
LiC1	0.547	0.0000	0.0045
LiBr	0.605	-0.0358	0.0025
	1		

TABLE 3.12

Gradients and intercepts obtained from a least squares plot of the Jones-Dole data, tables (3.7-3.10).

SALT	TEMPERATURE	GRADIENT	INTERCEPT	RMS DEVIATION
NaCl	298.15	0,615	-0,0015	0.0019
	308.15	0.539	0.0062	0.0023
	318.15	0.497	0.0049	0.0029
	323.15	0.487	0.0027	0.0027
KCl	298.15	0.412	0.0063	0.0009
	308.15	0.389	0.0062	0.0019
	318,15	0.376	0.0067	0.0012
	323.15	0.359	0.0071	0.0010
NaBr	298.15	0.575	0.0000	0.0013
	308.15	0.534	-0.0007	0.0017
	318.15	0.488	0.0025	0.0020
	323.15	0,468	0.0030	0,0017
KBr	298.15	0.377	0.0065	0.0009
	308.15	0.370	0.0034	0.0006
	318.15	0.341	0.0063	0.0007
	323.15	0.345	0.0025	0.0008
				-

- 77 -

e de ser en la construction de la c

Table (3.14) compares the B coefficients at 298.15 K with those obtained by Notley and Spiro⁸⁰ from viscosity measurements at concentrations of approximately 0.1 and 0.25 molal performed in 1915 by Davis et al⁸¹.

网络叶苔 可得不能的现象

TABLE 3.14

B coefficients in formamide

SALT	B this work	B ref. 80
LiC1	0.547	0.54
LiBr	0.605	0.49
NaCl	0.594	0.56
[:] NaBr	0.56	0.51
ксі 🛫	0.404	0,38
KBr	0.378	0.33

Apart from the fact that they had only two experimental measurements for each salt, the concentrations were rather high for valid application of the Jones-Dole equation and the viscosity of the pure solvent in Davis' measurements was found to vary from 0.003194 to 0.003388 kg m⁻¹ s⁻¹. The accuracy of these results is not therefore considered to be very high. In spite of this, Notley and Spiro attempted to divide the B coefficient into separate ionic contributions. Although they do not state how this division was made, it would appear that they considered the contributions of the Cs⁺ and Cl⁻ ions to the B coefficient to be almost identical, as had been suggested by Nightingale⁷⁹ for aqueous solution. Thus from the B coefficient for CsCl of 0.41 they attributed ionic B coefficients of 0.21 and 0.20 to the Cs⁺ and Cl⁻ ions respectively. Table (3.15)' gives their ionic B coefficients of interest to the present work.

There are two basic ways of approaching the division into ionic B coefficients, the theoretical approach and the experimental approach. The method used by Cox and Wolfenden $\frac{67}{2}$ based on the theory of

and the second s

<u>Herrica Markan Barrah</u>i

TABLE 3.15

Ionic B coefficients calculated by Nightingale⁷⁹ from the measurements of Davis et al⁸¹

ion	В
Li ⁺	0.34
Na ⁺	0.36
к ⁺	0.18
C1	0,20
Br	0.15
	a land the second second second second

Stokes' Law and the Stokes-Einstein relationship was discussed on page 47. On the other hand the method of Gurney¹⁴ for aqueous solutions was based on experimental evidence which was already available for the individual ions. He considered that the plot of the temperature variation of ionic mobilities against equivalent conductivities provided evidence to suggest that the effects of K⁺ and C1⁻ ions in aqueous solution were very similar and that the B coefficient for KC1 could therefore be equally divided between the two ions. It should be noted that ionic B coefficients calculated by each of the above methods for aqueous solutions were identical within experimental error.

Since information on transport numbers in formamide is only available at one temperature⁸⁰ the approach to the splitting of the B coefficients followed here was that of Cox and Wolfenden. The ratio of the ionic mobilities of Na⁺ and Cl⁻ ions in solution in formamide is $10.1:17.1^{80}$. From Stokes' Law, therefore, the radius of the solvated sodium ion is therefore 70% greater than that of the solvated Cl⁻ ion. This gives a volume ratio for the two solvated ions Na⁺:Cl⁻ of 4.28:1. From this result the B coefficient of NaCl was split into two ionic contributions,

- 79 -

B NaCl = 0.594 B Na⁺ = 0.594 x $\frac{4.82}{1.00 + 4.82}$ = 0.492 BCl⁻ = 0.594 x $\frac{1.00}{1.00 + 4.82}$ = 0.102

and from these values the others were readily obtained. Table (3.16) compares the values obtained in this study with those obtained by Notley and Spiro in formamide at 298.15 K and those for the same ions in water at the same temperature⁶⁸.

As was mentioned earlier there is no information on transference numbers in formamide at temperatures other than 298.15 K. A splitting of the B coefficients obtained at other temperatures therefore becomes rather arbitrary.

TABLE 3,16

Ionic B coefficients in formamide and water

- به ندار است. استاده

Ion	Formamide ⁸⁰	Formamide (this work)	Water ⁶⁸
Na ⁺	0.36	0.492	0,0863
к+	0.18	0.302	-0.007
C1	0.20	0.102	-0.007
Br	0.15	0.068	-0.032

It can be seen by inspection of table (3.16) that all of the jons investigated here have positive B coefficients for all measurements. For the Cl⁻ ion the value at 298.15 K is quite large compared with the value in water. This might indicate that for the Cl⁻ ion in formamide the structure making influences are relatively greater than the structure breaking influences. In water Cl⁻ ion is considered to be a net structure breaker. This is because (i) at

المراجب الأماد المراجب

المراز فتربى ومستهداته تتبلغ فكبلا فالتأر

- 80 -

a a férres and and an a construction of the ferres of the ferres of the second second second second second seco

certain temperatures the ionic B coefficient is negative and (ii) the temperature coefficient of the ionic B coefficient, $\frac{dB}{dT}$, is positive⁶⁸, table (3.17).

TABLE 3.17

Ionic B coefficients of chloride ion in water

_ 68 C1	288 K	298 K	308 K	315.5 K
	-0.0200	-0.0070	+0.0049	+0.0121
	Second and the second se			

8- - - 365 x 1 X 1

Kaminsky pointed out that anions do not exhibit negative temperature dependence of the ionic B coefficient in water and it is assumed that this is also true for formamide. In water the decrease in B for Cl⁻ over the temperature range 288.0 - 315.5 K is very small, <u>ie</u> less than 0.04. Since for the Cl⁻ ion in formamide the structure breaking effects are relatively less important than the structure making effects (compared with the situation for the Cl⁻ ion in water), it is proposed that the ionic B coefficient for Cl⁻ in formamide must drop by less than 0.04 over the temperature range 298-323 K. This would make any real drop in B for Cl⁻ undetectable because the accuracy of the measurements is not greater than ± 0.01. In spite of some evidence (see later) which confirms that the Cl⁻ ion in formamide has some structure breaking influence, $\frac{dB}{dT}$ is taken as zero for Cl⁻ ion in formamide. From this, the other ionic B coefficients are readily available see table (3.18).

TABLE 3.18

	298,15 K	308.15 K	318.15 K	323.15 K
Na ⁺	0.492	0.437	0.395	0.385
к+	0.302	0.287	0.274	0.257
cı ¯	0.102	0.102	0.102	0.102
Br	0.068	0.097	0.093	0.083

Ionic B coefficients in formamide

- 81 -

The fact that the Br ion has a smaller ionic B coefficient than the Cl ion at 298.15 K indicates that for Br in formamide more "structure breaking" of the solvent takes place than for the Cl ion. As the temperature is increased the ionic B coefficient of Br increases and then remains almost constant. This supports the suggestion that Br is to some extent a structure breaking ion.

and the second secon

See and

and the second second

It has been suggested by Neng-Ping Yao and Bennion⁸² that the viscosity B coefficients are approximately related to the Einstein volume fraction according to the equation

$$B = 2.5 \frac{\emptyset}{c} = 2.5 \frac{4}{3} \pi \frac{r^{3}}{1000} N \qquad (3.15)$$

where B is the ionic B coefficient, \emptyset is the volume fraction of the solute particles in cubic centimeters of solute/cubic centimeters of solution, r_{τ}^+ is the effective radius for a spherical ion, and N is Avogadro's number, and these authors used the above relationship to calculate the effective radii of a number of ions in dimethylsulphoxide from the ionic B coefficients. Nightingale⁷⁹ showed that there was indeed a relationship between the ionic B coefficients and the ionic hydrated radii but he stressed that the relationship was not to be confused with the Einstein relation which is only applicable for ions whose radii are large compared with that of the solvent molecules. Bearing in mind that Stokes' Law is also subject to such a fundamental criticism it was decided to calculate the solvated radius of the Cl⁻ ion from the ionic B coefficient using equation (3.15).

$$\therefore B = \frac{2.5 \times r^3 \times N \times 4 \times TT}{3 \times 1000}$$

$$\therefore 0.102 = \frac{r^3 \times 2.5 \times 4 \times TT \times 6.023 \times 10^{23}}{1000 \times 3}$$

$$\therefore r^3 = \frac{0.102 \times 3 \times 10^{-20}}{2.5 \times 4 \times TT \times 5.023}$$

$$\therefore r = 0.25 \text{ nm}$$

- 82 -

This value of 0.25 nm compared with one of 0.181 nm for the ionic crystal radius of Cl⁻ ion⁸³ and 0.332 nm for the hydrated radius of the Cl⁻ ion as obtained by the corrected method of Nightingale⁷⁹. It would seem therefore that the calculated solvated radius of the Cl⁻ ion in formamide (as calculated from the ionic B coefficient) is smaller than the hydrated radius of the Cl⁻ ion in water (as calculated from Stokes' Law). Since the volume occupied by a formamide molecule in solution is nearly three times that occupied by a water molecule and since (in water at least) simple monatomic ions are considered to be solvated to a minimal extent⁷⁹ the relative sizes of the calculated solvated radii for the Cl⁻ ion in formamide and water might indicate either

(i) in formamide the Cl ion is solvated to a lesser extent than in water

or (ii) in formamide the Cl⁻ ion is to some extent a structure breaking ion, and therefore the value of the hydrated radius obtained from the ionic B coefficient is too small because the ionic B coefficient contains a negative term due to the structure breaking effect of the Cl⁻ ion.

Bare and Skinner⁸⁴ have shown that for a homologous series of monohydric alcohols the viscosity B coefficients of NaI increased with increasing alkyl chain length, and attributed this to the fact that as the solvent molecule increased in size the volume of the solvodynamic unit would increase. It therefore would seem that the Cl⁻ ion is to some extent a structure breaking ion in formamide solution.

From the $\frac{dB}{dT}$ values for the Na⁺ and K⁺ ions it is very probable that in formamide these are net structure makers, K⁺ to a lesser extent than Na⁺. This is what would be expected on the basis of the surface charge densities of these ions. Potassium ion has a smaller surface change density than the sodium ion and will therefore orientate the solvent dipoles beyond the first solvation sphere to a lesser

and a substance with a shift of the state of the second second second second second second second second second

- 83 -

- A set of the set

N. Server

· · · · · · ·

actual to the second of the

- 84 -

extent than sodium.

Without resorting to any arbitrary splitting into ionic B coefficients it is instructive to examine the mean difference $B_{Na^+} - B_{K^+}$. This can be done simply by subtracting the B coefficients of two salts with a common ion, eg, in formamide,

$$B_{Na+} - B_{K+} = 0.186$$

This difference can be taken as the difference of the effect of the Na^+ ion and the K^+ ion on the solution viscosity, and would be expected to be due to differences in the ability of the ions to promote or destroy structure in the solvent. It is therefore of interest to compare this difference for various solvents.

TABLE	3.	.19

Solvent	Group	B _{Na+} - B _{K+}
N-methylformamide ⁸⁵	Ï.	-0.016
methanol ⁸⁶	Ι	-0.023
water ⁶⁸	II	0.093
formamide	II	0.186
1,3-propanedio184	II	0.362
1,2-propanediol ⁸⁴	II	0.406

For N-methylformamide and methanol $B_{Na^+} - B_{K^+}$ is much less than for any of the other solvents in table (3.19). These solvents, which shall be called group I, although highly associated, tend to associate into dimers or chains rather than into three dimensional groupings. The other solvents in table (3.19) called group II, all have the ability to form associated aggregates in three dimensions. For all of these solvents $B_{Na^+} - B_{K^+}$ is found to be positive.

It has been suggested⁸⁵ that the structure making contribution to B for the alkali metal ions in water decreases rather slowly and that the structure breaking contribution increases relatively rapidly Sect. State

with increase in ionic radius. For group I solvents where the structure breaking contribution is probably negligable the ionic B values will therefore not change by much down the group. Evidence from other salts in other systems of this type is available to support this, ie LiCl, KI and KCl in N-methylpropionamide have values of 1.25, 1.30 and 1.37⁸⁷.

The same analysis can be carried out for the anions in formamide.

TABLE 3.20

"C1" Br
0,034
0.024
0.030
⁵ 0.030

For the anions the difference is not very large and since it is the same for both solvent groups I and II it is unlikely to be a result of different structure breaking abilities of the anions.

If these results are considered in terms of the Stokes and Mills treatment, see page 56, then, for the cations in formamide it appears that although $\gamma^{\rm D}$ (the structure breaking contribution) is important, the overall effect of the cations is to increase the viscosity due to $\gamma^{\rm E}$ (size and shape contribution) and $\gamma^{\rm A}$ (the ordering of the solvent ions in the immediate vicinity of the ion). The fact that $\frac{dB}{dT}$ for each of the salts in formamide is negative indicates that $\gamma^{\rm A}$ makes a large contribution to the overall effect.

For the anions the most important contribution is probably $\mathcal{M}^{\mathrm{E}}_{\cdot}$. However as suggested above \mathcal{M}^{A} may decrease with increasing ion size and this explains to some extent why the bromide ion contributes less than the chloride ion to the viscosity. It should be noted however that from the calculation of the solvated radii and

- 85 -

a ngang ngang nga sing nga sa nga

The Beach Street

the set is the set of the set of the set of the

consideration of the size of the solvodynamic unit, it would seem that some contribution is also made by γ^D .

Associated solvents have been divided into two groups, I and II. Group I are solvents which have linear or polymeric association in two directions such as N-methylformamide, N-methylpropionamide, N-methylacetamide and the monohydric alcohols. No structure breaking effects of ions would be expected in these solvents. Group II solvents on the other hand can form three dimensional aggregates and when certain ions are dissolved in them a degree of structure breaking takes place. Examples of group II solvents are water, formamide, and polyhydric alcohols. - 87 -

3.6 VISCOSITY AS A RATE PROCESS

Since the flow of liquid is a rate process in so far as it takes place with a definite velocity under given conditions, Eyring⁸⁹ considered that the theory of absolute reaction rates could be applied to the problem of viscosity.

He considered as his model two parallel layers of molecules of a fluid, one of which, under the influence of an applied force, moved with a velocity $\Delta \mu$ greater than the other. This movement was envisaged as involving the passage of molecules from one equilibrium position to another in the same layer. Since energy would be required to produce a suitable site into which the molecule could "jump" it was suggested that the process could be represented by the potential energy diagram in fig. (3.13). It was assumed that the potential energy barrier was symmetrical.

Eyring calculated that the force acting on a single molecule in the direction of motion would be

(3.16)

the stand of the start of the start of the

where F is the force per unit area acting on the molecule, x_1 is the distance between neighbouring molecules in the moving layer in the direction at right angles to the direction of the applied force and x_2 is the mean distance between adjacent molecules in the moving layer in the same direction (x_1x_2) is therefore the effective area per molecule).

The distance between equilibrium positions was at x, and the energy acquired by a moving molecule when it has reached the top of the potential energy barrier is

$$F = \frac{\frac{xx_1x_2}{2}}{2}$$
(3.17)

The effect of the force is therefore to reduce the height of the potential energy barrier by $\frac{1}{2}Fxx_1x_2$ in the direction of flow. In the opposite direction the barrier was increased by this amount.

Fig. (3.13)

Eyring's potential energy diagram for viscous flow



\$

Direction of flow

and a strate when we wanted it is a set of the

ALC: N. C. A. A. M.

terite a construction and the static first structure that the second second second second second second second

Statistical mechanical arguments lead to the expression for the frequency of an activated complex crossing a potential energy barrier being given by

$$k = \frac{KT}{h} \frac{f}{f}^{*} e \qquad (3.18)$$

where k is the frequency, K the Boltzmann constant, h is the Plank's constant, f^* and f are the partition functions for unit volume of the molecule in the activated and initial state respectively, T is the absolute temperature, R the gas constant and E_0 the activation for MONECONE energy, From this the rate of flow in the direction of the applied force was found to be

$$k_{A} = \frac{KT}{h} \frac{f}{f} e^{-(E_{0} - \frac{1}{2}Fxx_{1}x_{2})/KT}$$
$$= k e^{(\frac{1}{2}Fx_{1}x_{2}x)/KT}$$
(3.19)

The rate of flow in the opposite direction was therefore

$$k_{\rm B} = k \, e^{-\left(\frac{1}{2}F_{\rm XX}} 1^{\rm X} 2\right)/{\rm KT}}$$
 (3.20)

From the net rate of flow Eyring obtained the difference in velocity between the layers

$$\Delta \mu = xk \left[e^{\left(\frac{1}{2}Fx} 1^{x} 2^{x}\right)/KT} - e^{-\left(\frac{1}{2}Fx} 1^{x} 2^{x}\right)/KT} \right] \quad (3.21)$$

and from the definition of viscosity

$$\gamma = \frac{Fx_3}{\Delta \mu}$$

where x_3 is the distance between the layers; and making the following assumptions:-

(i) $2KT \gg Fx_1x_2x$

a new starts

which is reasonable because F is the order 10^{-3} kg m s⁻² and x₁,x₂, and x are each of the order 10^{-1} nm

(ii)
$$x_1 \approx x$$

although they are not the same they are of the same order

(iii) $x_1 x_2 x$ is the approximate volume inhabited by a single molecule in the liquid state

and finally inserting for the frequency factor k from equation (3.18),

an an an ana sina na ang panalan.

WE WARD THE STREET STREET STREET

- 90 -

Eyring obtained the expression

$$\eta = \frac{hN}{V} \cdot \frac{f}{f^*} e^{E_0/KT} \qquad (3.22)$$

الرابا كالباب بيارين ويعرف ويرويني المعير المرابع ولياب

where N is Avagadrods number and V is the molar volume of the liquid. From his theory of absolute reaction rates the equilibrium constant k_{α} is related to the partition coefficients by

$$k_{e} = \frac{f}{f} e^{-E_{o}/KT}$$

Thermodynamic considerations, however, give

 $k_{\Theta} = e^{-\Delta G^*/RT}$

therefore

$$\gamma = \frac{hN}{v} e^{\Delta G^*/RT} \qquad (3.23)$$

and since $\Delta G = \Delta H - T \Delta S$ equation (3.23) becomes

$$\gamma = \frac{hN}{v} e^{-\Delta S^*/R} e^{\Delta H^*/RT} \qquad (3.24)$$

Assuming ΔS^* is constant over the temperature range and that the molar volume of the liquid does not change by very much, then equation (3.24) can be represented as

$$M = A e^{\Delta H^*/RT}$$
 (3.25)

This is similar to the empirical relationship suggested by Arrhenius⁹⁰ in 1916.

Rewriting equation (3.25) gives

$$\Delta H^* = R \frac{d \ln \gamma}{d(\frac{1}{T})}$$
(3.26)

In 1959 Nightingale and Benck⁹¹ suggested that the effect of a strong electrolyte on the viscosity of a solvent could also be treated as a rate process. They substituted the Jones-Dole equation for the viscosity of a dilute electrolyte solution into equation (3.26) to

give

$$\Delta H^* = R \frac{d \ln[\eta_0(1 + A\sqrt{c} + Bc)]}{d(\frac{1}{T})} \qquad (3.27)$$

For dilute solutions of electrolytes where B is not too small (which is the case for most non-aqueous solvents at least) the influence of the interionic attractions on the viscosity of the solution can be considered negligible, therefore

and a start the second

$$\Delta H^* \simeq R \cdot \frac{d \ln \eta_0(1+Bc)}{d(\frac{1}{T})}$$

from equation (3.26)

$$R \frac{d \ln \eta}{d(\frac{1}{T})} = \frac{R}{\eta_0^{(1+Bc)}} \cdot \frac{d[\eta_0[1+Bc)]}{d(\frac{1}{T})}$$
$$= \frac{R}{\eta_0^{(1+Bc)}} \cdot \frac{\eta_0^{-1}}{\eta_0^{-1}} \cdot \frac{d(1+Bc)}{d(\frac{1}{T})} + \frac{d(1+Bc)}{d(\frac{1}{T})} \cdot \frac{d\eta_0}{d(\frac{1}{T})}$$
$$= \frac{R}{(1+Bc)} \cdot \frac{d(1+Bc)}{d(\frac{1}{T})} + \frac{R}{\eta_0^{-1}} \cdot \frac{d\eta_0}{d(\frac{1}{T})}$$

$$R \frac{d \ln \gamma}{d(\frac{1}{T})} = R \cdot \frac{d \ln \gamma_{o}}{d(\frac{1}{T})} + \frac{R}{(1+Bc)} \cdot \frac{d(1+Bc)}{d(\frac{1}{T})}$$
(3.28)
In equation (3.28)
$$R \frac{d \ln \gamma}{d(\frac{1}{T})} \text{ and } R \frac{d \ln \gamma_{o}}{d(\frac{1}{T})} \text{ can be identified}$$

 $d(\frac{\pi}{T}) \qquad d(\frac{\pi}{T})$ as the activation enthalpies for solution, $\Delta H^* \eta$, and solvent $\Delta H^* \eta_0$ respectively. Equation (3.28) can therefore be represented by

$$\Delta H^* \gamma = \Delta H^* \gamma_0 + \Delta H^* \gamma_s \qquad (3.29)$$

where $\Delta H^* \gamma_s$ the second term on the right side of equation (3.28) may be considered to represent the increase or decrease of the activation enthalpy of the pure solvent due to the presence of the ions of the solute. Since it is considered to represent the effect due to the sum of the ionic effects, equation (3.29) can be rewritten

$$\Delta H^* \gamma - \Delta H^* \gamma \circ = v^+ \Delta H^*_+ + v^- \Delta H^*_-$$

where ΔH^*_+ and ΔH^*_- represent the effect on the activation enthalpy due to each individual cation and anion and v^+ and v^- are the number of cations and anions per molecule of solute.

3.7 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION (II)

Figs. (3.14-3.16) show the change that takes place in ΔG^* , ΔH^* , and ΔS^* for formamide when the salts NaCl, KCl, NaBr and KBr are added. The increases are very small and are dependent on the concentration of the salt. For a 0.1 molal solution of sodium chloride in formamide the increase in ΔH^* amounts to only 2%. The maximum increase observed for ΔG^* was much less (0.3% for a 0.1 molal solution). This can be attributed to the fact that the salts which cause the largest increase in ΔH^* are also associated with less negative changes in the entropy of activation (ΔS^*). The maximum salt concentration used in these investigations was 0.1 molal.

Table (3.21) gives the values of ΔG^* , ΔH^* , and ΔS^* for the pure formamide used in this work and also the changes in them brought about by adding salts to form 0.1 molal solutions.

TABLE	3.21

	∆g [*] kJ/mole	کH [*] kJ/mole	∆s* JK ⁻¹ /mole
FORMAMIDE	48,58	17.17	-105.40
Increase for			
0.1 molal NaCl	0.14	0.36	0,72
0.1 molal NaBr	0.14	0.27	0.54
0.1 molal KCl	0.10	0.13	0.14
0.1 molal KBr	0.09	0.14	0,14

No satisfactory ionic partitioning of these values was possible due to the scatter and lack of accuracy for the small changes involved. However two important points emerge from an investigation of the results.

(i) For each of the salts containing the sodium ion the increase in the activation enthalpy (ΔH^*) for the 0.1 molal solutions was more than twice that caused by the corresponding potassium salts.

- 92 -

والمناجين وأسهد فيتحاص والمحاصين والمناصل والمنافع والمنافع والمقاطع والمقاطع والمحاط




-94-



-95-

(ii) The activation entropy change (ΔS^*) brought about by the presence of the sodium salts resulted in a significantly less negative entropy change than that caused by the potassium ions. Both these facts support one another, and the previous evidence, that Na⁺ ions are more order making than K⁺ ions. Because of the relatively strong ordering influence of the sodium ion on the formamide molecules, more energy will be required for a solvent molecule in the neighbourhood of a sodium ion to move into the next equilibrium position and hence ΔH^* is greater for the movement of such an ion. If the transition state for such a movement of one solvent molecule from one equilibrium position to another is considered to be "crowded", or to put it another way, if the transition state is one in which a high degree of order exists, then ΔS^* for the transition will be negative. However if the molecule is moving from a relatively ordered site around a sodium ion then the decrease in entropy will be less and ΔS^* will therefore not be quite so negative.

By such reasoning, these results confirm that which was pointed out in section 3.5, namely that sodium ions are better structure making ions than potassium ions in formamide as was also found by Kaminsky⁶⁸ for these ions in water.

3.8 THE FALKENHAGEN-VERNON A COEFFICIENT

From the Jones-Dole equation and the plots shown in figs. (3.4-3.12) it should be possible to measure the long range electrostatic interaction of the ions in formamide solution. The A coefficient discussed in section 3.1 was considered to be a measure of this and should be given for each of the salts investigated here by the intercepts on figs. (3.4-3.12). These intercepts are listed in tables (3.11) and (3.12). It can be seen by inspection of these

Andrew & Andrew Street

- 96 -

tables that the intercepts were found to be negative in some cases. These results are considered to be spurious and it is not considered possible to determine A-coefficients with any precision with the experimental procedure used here. However it is possible to calculate A theoretically from equation (3.29) which was proposed in 1931 by $F_{alkenhagen}$ and Vernon⁶⁵ for a uni-univalent salt:-

ತನ್ನು ಗಳಿಸಲಿಗೆ ಮುಂದಿ ಸಿಲ್ಲಿ ಸೇವಿ ಸಿಲ್ಲಿ ಸ

$$A = \frac{1 \cdot 4.5}{\eta \circ \sqrt{2\varepsilon_0 T}} \left[\frac{\lambda_1^{\circ} + \lambda_2^{\circ}}{4\lambda_1^{\circ} \lambda_2^{\circ}} - \frac{(\lambda_1^{\circ} - \lambda_2^{\circ})^2}{(3 + \sqrt{2}) \lambda_1^{\circ} \lambda_2^{\circ} (\lambda_1^{\circ} + \lambda_2^{\circ})} \right] \quad (3.29)$$

The A coefficient is therefore a very complicated function of the valency type of the salt and the ionic mobilities of the ions. The units used in the equation as it is represented here are $\gamma =$ viscosity in poise, T = absolute temperature in Kelvin, λ_1° and λ_2° the equivalent conductances of the ions at infinite dilution in **Gms**⁻² int. Ω equiv.

For the salts NaCl, KCl, NaBr, and KBr the A coefficients were calculated at 298.15K using the data of Notley and Spiro⁸⁰ for the limiting equivalent conductances of the various ions in formamide and the value of 109 for the dielectric constant due to Bass <u>et al</u>⁹². The viscosity of formamide at 298.15 K was taken as 0.03292 poise as measured in this work. Table (3.22) gives the values obtained using equation (3.29) and compares them with the intercepts obtained experimentally. All the values are for solutions at 298.15 K. The experimental values of the A coefficient were calculated by computer by applying the method of least squares to the values shown in figs. (3.4-3.12). The root mean square deviation for these points is given as an indication of the precision.

TABLE 3.22

Salt	Atheor	Aexpt
NaCl	0,0064	0.0023 ± 0.0023
NaBr	0.0064	0.0041 ± 0,0020
KC1	0.0058	0.0065 ± 0.0025
KBr	0.0058	0.0064 ± 0.0011

- 97 -

A computer program was then employed which enabled the theoretical value of A to be inserted into an equation of the same form as the Jones-Dole equation and a new value for the B coefficient was then calculated by a method of least squares. This produced no significant change in the B coefficients as reported in table (3.13).

and the second free and free and second and the second second second second second second second second second

all the second se

2 3.82 March 22

3.9 CONCLUSIONS

All of the salts investigated here increase the viscosity of formamide and with the exception of the lithium salts it has been shown that they all have a net structure making effect on the solvent. (Both the lithium salts were only investigated at 298.15 K.) There is some evidence, however, to suggest that the anions do exhibit a certain amount of structure breaking influence on formamide, despite the fact that their overall effect is to increase the viscosity. The sodium ion is shown to have a greater ordering influence on formamide than that of the potassium ion, and both of these ions have a much greater ordering influence than either of the anions as is the case in aqueous solutions.

This idea of structure making and structure breaking is simply a concise way of discussing a situation which exists around an ion which is very complex and may be contributed to by many factors. In the words of Emerson and Holzer⁷⁷, "Hydrodynamic problems are notoriously refractory to intuitive analysis".

- 98 -

··· ···

CHAPTER FOUR

2

.

1995 CO 63 M C. C. C.

an i star e fan e en e star i star gedin

「日本」」という、 いたち いったちちち

4.1 INTRODUCTION

Few have attempted to deduce the absolute value of the viscosity of a particular liquid from known molecular constants, with the notable exceptions of Andrade⁹³, Kirkwood⁹⁴ and Stiel and Thodos⁹⁵. Viscosities of binary liquid mixtures have been studied as a method of investigating the variation in type and degree of the interactions of unlike molecules. Most of this work has been directed towards predicting the viscosity of a mixture from the viscosities of the pure components⁹⁶⁻¹⁰¹ or discussing observed maxima or minima in the measured viscosity of various compositions of a binary mixture, in terms of complex species formed or inter-actions between the individual components¹⁰²⁻¹⁰⁴.

For ideal liquids Arrhenius⁹⁶ proposed the empirical equation for the viscosity of a binary mixture

$$\ln \gamma = \mathscr{Q}_{A} \ln \gamma_{A} + \mathscr{Q}_{B} \ln \gamma_{B}$$
(4.1)

where \emptyset_A and \emptyset_B are the volume fractions and γ_A and γ_B are the viscosity coefficients of the pure components A and B respectively.

Dolezalek¹⁰⁰ and later on Hind et al¹⁰⁵ suggested the relationship

 $\gamma = x_A^2 \gamma_A + x_B^2 \gamma_B + x_A x_B \gamma_{AB} \qquad (4.2)$

which introduced a term specifically taking into account the molecular interactions A·····B. \mathcal{M}_{AB} was called the "mutual viscosity coefficient". In 1960 an equation of the above form was derived from statistical mechanics by Bearman and Jones¹⁰⁶.who considered as their basic assumptions that the mean frictional forces acting on the molecules of a binary system were related, on the one hand to the gradients of the local thermodynamic properties and on the other hand to the relative mean velocities of the components. They

- 99 -

found that the viscosity coefficient could be represented by the sum of three integrals representing respectively the interactions of like and unlike pairs of molecules.

والموجود والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمحاصر والمحافية والمحافية

From the statistical mechanical theory of Frenkel¹ and the rate theory of Eyring⁸⁹, Tamura and Kurata⁹⁸ derived a semi-empirical relationship which was very similar to equation (4.2).

4.2 TAMURA-KURATA EQUATION

The viscosity of a pure liquid A is given by

$$\gamma_{\rm A} = \frac{\rm KT}{\rm v_A} \tau_{\rm A} \tag{4.3}$$

where τ_{A} is the relaxation time of flow and is given by

and $\tau =$

$$\tau_{A} = \frac{h}{KT} e^{\Delta G_{A}^{*}/KT}$$
(4.4)

where K is the Boltzmann constant, T the absolute temperature, v_A the volume occupied by one mole of A and h is the Planck constant. Similar equations can be written for a pure liquid B. Tamura and Kurata considered that the same procedure might be used to describe a mixture of liquids A and B, <u>ie</u>

$$\gamma = \frac{KT}{v} \tau \qquad (4.5)$$

$$\frac{h}{\kappa r} e^{\Delta G^*/KT} \qquad (4.6)$$

where the parameters with no subscript refer to the mixture. The term "mutual activation free energy of viscous flow", ΔG_{AB}^* , relating only to A·····B contacts of molecules in the same way as the ΔG_{A}^* and ΔG_{B}^* relate to A·····A and B·····B contacts was then introduced such that τ_{AB} was defined by

$$\tau_{AB} = \frac{h}{KT} e^{\frac{\Delta G_{AB}}{KT}/KT}$$
(4.7)

 τ_{AB} was taken to be the relaxation time of flow of a molecule A in liquid B. x_A and x_B were the mole fractions of A and B and the probabilities of the molecular contacts A....A, B....B and A....B were supposed to be given by x_A^2 , x_B^2 and $2x_Ax_B$ respectively. τ was then assumed to be given by the weighted mean of the individual

relaxation times,

$$\tau = x_{a}^{2}\tau_{a} + x_{B}^{2}\tau_{B} + 2x_{A}x_{B}\tau_{AB}$$
(4.8)

The next step was to define a "mutual viscosity coefficient" ${\cal M}_{
m AB}$ by

$$\gamma_{AB} = \frac{KT}{(v_A v_B)^2} \tau_{AB}$$
(4.9)

From equations (4.5) and (4.8)

$$\gamma = \frac{KT}{v} (x_{A}^{2}\tau_{A} + x_{B}^{2}\tau_{B} + 2x_{A}x_{B}\tau_{AB})$$
(4.10)

and from equations (4.3) and (4.9)

$$\gamma = \frac{KT}{v} \left(x_A^2 \cdot \frac{\gamma_A v_A}{KT} + x_B^2 \cdot \frac{\gamma_B v_B}{KT} + 2x_A x_B \cdot \frac{v_B^2 v_B^2}{KT} \right) \qquad (4.11)$$

$$= x_{A}^{2} - \frac{v_{A}}{v} \gamma_{A} + x_{B}^{2} - \frac{v_{B}}{v} \gamma_{B} + 2x_{A} x_{B} - (\frac{v_{A} v_{B}}{v^{2}})^{\frac{1}{2}} \gamma_{AB}$$
(4.12)

Further $\frac{x_A v_A}{v} = \frac{w_A \rho}{\rho_A} = \rho_A$ where w_A = weight fraction and ρ_A = volume fraction of Z.

$$\therefore \gamma = x_A \varphi_A \gamma_A + x_B \varphi_B \gamma_B + 2(x_A x_B \varphi_A \varphi_B)^2 \gamma_{AB} \qquad (4.13)$$

This equation is similar to the Dolezalek equation (4.2) but introduces a degree of dependence of the viscosity on the volume. It was shown by Tamura and Kurata⁹⁸ that the agreement between their equation and experimental results for a number of systems was considerably better than that of equation (4.2).

4.3 MATO-HERNANDEZ EQUATION

Mato and Hernandez¹⁰¹ pursued a similar argument but considered that the probability of the molecular interactions (A·····A, B·····B, and A·····B) would be given by the product of the mole fraction and the volume fraction of the particular species, <u>ie</u> Probability of A·····A interactions $\alpha = \frac{x_A v_A}{v}$ as before Probability of B·····B interactions $\alpha = \frac{x_B \phi_B}{B}$ Probability of A·····B interactions $\alpha = 2(x_A x_B \phi_A \phi_B)^{\frac{1}{2}}$

.

This led to the expression

$$\tau = x_{A} \phi_{A} \tau_{A} + x_{B} \phi_{B} \tau_{B} + 2(x_{A} x_{B} \phi_{A} \phi_{B})^{\frac{1}{2}} \tau_{AB}$$
(4.14)

which gives by a similar argument as before

$$\gamma = \varphi_{A}^{2} \gamma_{A} + \varphi_{B}^{2} \gamma_{B} + \varphi_{A} \varphi_{B} \gamma_{AB} \qquad (4.15)$$

This is still of the same form as the Dolezalek equation (4.2) but now the volume fraction completely replaces the mole fraction.

These equations for the viscosity of a binary mixture (4.2), (4.13) and (4.15), are derived from Eyring's activation state theory, which has \cdot been criticised and considered unsatisfactory by Rice et al 107 who suggested that it is simply a parametric representation rather than a molecular theory because the parameters obtained from Eyring's theory cannot be related to the intermolecular potential or the radical distribution function. These authors admit, however, "it can not be denied that the model is easily visualised and formalised with simple mathematics. Moreover if the resulting formulae are considered to be parametric representations, then adjustment of the parameters often leads to useful representations of experimental data". Stephen Brush in his comprehensive review 108 comments "As this review does not, like some others, accord the place of honour to the rate theory of viscosity, it should be noted to its credit that the rate theory can be applied to non-Newtonian flow without introducing any additional hypothesis. Such applications will give a better indication of the validity of this theory than the controversies about whether the energy of viscosity should vary with temperature".

4.4 THE MCALLISTER EQUATION

One important limitation of equations (4.2), (4.3) and (4.15) is that they represent only two-body interactions. McAllister 109

न भन्दर यह न प्रवयन्त्र स्वयुध्धान्त्र सुर्वप्रदेश

State of the second state

extended the Eyring approach to take into account three-body interactions. For a binary mixture of pure A and pure B the three-body interactions involving molecules of A and B can be represented as A····A, B····B····B, A····B····A, B····A, B····A, A····A, and B····B····A. McAllister assumed that for each of these interactions there was an associated activation free energy for viscous flow and he assumed that

 $\Delta G_{AAB}^{*} = \Delta G_{ABA}^{*} = \Delta G_{AB}^{*}$ $\Delta G_{BBA}^{*} = \Delta G_{BAB}^{*} = \Delta G_{BA}^{*}$ (4.16)

This led to the equation

and

$$\ln \gamma = x_{A}^{3}k_{1}\ln\gamma_{A} + 3x_{A}^{2}x_{B}k_{2}\ln\gamma_{B} + 3x_{B}^{2}x_{A}k_{3}\ln\gamma_{BA} + x_{B}^{3}k_{4}\ln\gamma_{B} + R^{0}$$
(4.17)

where
$$R^{O} = x_{B}^{3} \ln(M_{B}/M_{A}) + 3x_{A}x_{B}^{2} \ln[(1+2M_{B}/M_{A})/3] + 3x_{A}^{2}x_{B}\ln[(2+M_{B}/M_{A})/3] - \ln(x_{A}+x_{B}M_{B}/M_{A})$$

where η is the viscosity of the mixture, M_A is the molecular weight of A and M_p the molecular weight of B.

Thus in contrast to the equations discussed above McAllister considered that the viscosity coefficient for the interactions on a molecule A in a solvent B (γ_{BA}) was not the same as that for a molecule B in a pure solvent A (γ_{AB}). Hence equation (4.17) contains two undetermined parameters γ_{AB} and γ_{BA} which are assumed to be independent of composition, and vary with temperature according to Eyring's theory.

In the present work a three parameter model was set up and used which was simply an extension of the one parameter models described above ie equations (4.2), (4.13), and (4.15).

4.5 THE THREE PARAMETER EQUATION

In all of the one parameter models the presence of B

molecules is assumed to have no effect on the A....A interactions and vice versa. The three parameter equation used in this investigation is an extension of the existing one parameter models to take such interactions into account. For the Dolezalek model the equation is

under State Ballen in der sinder ander andere Allen in Marie in Marie in der sinder im der sinder ander sinder

Constraint of a

Section 2.

Sec. 1

e la rolla

Man strand radio and a statist in part of the State State of the Arch on the State of the state of the state of

$$\gamma = x_{A}^{2} \gamma_{A}^{(1+x_{B}k_{1})} + x_{B}^{2} \gamma_{B}^{(1+x_{A}k_{2})} + 2x_{A}x_{B} \gamma_{AB}$$
(4.18)

where \mathcal{M}_A represents the A·····A interactions, \mathcal{M}_B the B·····B interactions and \mathcal{M}_{AB} the A·····B interactions. The term $(1+x_Bk_1)$ introduces a dependence of the A·····A interactions on the presence of B molecules. When the concentration of B is very small, the A·····A interactions are hardly influenced at all (as we would expect, since when x_B vanishes to zero, \mathcal{M}_A would represent the interaction A·····A for pure A) and the term $(1+x_Ak_2)$ would have a great effect on the B·····B interactions (since $x_A = 1-x_B$).

4.6 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Equations (4.2), (4.13) and (4.15) were solved by computer by means of polynomial regression analyses. Table (4.1) gives a list of the sums of the squares of the errors obtained for each equation and each system. The smaller the value of this, the better the ability of the equation to describe the experimental results. The three parameter versions of the above equations were analysed by a double variable polynomial regression analysis technique developed by Sinclair and Vincent¹¹⁰. Tables (4.2-4.10) give lists of the experimental and calculated viscosity data for each system and each equation.

For all three one parameter models, the viscosity of the binary mixtures was predicted to within 10% and usually to within 2%, tables (4.2-4.8). Although there was some variation in the extent to which each of the models described the systems there was no single model which described all three systems better than the others.

- 104 -

and manufactures a

4.80

TABLE 4.1

1. 18 M.

The sums of the squares of the errors for each system and each model

A STANDARD STATUS

-

the state to and a state of

318.15 K	I formamide/water	II formamide/methanol	III formamide/dimethyl- formamide
DOLEZ.	0.4826×10^{-6}	0.3660 x 10 ⁻⁶	0.3881×10^{-5}
TAMKUR.	0.1950×10^{-5}	0.4134×10^{-6}	0.3842×10^{-5}
MATHER.	0.9475×10^{-5}	0.4613×10^{-6}	0.1591×10^{-5}
308.15 K			
DOLEZ.	0.6189×10^{-6}	0.6301×10^{-6}	0.8150×10^{-5}
TAMKUR.	0.3046×10^{-5}	0.7087×10^{-6}	0.7603×10^{-5}
MATHER.	0.1538×10^{-4}	0.7881 x 10 ⁻⁶	0.3170×10^{-5}
298.15 K			
DOLEZ.	0.1890×10^{-5}	0.1550×10^{-5}	0.1430×10^{-4}
TAMKUR.	0.7839×10^{-5}	0.1678×10^{-5}	0.1609×10^{-4}
MATHER.	0.3307×10^{-4}	0.1809×10^{-5}	0.9017×10^{-5}
288.15 K			
DOLEZ.	0.4455×10^{-5}	-	0.3004×10^{-4}
TAMKUR.	0.1848×10^{-4}	-	0.3614×10^{-4}
MATHER.	0.7191×10^{-4}	-	0.2349×10^{-4}

an an an anthuiseachta a an airean an ann an bhan a bhair an an bhair an an aireadh bhan an ar bhanailt ann an

Key to tables (4,2) to (4.10)

X = mole fraction of component other than formamide (<u>ie</u> water, methanol or dimethylformamide)

Y(XPER) = experimentally measured viscosity in 10^2Jm^{-3} s

Y(DOLEZ) = viscosity calculated using the Dolezalek model

Y(VINC 1) = viscosity calculated using the corresponding three parameter model

Y(A-A+B-B) = viscosity due to the A·····A, and B·····B interactions only (as calculated from the one parameter model)

eg for the Dolezalek model $Y(A-A+B-B) = x_A^2 \eta_A + x_B^2 \eta_B$ A-B FACTOR = Y(DOLEZ) - Y(A-A+B-B)

(MAT.-HER.) = Mato-Hernandez Model

(TAM-KUR.) = Tamura-Kurata Model

- 106 -

రాజుత్లు కొర్కెర్ కొర్కులు ఉదినిల స్పర్ణికుల్లో క్రామ

เขาส่วาสโอชน์

	A-B FACTOR 0.217562D-02 0.295113D-02 0.456815D-02 0.456815D-02 0.438535D-02 0.438535D-02 0.291032D-02 0.291032D-02 0.164451D-02 0.854451D-03	17 r.	A-B FACTOR 0.250941D-02 0.340389D-02 0.482054D-02 0.526900D-02 0.526900D-02 0.526900D-02 0.526816D-02 0.420070D-02 0.335683D-02 0.985542D-03 0.985542D-03
	Y (VINC 1) 0.176716D-01 0.152876D-01 0.134858D-01 0.112963D-01 0.112963D-01 0.862510D-02 0.862510D-02 0.642218D-02 0.642218D-02		Y (VINC 1) 0.215897D-01 0.198320D-01 0.162733D-01 0.135092D-01 0.119252D-01 0.119252D-01 0.102214D-01 0.930615D-02 0.821764D-02 0.769033D-02
A CL	r (DOLEZ.) 0.179585D-01 0.137269D-01 0.137269D-01 0.13308D-01 0.837115D-02 0.837115D-02 0.668535D-02 0.668535D-02 0.629637D-02	5 X '	r(polez.) 0.219049D-01 0.201879D-01 0.165381D-01 0.135470D-01 0.117961D-01 0.994224D-02 0.899950D-02 0.798307D-02 0.755205D-02
[)Temperature 218.	Y (A-A + B-B) 0.157829D-01 0.136604D-01 0.954755D-02 0.676268D-02 0.472920D-02 0.472920D-02 0.466149D-02 0.466149D-02 0.544192D-02 0.544192D-02	Temperature 308.1	Y (A-A + B-B) 0.193955D-01 0.117176D-01 0.827800D-02 0.673792D-02 0.574154D-02 0.564267D-02 0.564267D-02 0.608657D-02 0.656651D-02
le/Water System(]	Y(XPER) 0.175950D-01 0.162580D-01 0.135340D-01 0.113050D-01 0.113050D-01 0.861000D-02 0.861000D-02 0.682900D-02 0.638700D-02		r(rrer) r(rrer) 0.217440D-01 0.196660D-01 0.162720D-01 0.119710D-01 0.119710D-01 0.112230D-01 0.931500D-02 0.815600D-02 0.815600D-02 0.815600D-02
able 4.2 Formamid	X 138150D 00 202520D 00 354130D 00 500120D 00 600020D 00 801210D 00 801210D 00 900020D 00 953820D 00		x 1381500 00 2025200 00 3541300 00 5001200 00 5001200 00 50012100 00 5000200 00 5000200 00 9000200 00 1900200 00 19002000 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 1900200 00 190000000000000000000000000000000000

-107-

151 900 15V

PER) X (A-A + B-B) 950D-01 0.170276D-01 580D-01 0.152381D-01 340D-01 0.113745D-01				
PER) Y (A-A + B-B) 950D-01 0.170276D-01 580D-01 0.152381D-01 340D-01 0.113745D-01				1
950D-01 0.170276D-01 580D-01 0.152381D-01 340D-01 0.113745D-01	Y (TAM-KUR)	Y (VINC 1)	A-B FACTOR	
580 D-01 0. 152 38 1D-01 34 0D-01 0. 1137 45 D-01	0.182550r-01	0.1774330-01	0.156553D-01	
340D-01 0.113745D-01	0.169698D-01	0.163518D-01	0-220866E-01	
	0.140848D-01	0.1350120-01	0.3456810-01	
0.819695D-02	0.1147960-01	0-112200D-01	0.418679E-01	
300D-01 0.651046D-02	0.9937355-02	0.9985791-02	0.4370750-01	
000D-02 0.502187D-02	0.819462D-02	0.860994 D-02	0.404661D-01	
000D-02 0.459413D-02	0.732140 0-02	0.7872020-02	0.347843D-01	
000D-02 0.473633D-02	0.643982D-02	0.694084D-02	0.217268L-01	
700D-02 0.520423D-02	0.614073D-02	0.646056D-02	0.119443D-01	
mammars 308.1	1 5 K			109
	;			
	. Idna_Mami w	IL UNITIA	400010 0 1 1	
	(YOULUAT) T			
		0.216630D-01	0. 153818E-U1	
	- TOLOODOT .	IN MEDEDEL IN		
720 D-01 0.139702D-01	0.170226D-01	0.162925D-01	0.361762E-01	
226D-01 0.100498D-01	0.1374442-01	0.134203D-01	0.437864D-01	
710 D-01 0.796367D-02	0.1181780-01	0.1187920-01	0.456767E-01	
2300-01 0.6121130-02	0.9639555-02	0.102097b-01	0.422908D-01	
500D-02 0.558226D-02	0.864914D-62	0.933827D-02	0.363467D-01	
5C0D-02 0.573035D-02	0.764436E-02	0.8270715-02	0.226837D-01	
00 C-C 2.628615D-02	0.7337700-02	0.773724D-02	0.124623D-01	

· -	A. 5	·	•-•	а <u>.</u>	+		<		1			×						1	-
-	A-B FACTOR 0.166109D-01	0.3666780-01	0.462843D-01	0.428411E-01	0.36/883D-01	0.1259490-01	4			A-B FACTOR	· 0.1788535-01	0.252288D-01	0. 394745E-01	0.4779350-01	0.497901D-01	0.460659D-01	0. 395434 C-01	0.246266D-01	0.135069D-01
	Y (VINC 1) 0.270306D-01	0. 1985060-01	0.1431920-01	0.123708D-01	0.113812D-01	0.955901D-02				Y (VINC 1)	0.350444D-01	0.316721D-01	0.250447D-01	0.201697D-01	0.1773070-01	0.153495D-01	0.142037D-01	0.128426D-01	0.12.1419 D-01
3 8 0 23	Y (TAM-KUR) 0.280506D-01	0.2101260-01	0.16/264D-01 0.142200E-01	0.1154150-01	0. 10 28 40 E+0 1	0.892411D-02		3.15K		T (TAM-KUR)	0.366116D-01	0.335637D-01	0.268283D-01	0.209580E-01	0.175745D-01	0.1407225-01	0.125161D-01	0.113134 D-01	0.111683D-01
	Y (A-A + B-B) 0.265563D-01	0.1771390-01	0.1273130-01 0.100562D-01	0.7687510-02	0.697455D-02	0.7791070-02		Temperature 288		Y(A-A + E-B)	0.350332D-01	0.313373D-01	0.233447D-01	0.167402D-01	0.131805D-01	0.100069 0-01	0.902647D-02	0.914010D-02	0.9976350-02
و ۲	Y (XFER) 0.266890D-01	0.1995100-01	0.16417CD-01 0.145290D-01	0.123780D-01	0.1128200-01	0.9381000-02			1	Y (XPER)	0-346040D-01	0.312890D-01	0.250760D-01	0.205290D-01	0.1808402-01	0.1538200-01	0.14031CD-01	0.1246300-01	C.11835CD-01
	X 0.138150D 00	0.3541300 00	0.500120D 00 0.600020D 00	0.7251400 00	0.8012100 00	0.950820D 00					1 0.138150D 00	C. 202520D 00	0.3541300 00	1 0.500120D 00	. C.6CCC2CD 00	· 0.725140D 00	. 0.8012190 00	; 0.9C0020D 0C	· 0.950820D 00

I Temperature 298.15K

-110-

									1		-	-1	11-		12										
		A-B FACTOR	0.6310940-03	0.109161D-02	0.146503D-02	0.166315D-02	0.171662D-02	0.158727D-02	0.109610D-02	0.637468D-03	, , ,				A-B FACTOR	0.440493D-03	0.646245D-03	0.111824D-02	C.149877D-02	0.169896D-02	0.175370D-02	0.162101D-02	0.111753D-02	0.6490920-03	
		Y (VINC 1)	0.1693430-01	0.1614900-01	0.169425D-01	0.183166D-01	0.195848D-01	0.1940290-01	0.1616350-01	0.1221330-01					Y (VINC 1)	0.220151D-01	0.2087580-01	0.1997490-01	0.2096890-01	0.226453D-01	0.2420310-01	0.239488D-01	0.1986690-01	0.1494270-01	
AC1.0	۲. 8	Y (MAT-HER) 0 188375h-01	0.1771830-01	0.149641D-01	0.120697D-01	0.102338D-01	G.794491D-02	0.678654D-02	0.578833D-02	0.568222D-02			.15K	•	Y (MAT-HER)	0.2305560-01	0.216355D-01	0.1816270-01	0.145057D-01	0.121891D-01	0.936367D-02	0.795832D-02	0.6806550-02	0.674895D-02	
olc armarafiatiatit	e do	Y (A-A + B-B) 0 1840747-01	0.1708720-01	0.138725D-01	0.106047D-01	0.857063D-02	0.6228290-02	0.519928D-02	0.469223D-02	0.504475D-02			Temperature 308	*	Y (A-A + B-B)	0.226151D-01	0.2098930-01	0.1704450-01	0.130069D-01	0.1049010-01	0.769996 D-02	0.633731D-02	0.5689020-02	0.609986D-02	
mater varer averem	22	Y (XPER) 0.1759500-01	0.162580D-01	0.135340D-01	0.113050D-01	0.1008000-01	0.861000D-02	0.7340000-02	0.6829000-02	0.638700D-02					Y (XPER)	0.2174400-01	0.196660D-01	0.1627200-01	0.1352200-01.	0-1197100-01	0.1022300-01	0.931506D-02	0.815600D-U2	0.765500D-02	
Table 4.4 forma	- - - -	x 0.1381500 00	. 0.202520D 00	0.3541300 00	0.500120D 00	0.60020D 00	0.7251400 00	0.801210D 00	: 0.900020D 00	: 0.950820D 00					X	0.1381500 00	0.2025200 00	0.3541300 00	0.5001200 00	0.600020D 00	0.7251400 00	0.8012100 00	0.9000200 00	U.950820D 00	

а÷		•									-,1	12-												
	• • • •	A-B FACTOR 0.380428D-03	0.558073D-03	C.129509D-02	0.146533D-02	0.151167D-02	0.1394920-02	50-4601005*0					2 3 3	A-B FACTOR	0.232215D-03	0.340630D-03	0.5888500-03	0.7897270-03	0.8928150-03	0.9202470-03	0.848568D-03	0.582538D-03	0.337214D-03	
24	•	Y.(VINC 1) 0.275335D-01	0.259130D-01	0.2553790-01	0.2756890-01	0.2961050-01	0.2937480-01	0.244/4/0-0	0-10++01-0				•	Y (VINC 1)	0.360488D-01	0.338025D-01	0.31621CD-01	0.3294330-01	C. 355501D-01	0.382339D-01	0.379641D-01	0.315959D-01	0.2375610-01	
15K		Т (МАТ-НЕК) 0.290973D-01	0.2720710-01	0.1780560-01	0.1474290-01	0.1111060-01	0.9348220-02	0.8047050-02	. 0.812/320-02	•		.15K.		Y (MAT-HER)	0.3810280-01	0.354807D-01	0.230834D-01	0.2251830-01	0.1833150-01	0.134728D-01	0.1119980-01	0.9715950-02	0.100470D-01	
Temperature 298.	٠	Y (A-A + B-B) 0.287169D-01	0.2664900-01	0.216210D-01 0.165105D-01	0.1327761-01	0.9598880-02	0.7953300-02	0.708689 D-02	0.7570420-02			Temperature 288.		Y (A-A + B-B)	0.3787060-01	0.3514000-01	0.2849460-01	0.217285D-D1	0.174387D-01	0.1255260-01	0.1035130-01	0.913341D-02	0.970983D-02	•
200	•	Y (X PER) 0.266890D-01	0.243860D-01	0.199510D-01	0.1452900-01	0.1237800-01	0.1128200-01	0.994000D-02	0.938100D-02				•	V (YPER)	0.346040D-01	0.3128900-01	0.2507600-01.	0.2052900-01	0.180840D-01	0.1538200-01	0.140310D-01	0.1246300-01	0.1183500-01	
		X 0 1381500 00	0.202520D 00	0.3541300 00		0.7251400 00	0.8012100 00	0.9000200 00	0.950820D 00				•	Å	0.1381500 00	0.2025200 00	0.3541360 001	0.5001200 00	0.6006200 00	0.7251400 00	0.8012100 00	. 0. 969620D 06	0.9508200 00	

×	Y(XPER)	Y (A-A + E-B)	Y(DOLEZ.)	(I JUINC I)	A-B FACTOR
0.8930000 00	0.6675040-02	0.470363D-02	0.6263300-02	0.6697970-02	0.1559670-02
0.8150000 00	0.7645250-02	0.473210D-C2	C.715319D-02	0.7745570-02	0.2461090-02
0.6570000 00	0-9631390-02	0.5726510-02	0.9205520-02	C.968878D-02	C.347901D-02
	0-1256700-01	0.8296090-02	0.123344D-01	0.124993D-01	0.4038280-02
0.5090000 00	0.1356970-01	0.935668D-C2	C.134361D-01	0.1348365-01	0.407941C-02
0.4040000 00	0.1635850-01	0.1260100-01	0.1653130-01	C.1625CCD-01	0.3930300-02
0.291000D 0C	C. 199372D-01	0.1703860-01	0.204063D-01	0.199349D-01	0.336773D-02
0. 1900000 00	0.2370660-01	0.2183500-01	0.2434710-01	0.238190D-01	0.2512100-02
0.1120000 00	0.271851C-01	0.2607540-01	0.2769880-01	C.272695D-01	0.162342D-02
		Temperature 30	8.15K		
0.8930000 00	0.5643390-02	0.403040D-02	C. 5491010-02	0.5761780-02	0.1410620-02
0.815000D 00	0.6548410-02	0.404098D-02	0.626687D-C2	0.6610810-02	0.2225890-02
0.6920000 00	0.8178510-02	0.4739250-02	0.7885770-02	0.8186270-02	0.3146520-02
0.5510000 00	0.1050900-01	C.668463D-02	0.1033700-01	0.1043870-01	0.365234D-02
0.5090000 00	0.1129076-01	0.7500520-02	0.111901D-01	C.112185D-01	0.368955D-02
0.404000 00	0.1345040-01	0.1001500-01	0.1356970-01	0.1341790-01	C.3554690-02
0.2910000 00	0.1623870-01	0.1347870-01	0.165246D-01	0.1622940-01	0.304588D-02
00 0000061.0	0.1909600-01	0.1723940-01	C.195114D-01	0.1918110-01	0.2272020-02
0.1120000 00	0.2167500-01	0.2057310-01	0.2204140-01	0.2177300-01	C.146827D-02
		Temperature 298	3.15K		
0. 8950000 00	20-06TC+0C*0	U-35/4300-02	0.4840800-02	0. 504 505D-0Z	0.1205490-02
0.815000 0C	0.568191D-02'	0.3499135-02	0.5497590-02	0.5762050-02	C. 199847D-02
0.6920000 00	0.7043590-02	0.4006580-02	0.6831620-02	0.7062576-02	0.2825040-02
0.5510000 00	0.8927830-02	0.553081D-02	0.880559D-02	0.8887850-02	0.3279180-02
0.509000 00	0.9563730-02	0.6179450-02	0.9492040-02	0.95135CD-02	C.331258D-02
0.4040000 00	0.1129430-01	0.8191870-02	0.113834D-01	0.112662D-01	0.3191500-02
0.2910000 00	0.1350390-01	0.109813D-01	0.137160D-01	0.134885D-01	0.2734680-02
0.15CCOCD 0C	0.1574740-01	0.1402190-01	0.160618D-01	0.158C73D-01	C. 2C3985D-G2
0.112000D 8C	C.177684D-01	0.1672350-01	0,1804180-01	0.178350C-01	0.1318250-02

i

Table 4.5 methanol/formamide System (II)Temperature 318.15K

...

J

-113-

· · ·

in a contract of the contract

But the mark the start of the second

- ちょうちょうろうのいう

10000

175
- 0
-
100
1
1
ł.
4×
1
11
10
1000
1
20
1
1
44
1
2.4
3
in the second se
25
10
1
1
-
1
3
4
12
22
2
is
2
16
10
橋
1
1000
2.2
10.00
1
4
1
1
1
1
20
1
141
1
- 30
初
3
12

Tag	ble 4.6 fc	Drmamid	e/methanol System(II) Temperature 318	3.15K.		
ř.	×		Y (XPER)	Y(A-A + B-B)	Y (TAM-KUR)	Y(VINC 1)	A-B FACTOR
	0.8930000	00	0.5045190-02	0.3606331-02	0.4835300-02	0.505388D-02	0.1902840 00
	0.8150000	00	0.5681910-02	0.353593D-02	0.5487200-02	0.5766460-02	0.3021200 00
	0.692000D	00	0.7043590-02	0.4039750-02	0.681528D-02	0.7062870-02	0.4297410 00
	0.5510000	00	0.8927830-02	0.5539150-02	0.8783720-02	0.8875760-02	0.5023620 00
	0.5090000	00	0.9563730-02	0.6214320-02	0.949280D-02	0.9517310-02	0.5076130 00
	0.4040000	00	0.112943D-01	0.8229540-02	Q.113948D-01	0.1127130-01	0.4900810 00
	0.2510000	00	0.1350390-01	10-0611011-0	0.1372960-01	0.1348750-01	0.4198650 00
	0.1900000	00	0.1574740-01	0.1405160-01	0.1607660-01	0.158090-01	0.3135240 00
	0.1120000	00	0.177684D-01	0.1675250-01	C.180585D-01	0.1783810-01	0.202207D 00
1				Temperature 308.1	5K		
	0.8930000	00	0.5643390-02	0.4114380-02	0.5483540-02	0.5767240-02	0.1905520 00
	0.8150000	00	0.654841D-02	0.4081830-02	0.6255310-02	0.6617640-02	0.302491D 00
	0.692000D	00	0.8178510-02	0.4776190-02	0.7864570-02	0.8185310-02	0.4298220 00
	0.5510000	00	0.105090D-01	0.6700430-02	C.103114D-01	0.1043030-01	0.5025490 00
-	0.509000	00	U-112907D-01	0.7546130-02	0.1119100-01	0.1122230-01	0.5072750 00
	0.464000	00	C. 134504D-01	0.1006060-01	0.1357610-01	0.134156D-01	0.4892540 00
	0-2910000	00	0.1623870-01	0.1353090-01	0.1654340-01	0.1622940-01	0.4192640 00
	0-1500000	00	0.1909600-01	0.1728570-01	0.1953500-01	0.1918420-01	0.3130390 00
	0.1120000	00	0.2167509-01	0.205104D-01	0.2206030-01	0.217748D-01	0.2017860 00
				Temperature 298.1	5K		
	0.8930000	00	0.6675040-02	0.4739900-02	0-6256370-02	0.6702400-02	0.1908350 00
~~~	0000 418-0	00	0.7645250-02	C.477636D-02	0.7182270-02	0.7751470-02	0.3027630 00
	0.0520000	00	0.9631390-02	0.576883D-02	0.9185180-02	0.9688340-02	0.4299190 00
	0000166.0	00	0.125670D-01	0.8308970-02	0.1229726-01	0.124327D-01	0.5018790 00
	0000604*0	00	0.1356970-01	0.9418240-02	C. 134464D-01	0.1349450-01	0.5069110 00
	0.4040000	00	0.1635850-01	0.126713D-01	0.1655630-01	0.1630340-01	0.4888960 00
	0000162.0	50	0.1993720-01	0.1708240-01	0.2040295-01	0.1991030-01	0.4178570 00
	0.000001.0	00	0.2370660-01	0.2189350-01	0.2437560-01	0.2382500-01	0.3123510 00
	0.1120000	00	0.2718510-01	0.251312D-01	0.2773160-01	0.2728350-01	0.2014000 00

EH	able 4.7 fo.	rmamid	e/methanol System	(II)Temperature 31	8.15K	VININC 11	A-R FACTCR
	×	,	Y (XPER)	Y(A-A + B-B)	Y ( MA I-LUX )	TIVINC IL	
	0.853000D	00	0.5045190-02	0.363884D-02	0.483116D-02	0.666752D-C2	C. I192320-02
20	0.815000	00	0.5681910-02	0.3573590-02	0.5478400-02	0.7080340-02	0.1904810-02
	0.6920000	. 00	0.7043590-02	0.4074500-02	0.680083D-02	0.6184770-02	0.2726340-02
	0.5510000	00	0.8927830-02	0.5550160-02	0.8759820-02	0.42317CD-02	C. 320965D-02
10	0.569000	00	0.956373D-02	0.6250230-02	0.9494290-02	0.3411990-02	0.324406D-02
	0.404000	00	0.1129430-01	0.826800D-02	0.114066D-01	0.2602070-02	0.3138566-02
1), 147	0000152.0	00	0.1350390-01	0.1105490-01	0.1374330-01	C.348615D-02	C.268846D-02
	0-150000	00	0.1574740-01	0.1408160-01	0.1609130-01	0.6652710-02	0.200968D-02
	0.112000D	00	0.177684D-01	0.1678160-01	0.18C751D-01	0.1107755-01	0.1293555-02
			f 	Temperature 308	.15K		
	0.8930000	00	0.564339D-02	0.4148830-02	0.5477340-02	0.7779340-02	0.132852D-02
	0.815000D	00	0.6548410-02	0.4123520-02	0.6245160-02	0.824617D-02	C.212164D-02
	0.692000D	00	0.8178510-02	0.4814610-02	0.7844980-02	0.7051360-02	0.3030370-02
	0.5510000	00	0.105090D-01	0.671884D-02	0.1028770-01	0.4577510-02	0.356890C-02
	0.509000	00	0.1129070-01	0.7592745-02	0.1119240-01	0.3546180-02	C. 355967D-02
	0.4040000	CC	0.1345040-01	0.1010700-01	0.1358250-01	0.2548260-02	0.3475490-02
	0.2910000	00	0.162387D-01	0.1358360-01	C.165622D-01	0.3707916-02	0.2978596-02
	0.150000	00	0.1909600-01	0.1733230-01	0.195584D-01	0.773613D-C2	C. 2226C5D-02
	0.1120000	00	0.2167500-01	0.206479D-01	0.2207920-01	0.1332510-01	0.1431290-02
	0000008 0	2.C	0 447504D-03	Temperature 298.	15K 6760200-03	C0-1217020 0	CU-1236271 0
11	0.8150000	00	0.7645250-02	0.4821400-02	0.7170490-02	0.1001720-01	0.2349090-02
	0.6920000	00	0.9631390-02	0.5812500-02	0.9163230-02	0.849C23D-02	0.335073D-02
	0.5510000	00	0.1256700-01	0.8324320-02	0.122582D-01	0.5297035-02	0.3933900-02
	0.5090000	00	0.135697D-01	0.9480760-02	0.1345350-01	0.3982540-02	0.3972720-02
	0.404000	00	0.1635850-01	0.1274240-01	0.165779D-01	0.27C941D-02	C.3835550-02
	0.2910000	00	0.1993720-01	0.1712650-01	0.203965D-01	0.4200396-02	0.3269930-02
	0.190000D	00	0.2370660-01	0.2195230-01	C.244018D-01	C.941145D-02	0.2449460-02
	0.1120000	. 00	0.2718510-01	0.2618720-01	0.2776300-01	0.1663140-C1	C.157583D-02

-115-

4 0

]

1. Stanford Halles

	· · ·	-					•	121						~ .	~	~ 1		~.	~	~ 1	~	
	A-B FACTOR	C.4509190-02	0.5854910-02	0.6580175-02	C. 682310D-02	0.6358860-02	0.5530250-02	C.406286D-02	0.2216160-02			A-B FACTOR	0.2827735-02	C. 5222340-02	0.6780900-02	0.7620860-02	0.7902210-02	C.736456D-02	0.6404900-02	0.4705430-02	C. 256666D-02	4.1
	Y(VINC 1)	0.8578140-02	0.1021495-01	0.116829D-01	0.142883D-01	0.1631445-01	0.1785690-01	0.194364D-01	0.2061370-01		, ; 1	Y(VINC 1)	0.7954380-02	C. 955708D-02	0.1165510-01	0.1380730-01	0.165635D-01	C.196518D-C1	0.2170840-01	C. 238179D-01	0.2538600-01	•
98.15K	Y ( DCLE Z. )	0.9442990-02	0.109539D-01	0.123242D-01	0.141974D-01	0.157963D-01	0.1710050-01	0.1862020-01	0.200368D-01		8 <u>8.</u> 15 <u>K</u>	Y (DOLEZ.)	C.886763D-02	0.108325D-01	0.1271100-01	0.144382D-01	0.168352D-01	0.1891310-01	0.206294D-01	C.226533D-01	0.2456270-01	
Temperature 2	Y(A-A + B-B)	0.4933800-02	0.509895D-02	0.5743990-02	0.7374330-02	0.9437430-02	0.1157020-01	0.1455732-01	0.1782060-01		Temperature 2	Y(A-A + B-B)	0.603991D-02	0.5610170-02	0.5930060-02	· C.681737D-02	0.893298D-02	0.1154850-01	<pre>C.142245D-01</pre>	0.1794790-01	0.2199600-01	
	Y ( XP ER ) 0 7355540-02	0.8662750-02	0.1016810-01	0.1179600-01	0.1436300-01	0.1610000-01	0.1785255-01	0.196084D-01	0.2073120-01			Y ( XPER )	0.8297660-02	0.9918410-02	0.1134790-01	0.1384920-01	0.1668230-01	0.1955180-01	0.2175630-01	0.2409616-01	0.2556470-01	
1	X 000 000 0	0.7520000 00	00 0000069 0	0.5980000 00	0.473000D 00	0.3670000 00	0.2810000 00	0.1813000 00	0.868600D-01			×	00 0000106-0	0.7920000 00	0.6500000 00	0.5980000 00	0.4730000 00	0.367000 00	0.2810000 00	0.1813000 00	0.888600D-01	
1.0			1.1	1972					-	<b>6</b> -		1.0										

-116-

84. .

	* - 120 mars ^{(*}		-117-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Υ.	A-B FACTOR 0.341246D-02 0.6302266-02 C.8183110-02 0.919676D-02 0.9536296-02	0.7729350-02 0.5678460-02 0.3097410-02	A-B FACTCR.	0.765573D-02 0.994052C-02 0.111719D-01 0.115843D-01 0.1079615-01 0.938936D-02 0.689796D-02 0.689796D-02 0.3762615-02
		Ченан		
8	15K Y(VINC 1) 0.905014D-0 0.111575D-0 C.138333D-0 C.138333D-0 0.166514D-0 0.208092D-0	0.2710980-00.2710980-00.2993960-0		0.1295800-0 0.1295800-0 0.2037440-0 0.2612096-0 0.3109430-0 0.3895840-0 0.3895840-0 0.4200140-0
	318.			
24	a ture l EZ = 1 25210- 78330- 78330- 22240- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 481000- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 48100- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800- 4800-	68810- 68810- 68330- 68330-	DLEZ.)	28870- 28870- 52380- 56240- 69580- 69580- 5620- 5680- 75680- 44540-
•••	енрег У(D( 0.10) 0.12 0.15 0.17 0.17 0.25 0.17		5K -	000000119100000011910000000000000000000
•	5(III)	ana a ta	308.1	
	ystem( + 8-8) 330-02 330-02 330-02 330-02 230-02 230-02 230-02	10-01 10-01 10-01	ture + B-B)	330-02 330-02 330-02 330-02 330-02 330-02 330-01 360-01 360-01 360-01 360-01 270-02
	ide S. (A-A + .68396 .64810 .70393 .82842 .11102	22721	mpera (A-A	
		0000 	e ≻ c	
	thylf -02 -01 -01 -01 -01		i - E	
	/dime 82720 47420 47420 86040 54120 54120 54120	20410 433990 46670 46670	X PER )	58180 58180 58380 58380 58380 68310 68310 58180 58180 58180
	amide . Y( 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.15 0.20	0.32		00000000000000000000000000000000000000
	Lora			د به بر
	4.8	00 00		
	Table X 90100( 59200( 55800(	28100 18130( 38860(	, X	75200 59200 59800 47300 47300 181300 181300
ť	000000	0000		0000000

Table 4.9 Ionumuty/interview         Table 4.0 Ionumuty/interview <th< th=""></th<>
Table 4.9 Iormanus/Marker/ x         Y(TAM-KUR) x         Y(TAM-KUR) x(TAM-KUR)         Y(TAM-KUR) x(TAM-KUR)         Y(TAM-KUR) x(Y(NC 1)           0.7355540-02 0.7320000 00 0.7355540-01 0.5900500-02 0.5900500-02 0.5900500-01 0.5900500-01 0.5900500-01 0.5900500-01 0.1345500-01 0.1417290-01 0.1179600-01 0.1417290-01 0.11735250-01 0.11735250-01 0.11735250-01 0.11735250-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835590-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11835950-01 0.11845990-00 0.11835950-01 0.1184590-01 0.12555170-02 0.1113595180-01 0.1184590-01 0.12555170-02 0.1113595180-01 0.12555170-01 0.12555170-01 0.12555170-01 0.1255500-01 0.12555170-01 0.12555170-01 0.12555170-01 0.12555170-01 0.12555170-01 0.1255500-01 0.1255500-01 0.25556470-01 0.1255500-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25556470-01 0.25555170-01 0.25556470-01 0.2555500001         Y(YMC 1) 0.255550001
Table 4.9       VIAPE       VIAPE       VIAPE       VIAPE $x$ x       y (x PER)       y (x A-A + B-B)       v (x A-A + B-B)
X       Y (XPER)       Y (A-A + B-B)         0.901 (000 00       0.7355540-02       0.5573370-02         0.7520000 00       0.1016810-01       0.5500-02         0.5590000 00       0.1179600-01       0.5080530-02         0.5590000 00       0.1179600-01       0.5606590-02         0.5590000 00       0.1179600-01       0.5606590-02         0.5590000 00       0.1179500-01       0.5606590-02         0.5590000 00       0.1179500-01       0.566590-02         0.5886000-01       0.1435300-01       0.566590-02         0.8886000-01       0.1785250-01       0.9558770-02         0.8886000-01       0.1960840-01       0.1650210-01         0.8886000-01       0.2073120-01       0.1650210-01         0.8886000-01       0.2073120-01       0.1650210-02         0.88860000-01       0.2073120-01       0.16562170-02         0.98860000-01       0.2073120-01       0.16562170-02         0.7526000       0.1134790-01       0.16562170-02         0.9918410-02       0.5923830-02       0.5923830-02         0.7526000       0.91384920-01       0.5523730-02         0.77236720-02       0.76647300-02       0.5923650-02         0.7723670000       0.25747300-02       0.7156450-02
X 0.9616000 00 0.7920000 00 0.7920000 00 0.6900000 00 0.6900000 00 0.6755640-02 0.690000 00 0.1179600-01 0.1785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.11785250-01 0.1175630-01 0.11334920-01 0.1813000 00 0.1134790-01 0.5580000 00 0.1134790-01 0.5580000 00 0.1134790-01 0.5581000 00 0.1134790-01 0.2556470-01 0.2810000 00 0.1134790-01 0.1813000 00 0.1134790-01 0.2810000 00 0.1134790-01 0.1813000 00 0.1134790-01 0.2556470-01 0.2556470-01
X 0.9616000 00 0.7920000 00 0.6900000 00 0.4730000 00 0.2816000 00 0.2816000 00 0.2816000 00 0.2816000 00 0.1813000 00 0.6900000 00 0.6900000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5810000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5980000 00 0.5580000 00 0.5590000 00 0.5590000 00 0.5590000 00 0.5590000 00 0.5590000 00 0.550000 00 0.550000 00 0.5590000 00 0.550000 00 0.550000 00 0.550000 00 0.50000 00 0.500000 00 0.50000 00 0.50000 00 0.50000 00 0.50000 00 0.50000 00 0.50000 00 0.50000 00 0.5000000 00 0.5000000000 00 0.50000000000

•		*	•••	2.	< 8 1000	-				i.		119	<b>)-</b>		•	0	0	•	0			0		•	
	A-8 FACTOR 0.134773D 00	0.263476D 00	0.3625120 00	0.4307080 00	0.482097D 00	0.481888D 00	0.4467400 00	0.354206D 00	C. 208140D 00						A-B FACTOR	0.1351530 0	0.2636500 0	0.3626460 0	0.4307330 0	0.4821720 0	0.4826950 00	0.4464590 0	0.3538710 00	0.2071060 00	
:	Y ( V INC 1) 0.924646D-02	0.1128860-01	0.1382590-01	0.1654280-01	0.2060360-01	0.2422420-01	0.271748D-01	0.302094D-01	0.3231940-01					· · · · ·	ALVING 1)	0.105378D-01	0.131146D-01	0.164912D-01	0.2018990-01	0.2583180-01	10-0169506.0	0.3506520-01	0.3937160-01	0.4222810-01	1. 1.
I8.15K	Y (TAM-KUR) C. 103919D-01	0.129920D-01	0.1547880-01	0.1776730-01	0.2085530-01	0.2352430-01	0.2581050-01	C.284674D-01	0.309374D-01	*	•			38 <b>.</b> 15K	Y(TAM-KUR)	0.1224860-01	0.156528D-01	0.189528D-01	0.2201190-01	0.262040D-01	0.2992200-01	0.3303080-01	0.367761D-01	0.401778D-01	
Temperature 29	Y(A-A + B-B) 0.704222D-02	0.644346D-02	0.6468760-02	0.7062270-02	0.8873050-02	0.1154720-01	0.147070D-01	0.1966380-01	0.2576420-01					, Temperature 28	Y (A-A + B-B)	0.8058180-02	0.7478270-02	0.7708910-02	0.865695D-02	0.1125410-01	0.149560D-01	0.1918830-01	0.2580430-01	0.3375640-01	
4 1	YI XPER) 0.9482720-02	0.1147420-01	0.138604D-01	0.165412D-01	0.2027430-01	0.241014D-01	0.2720410-01	0.3043990-01	0.324667D-01					4 · · · · ·	Y (XPER)	0.1097390-01	0.1349200-01	0.1658380-01	0.201456D-01	0.2525590-01	0.3068310-01	0.3509320-01	0.398168D-01	0.4258180-01	
		0. 7920000 00	0.690000 00	0.598000D 00	0.4730000 00	0.3670000 00	0.2810000 00	0.1813000 00	0.8886000-01	•					×	0. 9010000 00	1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	00 00000 00 v	0.59800CD 00	0.4730000 00	0.3670000 00	0. 7810000 0C	0.1813000 00	0.888600D-01	

H 6

;

.....

2

		-120-	معموم وروار والمراجع
•	A-B FACT DR 0.231853D-02 C.483068D-02 0.651668D-02 0.683162C-02 C.106862D-01 0.115014D-01 0.113254C-01 0.113254C-01 C.569826D-02	0.6139590-02	A-B FACTCR C. 190402D-02 0.396200D-02 0.577837C-02 C.72693CD-02 C.72693CD-02 0.880251D-02 0.947723C-02 C.933975D-02 C.933975D-02 0.799832D-02 0.506740C-02
VC1	Y (VINC 1) 0.899517D-02 0.998262D-02 0.916530C-02 0.916372D-02 0.916372D-02 0.754246D-02 0.629779D-02 0.611776D-02 0.611776D-02	0.1405520-01	Y(VINC 1) 0.77566CD-02 0.851995C-02 0.844946D-02 0.79C316D-02 0.574116D-02 0.574116D-02 0.574116D-02 0.564C32D-02 0.554510-02 0.7253510-02 0.118760C-01
·onc armaradual	Y(MAT-HER) 0.88CC04D-02 0.1177856D-01 0.117784D-01 C.145689D-01 C.145689D-01 0.193907D-01 0.193907D-01 0.233155D-01	6 X	Y(MAT-HER) 0.7713240-02 0.92655540-02 0.1079370-01 0.1427385-01 0.1427905-01 0.1427905-01 0.1751220-01 0.1912130-01 0.1912130-01 0.1912130-01 0.1912130-01
rmamide System(ILL	Y(A-A + B-B) 0.648151D-02 0.595490D-02 0.573724D-02 0.643C616-02 0.643C616-02 0.788933D-02 0.991134D-02 0.1361720-01	0.1881819-01 Temperature 318	Y(A-A + B-B) 0.580923U-02 C.530354U-02 0.501530D-02 0.500445U-02 0.5500445U-02 0.5500445U-02 0.55245U-02 0.65843U0-02 0.817245D-02 0.817245D-02 0.111230D-01 0.153198D-01
rmamide/dimethylfo	Y(XPER) 0.829766D-02 0.991841D-02 0.113479D-01 0.1384920-01 0.156823D-01 0.195518D-01 0.195518D-01 0.217563D-01 0.240961D-01	0.2556470-01	Y (XPER) 0.7355540-02 0.8662750-02 0.1016810-01 0.1179600-01 0.1610000-01 0.1610000-01 0.1785250-01 0.1960840-01 0.1960840-01
Table 4.10 fo:	X 0.9010000 00 0.7520000 00 0.6900000 00 0.4730000 00 0.4730000 00 0.3670000 00 0.3670000 00 0.3670000 00 0.1613000 00	0.8586000-01	X 0.9C1000D 00 0.752000D 00 0.659000D 00 0.5580000 00 0.473000D 00 0.473000D 00 0.281000D 00 0.181300D 00 0.181300D 00 0.8886000-01

and the second

"TTT | Temperature 308.15K

	• • • •	•		-121-					
	A-B FACTOR 0.287444C-02 0.594843D-02	0.867246D-02 0.108930D-01 0.131615D-01 C 1411020-01	0.139439D-01 0.1193155-01 C.755316D-02	4		A-B FACTOR 0.366956D-02 0.756114C-02	C.11C173D-01 0.138296D-01	0.1797200-01 0.1767860-01 0.1511780-01	0.9493190-02
	Y(VINC 1) 0.1036690-01 0.1147610-01	0.113241D-01 0.103672C-01 0.829473D-02 0.4746710-02	0.173CC2D-01			Y(VINC 1) 0.122767D-01 0.136812D-01	0.1343760-C1 0.121232D-01	0.734548D-02 0.734548D-02 0.725917D-02 0.1117176-01	0.2160770-01
3.15X	Y (MAT-HER) 0.102075D-01 0.126855D-01	0.151915D-01 0.176617D-01 0.208997D-01	0.2633150-01 0.2911490-01 0.3140490-01		.15K	Y(MAT-HER) 0.1205760-01 0.1530580-01	0.1864140-01 0.2185730-01	0.3037310-01 0.3372310-01 0.3372310-01 0.376098D-01	0.4061020-01
Temperature 298	Y (A-A + B-R) 0.733307D-02 0.673705D-02	0.651909D-02 0.670873D-02 0.773822D-02	0.1238760-01 0.1718330-01 0.2365175-01		Temperature 288	Y (A-A + B-B) 0.838805U-02 0.7744680-02	0.7624120-02 0.8027670-02	0.9610090-02 0.1240110-01 0.1604450-01 0.2249200-01	0.3111700-01
	Y(XPER) 0.948272D-02 0.114742D-01	0.138604D-01 0.165412D-01 0.202743D-01	0.272041D-01 0.304399D-01 0.324667D-01		•	V(XPER) 0.109739D-01	0.1658380-01	0.2525590-01 0.3068310-01 0.3509320-01 0.3981680-01	0.4258180-01
•	X 0.901000D 00 0.792000D 00	0.6500000 00 0.5980000 00 0.4730000 00	0.85810000 00 0.1813000 00 0.8586000-01			0.9010000 00	0. 1920000 00 0. 6500000 00 0. 5580000 00	0.473000D 00 0.367000D 00 0.281000D 00	0.8836000-01

「「「「「「

Ghai and Dullien¹¹¹ investigated the Tamura Kurata equation for eleven binary mixtures. They found that for the ideal solutions, <u>ie</u> solutions for which there was no possibility of hydrogen bonding or complex formation (such as m-bromotoluene/toluene, and benzene/ toluene), the fit was very good (better than 1%) but that for other systems (especially the n-propanol/toluene system) a much poorer fit was obtained. They also pointed out that the McAllister equation did much better than the Tamura Kurata in only one case, that of the n-propanol/toluene system.

Reynaud¹¹², on the other hand, investigated the ability of equations (4.2), (4.13) and (4.15) to describe the viscosity of the binary mixtures N-ethylacetamide/water and N-methylacetamide/water. The experimental measurements on these systems were made by Assarsson and Eirich¹¹³ who concluded that the maxima which they obtained in the viscosity/concentration graphs was indicative of complex hydrogen bonding between the two components of the mixtures. For these systems, Reynaud suggested that both the Tamura-Kurata, and the Dolezalek equations were reasonably good representations and that the Tamura-Kurata equation was especially good at high concentrations of amide.

Tamura and Kurata⁹⁸ did point out that their equation was less applicable to mixtures where  $\gamma_A$  and  $\gamma_B$  were very different (eg water and glycerol).

From table (4.1) which gives a list of the sums of the squares of the errors obtained in applying each model to all three systems at the various temperatures it can be seen that

(i) for the formamide/water mixtures, System (I), the Dolezalek model, equation (4.2), provides the best comparision with the experimental results,

(ii) for the formamide/methanol mixtures, System (II), all three

- 122 -

enterne se staffet i sa filfet de se ser l'a staffet en la ser la se prin ha presenter de staffet enterne ser s

models are equally good; and

(iii) for the formamide/dimethylformamide mixtures, System (III), the Mato-Hernandez model, equation (4.15), is the best.

19 3 3 5 128 April 1 2010

40 Dame Hole as the r

#### 4.7 ACTIVATION PARAMETERS

According to the Eyring rate theory, the activation enthalpy of viscous flow for a simple liquid is given by equation (3.24), Chapter 3, and is independent of temperature. A plot of  $\ln \gamma$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$  should give a straight line (assuming V and  $\Delta S^*$  are constant) from which  $\Delta H^*$  can be calculated. For associated liquids however it has been proposed that  $\Delta H^*$  is not independent of temperature^{89,114}. Tyuzyo¹¹⁴ used this fact to classify associated solvents into two groups. Associated liquids of the first kind he considered would have an activation enthalpy of viscous flow which would be independent of temperature. However he considered that formamide and methanol would both belong to this group. This classification of formamide is not supported in the present work.

Figs. (4.1) and (4.2) show such plots for the solvents used in the above investigations. It can be seen that the viscosity of both methanol and dimethylformamide change very little with increasing temperature, fig. (4.2). The behaviour of formamide however is similar to that of water, fig. (4.1). The temperature coefficient of the viscosity is large and for both these solvents a marked curvature can be seen in fig. (4.1). This behaviour is that normally attributed to solvents which have a high degree of association.

Similar plots can be seen, fig. (4.3), for the mutual viscosity coefficients,  $M_{AB}$ , obtained for the various models for the three systems.

- 123 -





- 124 -

والمحتور والمحارب والمتحارثة والمواجر والمراجر والمحادي والمحادثين

2 .

14 · · ·

## Key to fig. (4.3)

$\nabla$	Represents $\eta_{AB}$ for System III (formamide/dimethylformamide)
	calculated by the Mato-Hernandez model (equation 4.15)
0	Represents $\gamma_{\rm AB}$ for System III calculated by the Tamura-Kurata
e state .	model (equation 4.13)
D	Represents $M_{AB}$ for System III calculated by the Dolezalek
	model (equation 4.2)
Δ	Represents $\eta_{\mathrm{AB}}$ for System I (formamide/water) calculated
	from equation (4,2)
0	Represents $\gamma_{AB}$ for System I calculated from equation (4.13)
	Represents $M_{AB}$ for System I calculated from equation (4.15)

<u>NOTE</u> For clarity the plots of  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  for system II (formamide/ methanol) were all reduced by 0.2 on the  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  scale

- Represents  $\gamma_{AB}$  for System II calculated from equation (4.2)
- * Represents  $\gamma_{AB}$  for System II calculated from equation (4.13)
- Represents  $M_{AB}$  for System II calculated from equation (4.15)

. .



:

and and the constant of the second states of the second states and the second states and the second states the

#### 4.8 SYSTEM II, formamide/methanol

As noted earlier, all three models describe this system equally well. This can probably be attributed to the fact that the molar volumes of formamide and methanol are very similar (39.84 and 40.75 ml respectively at 298.15 K) and therefore for each model approximately the same dependence is put on each pure component irrespective of whether the volume fractions or the mole fractions are considered. The plots of  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$  for the mutual viscosity coefficients,  $\gamma_{\rm AB}$ , for all three one parameter models for this system gave straight lines, fig. (4.3) which were almost parallel. The values of  $\Delta G_{AB}^*$ ,  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  and  $\Delta S_{AB}^*$  as calculated by computer program are given in table (4.11).

#### TABLE 4.11

Model	∆G [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	△H [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	∆s [*] _{AB} KJ ⁻¹ /Mol
<ol> <li>(1) Dolezalek</li> <li>(2) Tamura-Kurata</li> <li>(3) Mato-Hernandez</li> </ol>	50.87	7.45	-145.7
	50.80	7.30	-145.7
	50.73	7.30	-145.7
	∆g [*]	∆H*	∆s*
formamide	54.29	15.92	-125.4
methanol	49,89	9.37	-136.0

Activation parameters for  $\mathcal{M}_{AB}$  from each model for System II

Agreement is good for the three models.  $\Delta H^*_{AB}$  is smaller than for either solvent but because  $\Delta s_{AB}^*$  is also smaller,  $\Delta g_{AB}^*$  lies between the value obtained for formamide and methanol. This could imply that the association between unlike molecules in this system is less than that between like molecules.

Because  $\Delta H_{AR}^*$  is less than  $\Delta H^*$  for either solvent, this suggests that fewer bonds are required to be broken for a molecule A

. Brachasta to the State Charles and be and be an

in the neighbourhood of a molecule B moving to the next equilibrium position than are required to be broken for a molecule B moving from a similar position, and vice versa.

elledig (d. 12. dae dae 20. dae gewaard bester

here marries a water the sector of the

The fact that  $\Delta S^*$  for  $\gamma_{AB}$  is more negative than for either  $\mathcal{N}_A$  or  $\mathcal{N}_B$  can indicate one of two things,(a) that the entropy loss is greater for  $\mathcal{N}_{AB}$  due to the ordered situation of B around A or vice versa being less than that of A around A or B around B, or that (b) the extent of ordering in the transition states (for  $\mathcal{N}_{AB}$ ,  $\mathcal{N}_A$  and  $\mathcal{N}_B$ ) is not the same.

The results obtained in this work for the viscosity of formamide/methanol mixtures are in agreement with those measured by Kozlowski¹¹⁵ at 298.15 K.

#### 4.9 SYSTEM III, formamide/dimethylformamide

This system is best described by the Mato-Hernandez model. The molar volume of dimethylformamide at 298.15 K is 77.44 ml compared with that of formamide at the same temperature, 39.84 ml. Since the Mato-Hernandez model lays the most stress on volume fractions, this model therefore emphasises the contribution to  $\gamma$ from the dimethylformamide.

Plots of  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$  for this system can be seen in fig. (4.3). For the Mato-Hernandez equation the plot of  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$  is almost linear. Table (4.12) gives  $\Delta G_{AB}^*$ ,  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  and  $\Delta S_{AB}^*$  for  $\gamma_{AB}$  and the pure solvents.

Both  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  and  $\Delta S_{AB}^*$  are greater for  $\gamma_{AB}$  than for pure dimethylformamide which suggests that the dimethylformamide solvent molecules associate to a greater extent with formamide than with each other.

#### - 128 -
and the second second

### TABLE 4.12

MODEL	△G [*] _{AB} KJ/Mo1	∆H [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	∆s [*] _{AB} JK ⁻¹ /Mol
<ul><li>(2) Tamura-Kurata</li><li>(3) Mato-Hernandez</li></ul>	54.58	14.45	-134.6
	54.90	15.62	-131.8
formamide	54.38	17.74	-122.9
dimethylformamide	52.43	8.27	-148.2

Activation parameters for  $M_{\!AB}$  and System III

#### 4.10 SYSTEM I, formamide/water

The Dolezalek equation (4.2), describes this system more accurately than the others. Fig. (4.3) gives the plot of  $\ln M_{AB}$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$  for this system. Again it can be seen that this is nearest to a straight line for the Dolezalek model. The molar volume of water is 18.07 ml compared with 39.84 ml for formamide, thus the other models, which emphasise molar volumes and hence further increase the formamide contribution to M, do not describe this system so well. Table (4.13), gives the values of  $\Delta G_{AB}^*$ ,  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  and  $\Delta S_{AB}^*$  for  $M_{AB}$  and the pure solvents.

## TABLE 4.13

MODEL	∆G [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	∆H [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	∆s [*] _{AB} JK ⁻¹ /Mol
(1) Dolezalek	50.94	9.34	-139.6
(2) Tamura-Kurata	50.13	5.48	-149.8
formamide	54.33	17.78	-122.7
water	50,13	5.48	-149.8

Activation parameters for  $\gamma_{AB}$  and System I.

Using an argument similar to that used in section 4.8 it would appear that unlike molecules in this system associate to a lesser extent than like molecules.

Although for the Dolezalek model a plot of  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$ ,

fig. (4.3), is almost rectilinear, on close inspection it is seen to have a slight degree of curvature. This curvature indicates that as the temperature is increased,  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  increases. This is considered to be due to a structure breaking influence of either solvent on the other, <u>ie</u> the A·····A and B·····B interactions were weakened by the present of B or A respectively. Accompanying this a decrease in  $\Delta H^*$  for  $M_A$  (for the A·····A interactions) and  $M_B$  would be expected.

The term  $\eta_{AB}$  is calculated by taking weighted averages of the viscosities of the pure components  $\eta_A$  and  $\eta_B$ . Any decrease in  $\Delta H^*$  for  $\eta_A$  and  $\eta_B$ , due to an effect like the one proposed above, will therefore have an overall effect on  $\eta_5$  the viscosity of the mixture. In equations (4.2), (4.13) and (4.15) the values used for  $\eta_A$  and  $\eta_B$  are those obtained from the pure components (ie due to A.....A interactions not under the influence of B etc). At lower temperatures where the structure breaking effect would be expected to be most pronounced, the overall effect on  $\eta$  is reflected in  $\eta_{AB}$ since  $\eta_A$  and  $\eta_B$  are fixed.

As the temperature is raised, the structure breaking effect might be expected to decrease in importance (due to increased thermal motion) and therefore  $\Delta H^*$  for  $\gamma_{AB}$  could be seen to increase.

In all cases it was found that the particular model which described the viscosity of each binary mixture most closely also gave an  $M_{AB}$  the activation enthalpy of which was most independent of temperature.

#### 4.11 THE THREE PARAMETER EQUATION

For each model, the respective three parameter equation as described in section (4.5), was investigated for each system. In all cases, as would be expected, the three parameter

warmen war in the second of the second of

- 130 -

ىرى بەر بەر مەر مەر مەر مەر مەر يەر يەر يەر بەر بەر بەر بەر بەر بەر بەر يەر يەر يەر بەر بەر بەر بەر بەر بەر بەر

extension gave a better fit to the experimental data, tables (4.2-4.10). However for the Mato-Hernandez model the three parameter equation did not converge for any of the systems. Table (4.14) gives a list of the parameters,  $\gamma_{AB}$ ,  $k_1$  and  $k_2$  for the 3 parameter equation and compares them with the  $\gamma_{AB}$  from the one parameter models.

and the second secon

Fig. (4.4), gives a plot of  $\ln \gamma_{AB}$  against  $\frac{1}{T}$  for these new values of  $\gamma_{AB}$  for systems I and III and models (1) and (2). It can be seen that compared with the same graph for the one parameter models, fig. (4.3), there is no apparent curvature. Table (4.15) gives  $\Delta G_{AB}^*$ ,  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  and  $\Delta S_{AB}^*$  obtained for these values of  $\gamma_{AB}$ . A comparison with those obtained for the one parameter models, tables (4.11-4.13), shows that no gross change takes place. For System I however the values obtained by the three parameter models are much closer together, especially for  $\Delta H_{AB}^*$  and  $\Delta S_{AB}^*$ .

Examination of table (4.14) indicates that for the formamide/ water system (1),  $M_{AB}$  for the three parameter models is found to be greaterthan for the one parameter models. By taking into account the effect of A on B....B interactions, etc.,  $M_{AB}$  appears to increase. This supports the interpretation given in section (4.10) where it was suggested that for this system the introduction of either solvent into the other caused a degree of structure loosening of the main solvent and hence a decrease in  $M_A$  and or  $M_B$ .

For the formamide/dimethylformamide system (III), on the other hand,  $\gamma_{AB}$  for the one parameter equations is greater than for the three parameter versions. It would seem, therefore, that when the effects of A on the B....B interactions and vice versa are taken into account the A....A and B....B interactions are considered to contribute more to the total viscosity  $\gamma$  and hence  $\gamma_{AB}$  is relatively smaller. Reference to fig. (4.5), and section (4.12) supports this view as evidence there pointed to a degree of complex

W. R. R. M. R. S. S. S. S. S. S. S. C. Strawy (1)

- 131 -

# TABLE 4.14

## All parameters for each equation and each system

	3	318.15 K		308.15 К			
SYSTEM I	7AB Jm ⁻³ s	k ₁	^k 2	7AB Jm ^{−3} s	k ₁	^k 2	
Model							
ONE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.007100			0,007981			
DOLEZ,	0,009136			0.01054			
THREE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.008326	0.7878	-0.3210	0.009572	0.8049	-0.3283	
DOLEZ.	0.009602	0.6983	-0,3840	0.0112	0.7506	-0.3492	
SYSTEM II							
ONE PARAMETER		••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••					
TAMKUR.	0.006459			0.007185			
DOLEZ.	0.006627			0,007382			
MATHER.	0.006293		•	0.006992			
THREE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR	0.006963	0.4860	-0.1762	0.007716	0.5526	-0.1860	
DOLEZ.	0.007020	0.4687	-0.1652	0.007952	0.5339	-0.1749	
SYSTEM III	1999 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 2019 - 1						
ONE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.01706			0,02038			
DOLEZ.	0.01369			0.01585			
THREE PARAMETER					ann a stàit leanna - ann air air ann a stà		
TAMKUR.	0.01599	-0.8912	0.6682	0.01885	-1,1422	0.7664	
DOLEZ.	0.01251	-1,0282	0,5154	0.01417	-1.316	0,5961	

- same and the sound of the

Table 4.14 (cont)

	298.15 К			288.15 K			
SYSTEM I Model	MAB Jm ⁻³ s	k ₁	k2	MAB Jm ⁻³ s	k ₁	k.2	
ONE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.008607			0.009070			
DOLEZ.	0.01190			0.01349			
THREE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.01120	0.9739	-0.4192	0.01332	1.0800	-0.4989	
DOLEZ.	0.01284	0.9060	-0,4768	0.01499	0.9972	-0.5326	
SYSTEM II							
ONE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.007947						
DOLEZ.	0.008162						
MATHER.	0,007728						
THREE PARAMETER							
TAMKUR.	0.008926	0.7462	-0,2325				
DOLEZ.	0.009032	0.7352	-0,2232				
SYSTEM III				sana dipana dina dan kara tarih di			
ONE PARAMETER	· ····································						
TAMKUR.	0.02485			0.03101			
DOLEZ.	0.01913			0.02323			
THREE PARAMETER		40.4es.es.t.q		49.19 ^{.1} 1.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11			
TAMKUR.	0.0226	-1.4537	0.8739	0.02770	-1.9042	0.9892	
DOLEZ.	0.0169	-1.5378	0.6191	0.02001	-1.9375	0.6755	

and the second second second is the second second



♥ System I, TAM. KUR. MODEL

TABLE 4.15

	SYSTEM	I	∆G [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	∆G [*] _{AB} KJ/Mol	∆s [*] _{AB} JK ⁻¹ /Mol
3	parameter	T/K	50.84	11.50	-132.0
3	parameter	D/Z	51.18	10.8	-125.7
	SYSTEM	II			•
З	parameter	T/K	54.31	13.22	-137.8
З	parameter	D/Z	53.59	11.43	-141.5

formation between the formamide and dimethylformamide molecules.

#### 4.12 ACTIVATION PARAMETERS AS A FUNCTION OF COMPOSITION

 $\Delta G^*$ ,  $\Delta H^*$  and  $\Delta S^*$  for viscous flow can be considered as a function of composition of the mixture: Janelli²⁹ considered that for an ideal binary mixture the activation enthalpy of viscous flow was an additive function of composition. He plotted the excess functions  $\Delta H^*_E$ ,  $\Delta S^*_E$  and  $\Delta G^*_E$  (where the excess enthalpy of activation was defined as  $\Delta H^*$  experimental -  $\Delta H^*$  theoretical, from the above considerations) for the system benzene/sulpholane and concluded that the minima in  $\Delta G^*_E$  and  $\Delta H^*_E$  for the system were due to structural effects.

The  $\Delta G^*$ ,  $\Delta H^*$  and  $\Delta S^*$  for Systems I, II, and III were plotted as a function of composition. From the graph of the activation free energy of viscous flow for formamide/water and formamide/methanol fig. (4.5) it can be seen that  $\Delta G^*$  is an additive function of the mole fraction. This suggests that no stable compound formation takes place. Kozlowski¹¹⁵, from measurements of the viscosity of formamide/water, and formamide/methanol at 298.15 K also concluded that these systems could be considered to be "perfect" mixtures. For formamide/dimethylformamide on the other hand there is a maximum in  $\Delta G^{*}$  at about 0.18 mole fraction dimethylformamide. It has been reported elsewhere that dimethylformamide forms a complex with water 116. The hydrate has been given the formula dimethylformamide, 3H20. Vasenko and Dubrovsky¹¹⁷ carried out investigations on water/diethylformamide and formamide/diethylformamide and in both cases they obtained a maximum for viscosity as a function of composition. It was therefore assumed that dimethylformamide and diethylformamide would show a similar type of interaction with water and formamide molecules and they suggested that formamide

Heater & Browning

W. Oak & Sec. Sec.

- 135 -

a new second second

and dimethylformamide would form a complex similar to that of water and dimethylformamide.

ىسىرىدى بالائىلائى ئېلىسىيىكى بىرىنى ئىرىمىنى بىرىكىكى ئىرىكىكى بىرىكى بىرىكى بىرىكى بىلىكى بىلىكى بىكىكىكى بىك

As pointed out above, formamide can be considered to be an associated solvent. It has a high viscosity due to intermolecular hydrogen bonding. On the addition of water or methanol there occurs merely an interchange of hydrogen bonds between



#### Fig. (4.8)

However with dimethylformamide the maximum in  $\Delta G^*$  indicates relatively strong associations with formamide molecules in excess of the weak associations in the pure dimethylformamide. The maximum in the viscosity of this system is much smaller than that for the dimethylformamide/water system and therefore the complex which is formed appears to be much greater. The position of the maximum corresponds to a complex of molecular formula formamide  $\cdot 4$ dimethylformamide. Because of the pre-exponential volume term in equation (3.24), no direct comparison can be made between the values for  $\Delta G^*$ ,  $\Delta H^*$  and  $\Delta S^*$  for the three systems.

Fig. (4.7) is a plot of the entropy of activation of viscous flow ( $\Delta S^*$ ) against composition. This term is associated with the entropy change occurring when a molecule in a position of minimum free energy in a solution frees itself, perhaps by severing some

construction company of

- 136 -



-137-





静

hydrogen bonds, in order to be activated to the transition state for viscous flow. The more the liquid is associated, the more bonds have to be broken, and the greater is the increase in entropy associated with the attainment of the activated state. For the addition of formamide to water or vice versa there is a decrease in  $\Delta s^*$  which might suggest that the structure of either solvent is broken down by the addition of the other. For the other systems no such decrease is detected.

From fig. (4.6) the enthalpy of activation for viscous flow for the formamide/water system again shows a minimum. This is interpreted as a "loosening" of the hydrogen bonds which make these systems associated, when one solvent is added to the other.

From measurements of the dielectric constant of binary mixtures of water and a number of amides Rhodewald and Moldner¹¹⁸ concluded that the mixing of unalkylated amides with water led to a loose liquid structure, whereas with mono and dialkylated amide solutions a more dense structure was obtained. The latter is supported in this work by the maximum exhibited in  $\Delta H^*$  by the formamide/dimethylformamide system, fig. (4.6), which is another indication of the formation of a more tightly bonded complex.

It was considered that the unalkylated amides were built~in via hydrogen bonding into the water structure and vice versa. The increase in the dielectric constant for such mixtures was considered to be due to the more parallel ordering of the individual dipoles.

Fig. (4.9) shows the plot of  $\Delta \mathcal{E}$  against composition for formamide/water where  $\Delta \mathcal{E} = \mathcal{E}_{observed} - \mathcal{E}_{id}$  and  $\mathcal{E}_{id} = \mathcal{E}_{1}x_{1} + \mathcal{E}_{2}x_{2}$ , where x is the mole fraction and  $\mathcal{E}$  the dielectric constant. Fig. (4.10), on the other hand gives a plot of viscosity based on similar reasoning is a plot of  $\Delta \gamma = \gamma_{observed} - \gamma_{id}$ . Against concentration for formamide/water. The shape of the curves in

ะ ขึ้วการเมือง เหมืองจา สี่สามาร์หน่าง การสี่สัตส์ที่

- 140 -

and the second secon

And a state of the state of the



- 141 -



mole fraction water

- that rolling shake they a

detains quebels

figs. (4.9) and (4.10) are very similar.

The reason why the dialkylated amide/water system exhibits a maximum in the viscosity/concentration curve and a minimum in the dielectric constant/concentration curve was suggested¹¹⁸ to be due to interstitial packing of the water around the alkyl groups of the amides causing a decrease in volume of the mixture and hence a more dense structure. From this reasoning it can be suggested that the reason for the formamide/dimethylformamide system exhibiting a much smaller maximum in the viscosity/concentration curve than that of water/dimethylformamide could be due to the poorer ability of the formamide to participate in such an interstitial structure.

#### 4.13 CONCLUSIONS

It is universally recognised that the full knowledge of the structural behaviour of the components of liquid mixtures other than the very simplest (eg argon and helium) is very much beyond present day investigatory techniques and the complex solvent interactions which are present can not as yet be determined or explained by any rigorous theory.

However from the investigations carried out in the present work using several models, the following conclusions can be drawn.

(i) For the system formamide/water, like molecules appeared to be more strongly associated than unlike molecules. The structure of each solvent, however, was 'loosened' on mixing with the other.

(ii) For the system formamide/methanol, the strength of the molecules of each solvent was in the same order as in (i) above, but in this case the structure of each solvent was not disrupted by the presence of molecules of the other solvent. A simple interchange of hydrogen bonds between molecules of both solvents

- 142 -

a a la suman da fariga a la da sur

an san halindana wasari haringa kata

is considered to take place.

(iii) Dimethylformamide has no capacity for forming hydrogen bonds. In mixtures of this solvent with formamide the unlike solvent molecules appear to form stronger association with each other than do the like molecules. Further evidence suggested that there was in fact a certain complex formation between the two solvents which had the formula 1 formamide : 4 dimethylformamide.

(iv) Because of the different nature of the solvents involved, <u>eg</u> three-dimensionally hydrogen bonded, two-dimensionally hydrogen bonded and non-hydrogen bonded, no single empirical model was able to describe all three systems better than the others. Evidence was provided in Chapter Three which indicated that the solvent structure of methanol was essentially different from that of water and formamide.

- 143 -

这些我们的"你们的你?""你说,你不能能说你?""你你说你?""你们你们的你?""你们你你们的你?""你们你?""你,你不是你,你你有你的?""你你?""你们你们

CHAPTER FIVE

an transmitter work

N 1335 ...

32. 1.12

- .X. . 27.

1777 - 17 M

an in the second family of the second sec

and the contract the second second

Frister & + Stallands in

Sall.

### JONES -DOLE IN BINARY MIXTURES

#### 5.1 INTRODUCTION

It has been suggested that ions may be used as "internal indicators" for the investigation of the structural effects which influence the electrochemical properties of mixed solvent systems 119. In Chapter Three it was shown that information on the effect of ions on the viscosity of a solvent could be directly related to the changes in the solvent structure which took place in the immediate environment of the ion (Gurney's co-sphere, Frank and Wen's A, B and C regions). This led to the suggestion that solvents could be classified by considering the difference in the ionic B coefficient for two simple ions (Na⁺ and K⁺). In Chapter Four the idea that the structures of the components of binary liquid mixtures are often influenced in specific ways by each other was developed by means of semi-empirical models and the use of Eyring's theory of absolute reaction rates as applied to viscosity. From the information gained from these two investigations it was considered that valuable information might be obtained for the formamide/water system by using NaCl as an "internal indicator" of solvent structure.

Apart from the simple systems such as liquid helium, argon and krypton,perhaps the most extensively studied liquid binary mixture is that of methanol/water^{34,88,120}. Feakins et al³⁴ measured the viscosity B coefficients of some simple salts in methanol/water mixtures and obtained further evidence to support the proposals which Frank and Ives¹²¹ put forward in their extensive review, for the structural changes which take place in alcohol/water mixtures.

Investigations of viscosity B coefficients in other mixed solvent systems are relatively few and there are almost no published

and the second of the second s

- 144 -

investigations on the temperature dependence of the viscosity B coefficient,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  in such systems. As was pointed out by Kaminsky and shown also in Chapter Three,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  can often yield more information than the B coefficients alone, on the effect of the solute on the solvent structure. Measurements of  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  were therefore considered to be of great importance.

Feakins et al³⁴ in 1968 investigated the viscosity B coefficients of NaCl, KCl, RbCl and CsCl in several methanol/water mixtures at various temperatures. They found that the B coefficients of all of these salts became more negative in the 20% methanol/water solutions than in pure water. As the methanol content was further increased to 40% the B coefficients became more positive. This result supported the thesis of Frank and Ives¹²¹ that in the region of 20% alcohol, in this particular case, ethanol, the alcohol exerted a co-operative effect on the structure of water, stabilising the "icebergs", resulting in a decrease in the excess heat capacity at constant volume with increase in temperature. This enhanced structure would be expected to be particularly sensitive to the structure breaking effects of ions which result in negative B coefficients. The values of the B coefficients would therefore be expected to be less in such a mixture than in pure water because of the increase in  $n^{D}$ . This behaviour was in fact found. These results were later confirmed by Singh and Yadav 120  for KI and by Werblan et al⁸⁸ for LiClO₄, NaClO₄ and NaCl.

Experiments on the viscosity of the formamide/water system (Chapter Four) and on partial molar volumes in this system¹²² showed the absence of complex formation or anomalous behaviour for mixtures throughout the whole composition range. It was therefore decided to investigate the viscosity B coefficient of sodium chloride in various solvent mixtures of formamide/water at

and the first in which

- 145 -

nie wart in it was also been a strategie in the state

the second of the second secon

298.15 K to 323.15 K. There are no previously reported B coefficients for any solvent mixtures containing formamide.

### 5.2 EXPERIMENTAL AND RESULTS

Formamide was prepared as described in Chapter Two. Deionised water was fractionally distilled from alkaline permanganate. Four batches of solvent were prepared by mixing the above solvents by weight in proportions giving solutions of 0.2, 0.4, 0.6 and 0.8 mole fraction of water. Eight sodium chloride solutions were then made up for each "solvent" in concentrations varying from 0.005 to 0.100 molal. The relative viscosities of the sodium chloride solutions were measured by first measuring the efflux time of the bulk solvent in each viscometer at each temperature and then repeating with the various sodium chloride solutions. The densities of all solutions were measured as described in Chapter Two.

From the efflux times  $(t_o)$  of the "solvent" and the efflux times of the solution (t) the relative viscosities were calculated by  $\gamma = \frac{t \rho}{t_o \rho_o}$  where  $\rho$  and  $\rho_o$  are the densities of the solution and solvent respectively. The kinetic energy correction factor was neglected in this case because of the small difference in the viscosities of the "solvent" and the solutions.

The values were then used as described in Chapter Three to give Jones-Dole plots by graphing  $\frac{\gamma_1-1}{\sqrt{c}}$  against  $\sqrt{c}$  where c is the concentration (molality). Figs. (5.1-5.4) give these Jones-Dole plots at 298.15, 308.15, 318.15 and 323.15 K respectively for the sodium chloride solutions in formamide, 0.2, 0.4, 0.6, 0.8 and 1.0 mole fraction of water. Table (5.1) gives the values of the viscosity B coefficients for sodium chloride in each solvent system at each temperature. Figs. (5.5-5.10) show the variation in the Jones-Dole plot with temperature for each solvent system.

Repair and the should be when the second second and the second second

#### - 146 -

าวระชุ ให้พระที่ให้ของราชวิธีวิรีก็หว่าร แม่การเขาต้องให้การและที่หว่ารพืชบุ้งกระเว การการการที่ แห่งกระหว่างน

## Key to figs. (5.1) to (5.11)

In figs. (5.1) to (5.10) the concentration is in molality. EETA SP. represents the relative viscosity  $\eta/\eta_o$ , where  $\eta$  represents the viscosity of the solution and  $\eta_o$  the viscosity of the solvent.

#### In figs. (5.1) to (5.4)

密	represents	NaC1	in	form	namide	e	
	represents	NaC1	in	0.2	mole	fraction	water
D	represents	NaC1	in	0.4	mole	fraction	water
8	represents	NaCl	in	0.6	mole	fraction	water
Ø	represents	NaC1	in	0.8	mole	fraction	water
O	represents	NaC1	in	wate	∍r		

In figs. (5.5) to (5.10)

史	represents	298.15	K
◬	represents	308.15	K
El	represents	318.15	K
Ø	represents	323.15	K

Fig. (5.5) gives the Jones-Dole plot for NaCl in formamide

Fig. (5.6) gives the Jones-Dole plot for NaCl in 0.2 mole fraction water Fig. (5.7) gives the Jones-Dole plot for NaCl in 0.4 mole fraction water Fig. (5.8) gives the Jones-Dole plot for NaCl in 0.6 mole fraction water Fig. (5.9) gives the Jones-Dole plot for NaCl in 0.8 mole fraction water Fig. (5.10) gives the Jones-Dole plot for NaCl in water

- 147 -

0 - 0 -



7

· ·





-150-



and a second second

eta area da Alexana





88 X

e . Na e a televite i a che





• • •





and a second second

والمرائية الملهومة الأرد مور

No. Total School Schol School School School School School School School School School



## TABLE 5.1

1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

ali kana na kana kana kana kana ka

Viscosity H	В	coefficients	for	NaC1	in	formamide,	/water	mixtures
-------------	---	--------------	-----	------	----	------------	--------	----------

MOLE FRACTION		B Coef	ficient	
OF WATER	298.15K	308.15K	318.15K	323.15K
0.0000	0.673	0.582	0.550	0.54
0.1970	0.492	0,464	0.41	0.40
0.4136	0.394	· 0.36 ₄	0.348	0.350
0.6035	0.293	0.272	0.26	0.258
0.8003	0.194	0.194	0.204	0.206
1,0000	0.082	0.11,	0.117	0.13

The second second of the second se

an and a second second and the second sec

Fig. (5.11) is a plot of the B coefficients at different temperatures for all the solvent compositions. Two points immediately arise from fig. (5.11).

(i) The B coefficient for NaCl at any temperature in formamide is greater than the B coefficient for NaCl in water at the same temperature. The reasons for this were discussed in Chapter Three.

(ii) The temperature coefficient of B for NaCl in formamide,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$ , is negative, whereas that of B in water is positive.

#### 5.3 DISCUSSION

In Chapter Three the fact that the ionic B coefficients were all positive was attributed to the relative importance of the structure making effects ( $\gamma^{\rm E}$  +  $\gamma^{\rm A}$ ). As indicated by Feakins and Lawrence  85  and Feakins et al  34  there is evidence to suggest that B coefficients increase with increasing molar volume of the solvent. This increase would be associated with an increase in  $\mathcal{M}^{E}$ , and would explain why the B coefficients in formamide were so much larger than in water. It was however pointed out that for Cl at least, there was some evidence for structure breaking  $(M^D)$ . Kaminsky suggested that in water Cl is a net structure breaking ion and that  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  for Cl⁻ ion in water is positive due to the fact that as the temperature is increased and the bulk structure of the solvent is broken down due to increased thermal motion, then  $\gamma^{\rm D}$  becomes smaller with respect to  $\gamma^{\rm E}$  and  $\gamma^{\rm A}$ . Hence the B coefficient increases. For Na⁺ in water,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  is almost zero indicating that any change in  $\eta^{D}$  is offset by a change in  $\eta^{A}$  and  $\eta^{E}$ .

As the temperature is increased the B coefficient for NaCl in formamide decreases quite significantly. This can be explained by considering that  $\gamma^A + \gamma^E$  which for NaCl in formamide is greater

the second second second second second as well as the second second and the second second second second second

- 159 -

म सम्पर्धिक माला स्वर्त १४ ४४ व. व. विकि विकि <u>मालिक माल प्रतिय वि</u>कि विकि विकि स्वर्तव के विक प्रतिय के कालिक काला

than  $\eta^{D}$ , becomes smaller as the temperature is increased. Fig. (5.11) shows that as the solvent mixture becomes increasingly rich in water,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  for NaCl becomes progressively less negative until at a solvent composition of about 0.8 mole fraction of water B does not change significantly with temperature. As the water content is further increased,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  then becomes increasingly positive.

Such an effect has not been reported before. For the water/methanol system, although a decrease in B with solvent composition was observed,  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  was found to be positive throughout the whole composition range⁸⁵, being most positive for the particular composition where the B coefficients were most negative. This was taken as a further indication of the importance of the "structure breaking" effects of the ions. In the formamide/water system investigated here, not only did the B coefficient of NaCl decrease as the solvent mixture increased in water content, but the net structure making effect as determined by  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  became less important until at about 0.8 mole fraction of water the structure breaking influences were sufficiently important to cause  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  to be negative.

Fig. (5.12) gives a plot of the activation enthalpy of viscous flow ( $\Delta H^*$ ) for NaCl in the formamide/water mixtures. For high concentrations of formamide,  $\Delta H^*$  is positive and decreases with increase in water content. Thus it would seem that as the water content of the solvent mixture increases, the Na⁺ and Cl⁻ ions have less effect on the transition of solvent molecules from equilibrium positions to the activated complex. The increase in  $\Delta H^*$  for formamide under the influence of the Na⁺ ions was considered in Chapter Three to be due to the order making influence of these ions. Nightingale⁹¹ suggested that an increase in  $\Delta H^*$  for the solvent on addition of a salt was due to certain ions orientating the solvent molecules sufficiently to cause them to be held more firmly than

Ber and some have been and the

- 160 -

a nine in the second state was shown in the second state of the second state in the second state is the second



in the bulk solvent. Although it is not possible to partition the increase in  $\Delta H^*$  between the individual ions, it would seem, from the observations discussed in Chapter Three, that the sodium ion is responsible for most of the increase in  $\Delta H^*$  for formamide. Conversely, since it has been suggested that Na⁺ in water has little effect on  $\Delta H^*$  ⁶⁸, most of the decrease in  $\Delta H^*$  as seen from fig. (5.12) is due to the Cl⁻ ion.

and a second and a second s

#### 5.4 CONCLUSIONS

Although ionic B coefficients are considered to characterise the ion species as a kinetic entity, they may mask important properties of the ion due to the fact that they can be considered to be made up of several contributions ie  $\mathcal{M}^A$ ,  $\mathcal{M}^E$  and  $\mathcal{M}^D$  as discussed previously, which may to some extent cancel one another.

The results of this part of the work confirm Nightingale's ideas on the specificity of electrolyte solvation, and further indicate that not only is the action of different ions on the same solvent very specific but also the action of identical ions on different solvents can be very different. Thus the net effect of NaCl on formamide is a structure ordering one (from the  $\Delta H^*$  and  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  data), but the effect of NaCl on water is structure disordering.

It can be seen from the above that when the mixture of ion-solvent interactions **uss** being investigated by means of viscosity measurements it is important to measure the viscosity changes at more than one temperature to enable information to be obtained from  $\frac{dB}{dT}$  and  $\Delta H^*$ .

#### - 162 -

and a set of the set of

# - 163 -

المحمد المعادية والمحافظة والمحافظة والمعالية والمعاطية والمحافظية والمحافظة والمحافظة والمحادثة والمحادي والم

## APPENDIX I

LIQUID	TEMPERATURE K	VISCOSITY 10 Jm ⁻³ s	DENSITY 10 ³ kg m ⁻³
Water ¹²³	288.15	0,01138	0.99913
	298,15	0.008903	0,99707
	308.15	0.007194	0.99406
	318.15	0,005963	0.99024
	323.15	0.005467	0.98807
30% aqueous 124	288.15	0.03757	1,12863
sucrose solution	293,15	0.03187	1.12698
	298.15	0.02735	1.12517
	the state of the state of the set of the state of the state of the set	A second statement and statement and second statements of the second statement of the second statem	the second s

# VISCOSITY AND DENISTY OF CALIBRATION LIQUIDS
APPENDIX II

			manage and a second
	PROGRAMME CV10 FOR	CALIBR	AT ING VISCOMETERS
	DIMENSION TEMP(20)	,TIM(20	), T(20), DENS(20), VISC(20), EETA(20), RD(20
	1, X(20), Y(20), Z(20)	, XCALC(	2000), YCALC(2000), YCOR(20), DEV(20)
5	READ(5,10)NRUN		7
10	FORMAT(14)		14 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	IF(NRUN)900,900;20		
20	READ (5,30)N		
30	FORMAT(12)		*
	READ(5,40)(TEMP(J)	,TIM(J)	, J=1,N)
40	FORMAT (2F10.0)		
	T(1) = 15.0		
	T(2) = 17.5		
	T(3) = 20.0		
	T(4) = 298.0		
	T(5) = 288.15		
	T(6)=293.15		
	T(7) = 298.15		2
	T(8) = 25.0		
	T(9) = 35.0		
	T(10) = 37.5	3. <b>.</b>	
	T(11) = 40.0		
	T(12) = 42.5		
	T(13)=45-0		
	T(14) = 50.0		
	DENS(1) = 1.12863		
	DENS(2)=0.99871		
	DENS(3)=1 12698		
	DENS(4)=1 12517		5
	DENS(5) = 1 08233		
	DENS (6)-1.00233		
	DENS(7)-1.07040		
	DENS(7)-1.07940		·
	DENS(0)=0.99707		
	DENS(9)=0.99408		IF(T(K)-TEMP(J)) 120,110,120
	DENS(10)=0.99318	110	EETA(J) = VISC(K)
	DENS(11)=0.99224	650.75 B	RO(J) = DENS(K)
	DENS(12)=0.99127	120	CONTINUE
	DENS(13)=0.99025	125	CONTINUE
	DENS(14)=0.98807	130	CONTINUE
	VISC(1) = 0.03757	77	D0150 J=1.N
	VISC(2) = 0.010739		X(J) = 1/((TIM(J)) * * 2)
	VISC(3) = 0.03187	150	Y(J) = EFTA(J)/(RO(J) *TIM(J))
	VISC(4) = 0.02735		SUMX=0.0
	VISC(5) = 0.02254		SUMY=0.0
	VISC(6) = 0.01945		SUMXX=0.0
	VISC(7) = 0.01695		SUMXY=0.0
	VISC(8) = 0.008903		
	VISC(9) = 0.007194		D0 200 I = 1.N
	VISC(10)-0 006858		
	VISC(111)-0 004531		
	VI SC (121-0.00424)		
	VISC(13)-0 005043	. 200	
	VISC(1)()=0.005//7	200	
	VISCI14 J=0.00546/		
	UU 120 J=1,N		UNAU-ISUMA*SUMIT-G*SUMATI/UENUM

# APPENDIX II(cont.)

				1.1		
	CONCT-/ CUNY# CUNYY	CINNECI	NYVI (DENO			
	CUNSTET SUMA#SUMAY-	20M1-20	MAX1/DENG	M	(• ()	
220	DU 222 J=1,N			1004044011	~	
220	$Z(J) = ((GRAU \neq X(J) - Y))$	(J)+CUN	1211/12041	(GKAD**Z+1.	0) 1 1 4 4 2	
222	SUMZ=SUMZ+Z(J)					
	RMS=SQRI((SUMZ)/G)					
	DU 230 J=1+N	00007				
	YCOR(J) = GRAD * X(J) +	CONST				
230	DEV(J) = Y(J) - YCOR(J)	3		1		
	WRITE(6,700)					
700	FORMAT (52H1			CALIBRATI	ON OF VISO	COMETERS//
	WRITE(6,710)NRUN					
710	FORMAT(28X,18H EXP	ERIMENT	NUMBER, I	5)		
	WRITE(6,720)					
720	FORMAT(1H0)					2
	WRITE(6,730)CONST					
730	FORMAT(22X, 22H THE	A-PARA	METER IS	,F12.8/)		
	WRITE(6,740)GRAD					
740	FORMAT(22X,22H THE	MB-PAF	RAMETER IS	.,F12.8/)		
	WRITE(6,750)RMS					
750	FORMAT (22X, 22H THE	RMS DE	EVIATION I	S ,F12.8//)		
	WRITE(6,751)					
751	FORMAT( 72HOTEMPERA	TURE	TIME	VISCESITY	DENSITY	Y
	L Y/)					
	WRITE(6,760)(TEMP(	J), TIMI	J), EETA(J	), RO(J), X(J	=L,(L)Y, J=	1,N)
760	FORMAT(2X, F6.2,4X,	F8.3,4>	(,F9.6,4X,	F8.5,4X,F11	.8,4X,F11	.8)
	WRITE(6,765)					
765	FORMAT (53 HOT EMPERA	TURE	Y	YCAL	C 1	DEVIATION/)
	WRITE(6,770)(TEMP(	J) , Y ( J)	,YCCR(J),	DEV(J), J=1,	N)	
770	FORMAT(2X, F6. 2, 4X,	F11.8,4	X,F11.8,4	X,F11.8)		
	GCTO 5				28	
900	CONTINUE					
	WRITE(6,920)					
920	FORMAT(1H1)					
	CALL EXIT					
	END		•			
	NEW PORT OF THE					

ಲ್ಲಿ ಅವರ್ಷ್ಟ್ರಾನ ಎಲ್ಲಿ ಎಲ್ಲೆ ಮೇಳೆದಿದ್ದ ಮತ್ತು ಇವರು ಅಂಗಿ ಮೊದಲ್ಲಿ ಅದೇಶದ ಕಾಣ್ಣಗಳು ಇಗೆ ಇಲ್ಲಿ ಮೊದಲೇಶಿ ನಾಗುವುದು ಕಾಡಿದ

## APPENDIX III

# CALIBRATION OF VISCOMETERS

Experiment number indicates viscometer number <u>ie</u> 1010 refers to viscometer 1.

Temperatures 25.0, 35.0, 45.0 and 50.0 refer to calibration with water at 298.15, 308.15, 318.15 and 323.15 K.

Temperatures 15.0, 20.0 and 298.0 refer to calibration with 30% aqueous sucrose solution at 288.15, 293.15 and 298.15 K.

The terms X, Y, Y CALC and DEVIATION are explained in Appendix II.

EXPERIMENT NUMBER 1010	THE A-PARAMETER IS 0.00003559	THE M8-PARAMETER IS -0.02137094	THE RMS DEVIATION IS 0.00000001	PERATURE TIME VISCOSITY DENSITY X X	5.00 253.313 0.008903 0.99707 0.00001558 0.00003525	5.00 206.191 0.007194 0.99406 0.0002352 0.00003510	5.00 172.640 0.005963 0.99025 0.0003355 0.0003488	3.00 159.267 0.005467 0.98807 0.00003942 0.0003474	PERATURE Y YCALC DEVIATION	00 0.00003525 0.00003526 -0.000001	5.00 0.00C03510 0.00003509 0.00000001	5.00 0.00C03488 0.C0003487 0.0C000001	
				TEMPERATU	25.00	35.00	45.00	50.00	TEMPERATUR	25.00	35.00	45.00	

CALIERATION OF VISCOMETERS

	ан С.	THE A-PARAMETE	R IS	0.0003682	
	3.	THE MB-PARAMET	ER IS -	0.02304789	
		THE RMS DEVIAT	ION IS	0.0000002	
TEMPERATURE	TIME	VISCOSITY	DENS ITY	×	
25.00	245.140	0.008903	0.99707	0.00001664	
35.00	199.606	0.007194	0.99406	0. CCCC2510	
45.00	167.166	0.005963	0.99025	0.00003579	
50.00	154.410	0.005467	0.98807	0.00004194	
TEMPERATURE	۲	YCALC	DE	VIATION	
25.00	0.00003642	0.0000364	4 -0.0	0000001	
35.00	0.00003626	0.000362	4 0.0	000001	
45.00	0.00003602	0.0000360	0.0 0.0	0000002	
50.00	0.00003583	0.0000358	6 -0.0	000002	

4

0.00003642 0.00003626 0.00003602 0.00003602

CALIBRATION OF VISCOMETERS

2

EXPERIMENT NUMBER 2010

έ.,

--168-

		THE A-PARAMETER	S IS	0.00003453	
		THE MB-PARAMETE	ER IS	-0.02341985	
	2	THE RMS DEVIATI	ION IS	0.0000001	
				×	
TEMPERATURE	TIME	VI SCOSITY	DENSI TY	×	٢
25.00	261.241	0.008903	10799.0	0.0001465	0.00003418
35.00	212.666	0.007194	0.99406	0.00002211	0.00003403
45.00	178.102	0.005963	0.99025	0.00003153	0.00003381
50.00	164.410	0.005467	0.98807	7 0.00003700	0.00003365
TEMPERATURE	7	YCALC	G	JEV LAT ION	
25.00	0.00003418	3 0°CCC003419	-0- 0	0000001	
35.00	0.00003403	3 0.00003402	.0.	0000001	
45.00	0.00003381	0.00003380	.0.	.0000001	
50.00	0.00003365	0.00003367	.0-	.0000001	

CALIBRATION OF VISCOMETERS

EXPERIMENT NUMBER 3010

						۲	0.00003571	0.00003553	0.00003529		
E TER S	4010	• 00003609	.02349257	•00000001		×	0.00001600	0.00002411	0.00003435 0.00004033	IATION	000000 000001 000001 000001
OF VISCOM	IT NUMBER	I S 0	R IS -0	ON IS O		DENSITY	10702.0	0.99406	0.93807	DEV	
CAL IBRATION	EXPERIMEN	HE A-PARAMETER	HE MB-PARAMETE	HE RMS DEVIATI		VISCOSITY	0.008903	0.007194	0.005963	YCALC	0.00003572 0.00003553 0.00003529 0.00003529
₩.		ī	F	F		TIME	250.030	203. 675	170.628 157.457	~	0.00003571 0.00003553 0.00003529 0.00003529
	₩1,					TEMPERATURE	25.00	35.00	45.00 50.00	TEMPERATURE	25.00 35.00 45.00 50.00
					а. ул					1965	

. .

-170-

÷	-	HE RMS DEVIATI	ICN IS 0	• 00000004	
TEMPERATURE	TIME	VISCOSITY	DENSI TY	×	۲
15.00	939. 660	0.037570	1.12863	0.0000113	0.00003542
20.00	799.760	0.031870	1.12698	0.00000156	0.00003536
298.00	686.460	0.027350	1.12517	0.00000212	0.00003541
25.00	253.313	C.008903	10792.0	C.CO001558	0.00003525
35.00	206.151	0.007194	0.59406	0.00002352	0.00003510
45.00	172.640	0.005563	0. 55025	0.00003355	0.00003488
50°00 ·	159.267	0.005467	C.988C7	0.0003942	0.00003474
TEPPERATURE	7	YCALC	DEV	IATICN	
15,00	0.00003542	0.00003542	-6-00	00001	
20.00	0.00003536	0.0003542	-0.00	000000	
298.00	0.00003541	0.00003541	0, 00	00000	
25.00	0.00003525	0.00003518	0.00	00007	
35.00	0.00003510	0.00003505	6. CC	00005	
45.00	0.00003488	0.00003489	-0.00	00001	
50.00	0.00003474	0-00003479	-0-00	000005	

CALIBRATION OF VISCOMETERS

# EXPERIMENT NUMBER 1010

0.0003544	-0-01660516	0.0000004
S	SI	I I S
-PARAMETER I	B-PARAMETER	MS DEVIATION
HE A	м Ш	HER

-171-

		CALIBRATIC	IN OF VISC	DNETERS	
an Ann B		EXPERIM	ENT NUMBE	\$ 2010	`
		THE A-PARAMET	ER IS	0• 00003666	
		THE MB-PARAME	TER IS	-0.01817724	
	- ``	THE RMS DEVIA	SI NOIL	0.0000005	
TENPERATURE	TIME	VISCOSITY	DENSI 1Y	×	*
15.00	908.410	0.037570	1.12863	0-0000121	0.00003664
20.00	773.320	0.031870	1.12658	0.00000167	0.00003657
298.00	663.560	0.027350	1.12517	0.00000227	0.00003661
25.00	245.140	0.005503	20265.0	0.00001664	0.00003642
35.00	199.606	0.007194	0.59406	C. C0002510	0.00003626
45.00	167.166	0.005563	C. 55025	0.00003579	0.00003602
50.90	154.41C	0.005467	G. 98807	0.00004194	0.00003583
TEMPERATURE	٢	YCALC	DE	VIATICN	
15.00	0.00003664	0.00036	64 C.C	000001	
2C.00	0.00003657	0.000036	63 -0.0	000000	
298.00	0.00003661	0.000036	62 -0.0	CCCCCCI	
25.00	C.00CC3642	0.000036	36 C. C	CC00007	
35,00	0.00003626	0.00036	20 0.0	000005	
45.00	0.00003602	0.00036	01 0.0	000001	
50.00	0.00003583	0.000035	0 ° ) - C ° C	000000	
	1				

•

--172--

PENT NUMBER 3010	TER IS C. CC003436	1ETER IS -C. C1748816	ATION IS 0.0000005		DENSITY X	1.12863 0.0000106	I.12698 0.00000147	1.12517 0.0000199	0. 59707 0. 0001465	C. 55466 C. C0002211	0.99025 0.00003153	C. 988C7 0.00003700	C DEVIATION	1434 -0. COGCCOI	434 -0.0000006	433 -C. CCCCCOL	410 0. 0000007	397 C. CCCCC006	381 0. 0000000	371 -0.0000006
EXPERI	THE A-PARAME	THE MB-PARAM	THE RMS DEVI	•	VISCOSITY	0.037570	0.031870	0.027350	0.006503	0.007194	0.005563	0.005467	YCAL	0.00003	0.00003	0.0003	0.00003	0.00003	0.0003	0.00003
					TIME	969.560	824.550	708.240	261.241	212.666	178,102	164.410	۲	0.00003423	0.00003428	0.00CC3432	0.00003418	0.00003403	0.00003381	0.00003365
- 1.,	يو × 1. ر				TEMPERATURE	15.00	20.00	298.00	25°00	35.00	. 45.00	50.00	TEMPERATURE	15.00	20.00	298.00	25.00	35.00	45.00	50.00

.

5. S. C. S.

3

i

· -173-

2

	F	THE A-PARAMETE	R IS	0. 0003589	
	-	THE MB-PARAMET	ER IS	-0.01707746	
	F	THE RMS DEVIAT	SI NDI	0• 0000005	
	Γ.				
VT URE	TIME	VISCOSITY	DENSITY	×	7
о. С	28.150	0.037570	1.12863	0.0000116	0.00003587
-	790.CIO	0.031870	1.12698	0.00000160	0.00003580
<b>.</b>	578.290	0.027350	1.12517	0.0000217	0.00003584
~	250.C3C	0.008903	C. 59707	0.00001600	0.00003571
	203.675	0.007194	0.55406	0.00002411	0.00003553
	.70.628	0.005563	0. 59025	C. CCC03435	0.00003529
-	.57.457	0.005467	0. 98807	0.00004033	0.00003514
TURE	۲	YCALC	Q	EVIATICN	
	.00003587	0.000358	-0- 2	000000	
0	.00003580	0.000358	6 -0.	000000	
0	.00003584	0.0000358	5 -0.	0000001	
•	.00003571	0.000356	1 6.	0000010	
0	.00003553	0.0000354	8	000000	
0	*00CC3529	0.0000353	·0- 0	0000001	
Q	. COC03514	0.0000352	0- 0	0000000	

CALIBRATION OF VISCCMETERS

----

----

-174-

. - 14-4 av 14 a to to to the to the to the

### REFERENCES

 J. Frenkel, Kinetic Theory of Liquids (Oxford University Press, London, 1946)

CARLE COLLES COLSERVICES STATES CARLES AND

- J.O. Hirschfelder, C.F. Curtiss and R.B. Bird, The Molecular Theory of Gases and Liquids (Wiley, New York, 1954)
- R. Kubo, Lectures in Theoretical Physics, Vol. I (Interscience, New York, 1958)
- 4. R.W. Zwanzig, Lectures in Theoretical Physics, Vol. III (Interscience, New York, 1961)
- N.N. Bugolubov, Studies in Statistical Mechanics (North Holland Publications, Amsterdam, 1962)
- I. Prigogine, Transport Processes in Statistical Mechanics (Interscience, New York, 1958)
- 7. S.A. Rice and H.L. Frisch, Ann. Rev. Phys. Chem., 1960, 11, 187
- S.A. Rice and P. Gray, The Statistical Mechanics of Simple Liquids (Wiley, New York, 1965)
- 9. M.H. Cohen and D. Turnbull, J. Chem. Phys., 1959, 31, 1164
- 10. J.G. Kirkwood, J. Chem. Phys., 1947, 15, 72
- 11. H.T. Davis and J.A. Palyvos, J. Chem. Phys., 1967, 46, 4043
- 12. H.S. Frank and M.W. Evans, J. Chem. Phys., 1945, 13, 507
- 13. H.S. Frank and W.Y. Wen, Discuss. Faraday Soc., 1957, 24, 133
- 14. R.W. Gurney, Ionic Processes in Solution (Dover, New York, 1962)
- 15. O.Y. Samoilov, Structure of Aqueous Electrolyte Solutions and the Hydration of Ions (Consultants Bureau, New York, 1965)
- 16. P. Navier, Mem. de l'Acad. des Sciences, 1823, 6, 389
- 17. G.G. Stokes, Trans. Camb. Phil. Soc., 1845, 8, 287
- 18. G.G. Stokes, Math. and Phys. Papers, Vol. I (Cambridge, 1880)
- 19. E. Hagenbach, Pogg. Ann., 1860, 109, 385
- 20. G. Jones and M. Dole, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1929, 51, 2950

- 176 -

് പ്രത്യായ പട്ടിക്കാന് പട്ടും പട്ടും പണ്ടാക്കുന്നു. പ്രത്യാം അവസ്തായത്തായ പട്ടും പ്രത്യായി എന്നും പ്രത്യാനം പടത

- H. Falkenhagen and M. Dole, Z. phys. Chem. (Frankfurt), 1929,
  <u>6</u>, 159; and Phys. Z., 1929, <u>30</u>, 611
- 22. E.R. Nightingale, Jr., Chemical Physics of Ionic Solutions (Wiley, Int. Symposium of the Electrochemical Society of Canada, Toronto, 1964)
- 23. A. Bondi, Rheology, Vol. I (Academic Press, New York, 1956)
- 24. J.A. Geddes, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1933, 55, 4832
- 25. W. Barfield, J. Phys. Chem., 1959, 63, 1783
- A.J. Raridon and K.A. Kraus, 1968, US Office of Saline Res.
  Develop. Progr. Rep. No. 302, 52
- 27. A. Nissema and L. Koskenniska, Suomen Kem., 1972, 45, 203
- 28. T. Onescu and E. Jurconi, Rev. Roum. de Chim., 1971, 7, 1033
- 29. L. Jannelli and A. Sacco, J. Chem. Thermod., 1972, 4, 715
- 30. R.K. Nigam and P.P. Singh, Indian J. Chem., 1971, 9, 691
- 31. K. Krickard and J.F. Skinner, J. Phys. Chem., 1969, 73, 2060
- 32. F.H. Getman, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1908, 30, 1077
- 33. H. Gillespie, Rev. Roy. Austral. Chem. Inst., 1959, 9, 1
- D. Feakins, D.G. Freemantle and K.G. Lawrence, Chem. Comm., 1968, 870
- G. Delesalle, P. Devraine and J. Huebel, Compt. Rend., 1968,
  <u>267C</u>, 1464
- 36. J.C. Lafanechere, Ph.D. thesis, Paris, June 1969
- 37. C.A. Vincent and D.S. Reid, J. Electroanal. Chem. Interfacial Electrochem., 1968, <u>18</u>, 427
- 38. E. Colton and R.E. Booker, J. Phys. Chem., 1958, 62, 1595
- 39. G.R. Leader, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1951, 73, 856
- 40. J.L. Poiseuille, Mem. Savants Etrangers, 1846, 9, 433
- 41. J.D. MacKenzie, Physico Chemical Measurements at High Temperatures (Butterworths, London, 1959)

water is the longest over the second of the second of a state of the second second second second second second

42. J.E. Verschaffelt, Commun. Phys. Lab. Leiden, 1915, 184, b, c and d; 1916, 149, b; 1917, 151; 1919, 153

i ndere menode sitter i sont of all all was species at a proposition of the first i

- 43. G. Hagen, Ann. d. Phys., 1839, <u>46</u>, 423; Abh. d. Berliner
  Akad. d. Wiss., Math. Abt., 1854, 18
- 44. O. Reynolds, Phil. Trans. A., 1883, 174, 935; 1886, 177, 171
- 45. L.R. Wilberforce, Phil. Mag., 1891, 31, 407

- 46. M. Couette, Ann. d. Chim. et Phys., 1890, 21, 433
- 47. F. Finkener and R. Gartenmeister, Z. Phys. Chem. (Frankfurt), 1890, 6, 524
- 48. P. Boussinesq, Compt. Rend., 1890, 110, 1160; 1891, 113, 9
- M.R. Cannon and M.R. Fenske, Ind. Eng. Chem., Analyt., 1938,
  <u>10</u>, 297
- 50. G. Jones and S.K. Talley, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1933, 55, 624
- 51. L.D. Eicher and B. Zwolonski, J. Phys. Chem., 1971, 75, 2016
- 52. F.H. Verhoek, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1936, 58, 2577
- 53. J.M. Notley and M. Spiro, J. Chem. Soc., 1966, B, 352
- 54. E.D. Peters and J.L. Jungnickel, Analyt. Chem., 1955, 27, 450
- 55. Moisture Determinations by the Karl Fischer Reagent (BDH Ltd,

## London, 1967)

- 56. A. Sprung, Pogg. Ann., 1876, 1, 159
- 57. S. Arrhenius, Z. phys. chem. (Leipzig), 1887, 1, 283
- 58. R. Rehyer, Z. phys. chem. (Leipzig), 1888, 2, 744
- 59. J. Wagner, Z. phys. chem. (Leipzig), 1890, 5, 31
- 60. W. Sutherland, Phil. Mag., 1900, 5, 50, 481
- 61. A. Einstein, Ann. Physik., 1906, 4, 19, 289; 1911, 4, 34, 591
- 62. B.N. Finkelstein, Phys. Z., 1930, <u>31</u>, 130, 165
- E. Grüneisen, Wiss. Abhandl. physick-tech. Reichanstalt, 1905, <u>4</u>, 239
- K. Schneider, "Dissertation", Rostock, 1910; M.P. Appelby,
  J. Chem. Soc., 1910, <u>97</u>, 2000; T.R. Merton, J. Chem.
  Soc., 1910, <u>97</u>, 2454

e and a second second and a second second

ىرى بىرى يېزىي يېڭىڭىڭ ئۆلۈكۈن بىرى بىرىيىنى بىرىيىنى بىرىكى بىرىيى يېزىي بىرىكىكىكى بىرى بىرىي بىرىي بىر بىرى

- 65. H. Falkenhagen, Phys. Z., 1931, 32, 365, 745
- 66. L. Onsager and R.M. Fuoss, J. Phys. Chem., 1932, 36, 2689
- W.M. Cox and J.H. Wolfenden, Proc. Roy. Soc., 1934, <u>145(A)</u>,
  486
- 68. M. Kaminsky, Discuss. Faraday Soc., 1957, 24, 171
- H. Falkenhagen, Electrolytes (Oxford University Press, Oxford, 1934)
- 70. H.S.Harned and B.B. Owen, Electrolytic Solutions (Reinhold, New York, 1950)
- 71. G. Sutra, J. Chim. Phys., 1946, 43, 189, 319
- 72. M. Eigen and W. Wicke, Z. Electrochem., 1951, 55, 344
- 73. P.M. Kampmeyer, L.S. Mason and A.L. Robinson, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1952, <u>74</u>, 1287
- 74. G.C. Benson, E.D. Goddard and C.A.J. Hoeve, J. Phys. Chem., 1957, 61, 593
- W.F. Claussen and M.F. Polglase, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1952,
  <u>74</u>, 4817
- 76. A.L. Robinson, J. Chem. Phys., 1946, 14, 588
- 77. M.F. Emerson and A. Holzer, J. Phys. Chem., 1969, 73, 26
- 78. R.H. Stokes and R. Mills, The Viscosity of Electrolytes (Pergamon Press, Oxford, 1965)
- 79. E.R. Nightingale, J. Phys. Chem., 1959, 63, 1381
- 80. J.M. Notley and M. Spiro, J. Phys. Chem., 1966, 70, 1502
- 81. P.B. Davis, W.S. Putnam and H.C. Jones, J. Franklyn Inst., 1915, <u>180</u>, 567
- 82. Neng-Ping Yao and D.N. Bennion, J. Phys. Chem., 1971, 75, 1727
- 83. L. Pauling, The Nature of the Chemical Bond (Cornell University Press, Ithaca, N.Y., 1948)
- 84. J.P. Bare and J.F. Skinner, J. Phys. Chem., 1972, 76, 434
- 85. D. Feakins and K.G. Lawrence, J. Chem. Soc. (A), 1966, 219

and a second of the second of the second second second second as a second as a second s

- 179 -

u te de la factification region de la 1827, en la factual de la compacta de

86. G. Jones and H.J. Fornwalt, J. Amer. Chem. Soc., 1935, 57, 2041

- 87. G.R. Hood and L.P. Hohlfelder, J. Phys. Chem., 1934, 38, 979
- L. Werblan, A. Rotowska and S. Minc, Electrochim. Acta., 1971,
  16, 41
- 89. H. Eyring, S. Glasstone and K. Laidler, The Theory of Rate Processes (McGraw-Hill, New York, 1941)
- 90. S. Arrhenius, Meddel. Vetenskapsakad. Nobelinst., 1916, 3, 20
- 91. R.F. Benck and E.R. Nightingale, J.Phys. Chem., 1959, 63, 1777
- 92. S.J. Bass, W.J. Natham, R.M. Meighan and R.H. Cole, J. Phys. Chem, 1964, <u>68</u>, 509
- 93. E.N. da C. Andrade, Phil. Mag., 1934, 17, 497, 698
- 94. J.G. Kirkwood, F.P. Buff and M.S. Green, J. Chem. Phys., 1949, <u>17</u>, 988
- 95. L.I. Stiel and G. Thodos, Progress in International Research on Thermodynamic and Transport Properties (Academic Press, New York, 1962)
- 96. S. Arrhenius, Meddel. Vetenskapsakad. Nobelinst., 1913, 2, 25
- 97. E. E. Bingham, Fluidity and Plasticity (McGraw-Hill, New York, 1922)
- 98. M. Tamura and M. Kurata, Bull Chem. Soc. Japan, 1962, 25, 32
- 99. H.T. Cullinan, Jr., Ind. Eng. Chem. Fundamentals, 1968, 7, 177
- 100. F. Dolezalek, Z. Phys. Chem., 1913,83, 73
- 101. F. Mato and J.L. Hernandez, Anal, de Fiz. y. Quim., 1967, 63(B), 13
- 102. M. Liler and D. Kosanovic, Hydrogen Bonding, ed. Hadzi (Pergamon Press, London, 1959), p. 529
- 103. J.M.G. Cowie and P.M. Toporowski, Can. J. Chem., 1961, <u>39</u>, 2240
- 104. R.J. Fort and W.R. Moore, Trans. Faraday Soc., 1966, <u>62</u>, 1112

and a second second with the second second

- 106. R.J. Bearman and P.F. Jones, J. Chem. Phys., 1960, 33, 1432
- 107. S.A. Rice, J.P. Boon and H.T. Davis, Simple Dense Fluids, ed. Frisch and Salsburg, (Academic Press, London, 1968) p. 257, 8
- 108. S.G. Brush, Chem. Rev., 1962, 62, 513

5. 272 5. 7 1 8 27 3.

- 109. R.A. McAllister, Adv. Chem. Eng., 1960, 6, 427
- 110. C.A. Vincent and D. Sinclair, Unpublished results
- 111. R.K. Ghai and F.A.L. Dullien, Can. J. Chem. Eng., 1971, <u>49</u>, 260
- 112. R. Renaud, Bull Soc. Chim. France, 1971, 12, 4269
- 113. P. Assarsson and F.R. Eirich, J. Phys. Chem., 1968, 72, 2710
- 114. K. Tyuzyo, Bull Chem. Soc. Japan, 1957, 30, 782
- 115. Z. Kozlowski, Lodzkie Towarzystoo Naukowe Soc. Scient. Lodz. Acta Chim., 1971, <u>16</u>, 17
- 116. E.E. Zhuravlev and A.N. Korneeva, Z. Fiz. Chim., 1969, 43, 434
- 117. E.N. Vasenco and S.M. Dubrovsky, Z. Fiz. Chim., 1953, 27, 281
- 118. P. Rhodewald and M. Moldner, J. Phys. Chem., 1973, 77, 373
- 119. J.O.M. Bockris and B.E. Conway, Modern Aspects of Electrochemistry, Vol. 7 (Butterworths, London, 1971), p. 52
- 120. D. Singh and V.S. Yadav, Indian J. Chem., 1970, 8, 623
- 121. F. Franks and D.J.G. Ives, Quart. Rev., 1966, 20, 1
- 122. C.A. Vincent and J.M. McDowall, unpublished results
- 124. Handbook of Chemistry and Physics, 43rd Ed., 1961-62, p. 2226

- 180 -

100